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It is our pleasure to present the 2023 Lehigh County Authority (“LCA” or “Authority”) Annual
Comprehensive Financial Report which includes the results of 2023 operations and activities.

Results from 2023 reflect the tenth full year of operation of the City of Allentown water and
wastewater systems (City Systems) under a 50-year Concession Lease (Concession) which commenced
on August 8, 2013. Concession activities for the year include a number of significant items:

— The 2023 bond coverage was 253%, exceeding the 120% requirement under the 2013
Concession Bond Financing. *

— LCA made capital improvements of $12,101,555 to the City System. Water system
improvements amounted to $4,039,424 and Wastewater projects totaled $8,062,131.

— The Authority’s performance on selected operating standards is displayed in the graphs
below.

(Note that the performance levels shown on these graphs indicate actual tasks completed
within the calendar year. Full compliance with the Concession operating standards has been
met through a combination of both current-year and prior-year activity totals, which
accumulate to achieve compliance.)

1 While the statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position indicates Interest Expense of
$19,973,362, non-cash transactions to interest expense worth $8,331,500 and amortized bond discount
$165,941 were both excluded from the calculation of 2023 interest expense for bond coverage calculation
purposes. The 2023 interest expense used for bond coverage calculation was $11,475,921.
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In the Suburban Division, capital improvements totaled $10,109,102 with $5,645,820 expended on
the water system and $4,463,282 on the wastewater system.

In late 2021, the Authority’s Board of Directors adopted a new Strategic Plan for the time period of
2022 through 2026. As a result of this planning effort, strategic focus areas were established, and
the following critical items achieved in 2023:

Asset Management — Throughout 2023, a large cross-organizational team was assembled to
support the development of a Strategic Asset Management Plan (SAMP) and to advance
other goals of the organization’s asset management program. The goal of the program will
be to manage the Authority’s assets in a comprehensive manner to lower asset failure risk
to operations, increase levels of service provided to customers, and achieve overall lower
life-cycle cost to operate, maintain, and replace its assets. The SAMP was completed in
2023, and includes a detailed roadmap for the Authority to follow in developing the
program further. Key activities outlined in the SAMP relate to fully developing the
Authority’s asset management technology platform, standardizing maintenance approaches
across multiple operational groups, and methodologies to consistently document asset
characteristics such as risk of failure, condition, and consequence of failure.

Process Improvement — A previous effort was conducted to develop a comprehensive list of
process improvement opportunities for the Authority. Through review of this work,
Authority staff identified a critical need to evaluate the effectiveness of its financial software
system and integrations with other databases and systems. In 2022, a technology roadmap
was developed to plan out the next steps in this critical area. In 2023, the Authority took
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steps toward a full re-implementation of its Enterprise Resource Planning software system
(to be completed in 2024) that will serve as the foundation of other process enhancements
in the years ahead.

— Wastewater Capacity — The Authority continued to lead efforts to collaborate with local
municipal partners to address the region’s future sewer system needs. An interim 5-year
plan was approved in 2021 by the Pa. Department of Environmental Protection, which will
serve as the basis for planning efforts through 2025. The goal of this effort is to develop an
integrated plan to eliminate sanitary sewer overflows, and provide capacity for economic
growth for those municipalities who require it. The Authority led the effort to keep positive
momentum on this regional planning effort in 2023, resulting in deep collaboration among
municipal leaders and large industrial users. While the groundwork for the regional sewer
plan has been laid, much more work is required to address intermunicipal agreements and
to analyze sewer rate impacts in the communities served by the system. This work will
continue in 2024 and beyond.

— Employee Safety — Early in 2023, an Employee Health & Safety Steering Committee was
formed to provide more direct and overt internal leadership for the Authority’s safety
program. Efforts in the initial year of the Committee’s existence focused on improving
methods for recording and tracking safety incidents, and enhancing internal visibility of
safety programs. This effort is showing clear results including an increase in safety incidents
being reported, which were not captured in prior reporting periods. Having more robust
data regarding safety incidents across the organization will allow for more meaningful risk
evaluations and safety training programs to be developed in 2024.

These highlights are provided to illustrate the Authority’s continued focus on developing long-term
strategies to serve the region’s needs and ensure continuity of operations during challenging times.
Authority employees also focus daily on supporting many other advancements in operations,
technology, personnel management, and industry leadership.

For more on 2023 results, additional information is included in Management’s Discussion and Analysis
on pages 16-29 of the Report.

Responsibility for the accuracy, completeness and fairness of the report, including all disclosures, rests
with the Authority. We believe that this report, which was prepared by the administrative staff, is
accurate in all material aspects, is presented in a manner designed to fairly present the financial
position and results of operation as measured by the Authority’s financial activity, and includes all
disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the Authority’s financial
activity.
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Overview of Annual Financial Report: Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) serves as an
introduction to, and should be read in conjunction with, the basic audited financial statements and
supplementary information. The MD&A represents management’s examination and analysis of the
Authority’s financial condition and performance during the last three years. Summary financial
statement data, key financial and operational indicators included in the Authority’s Strategic Plan,
benchmark program, budget, bond documents and other management tools were used for the
analysis.

Accounting System and Internal Control: The Authority’s accounting system is maintained on an
accrual basis of accounting in accordance with United States generally accepted accounting principles.
In developing the Authority’s accounting system, consideration was given to the adequacy of internal
accounting controls. These controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
regarding: (1) safeguarding assets against loss from unauthorized use or disposition; and (2) the
reliability of financial records for preparing financial statements and maintaining accountability for
assets. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not
exceed the benefits likely to be delivered; and, (2) the evaluation of costs and benefits require
estimates and judgments by management. We believe the Authority’s internal accounting controls
adequately safeguard assets and provide reasonable assurance of proper recording of financial
transactions.

Independent Audit: The Pennsylvania Municipality Authorities Act requires an annual audit of the
books of account, financial records and transactions of the Authority by an independent certified
public accountant selected by the Authority. In addition, various financing documents require such
an audit. The auditors’ opinion for the 2023 audit has been included in this report.

GOVERNMENT PROFILE

LCA was incorporated in 1966 by the Lehigh County Commissioners and thereafter was directed to
plan and construct a water system and a wastewater interceptor system in Western Lehigh County.
The systems were needed to serve proposed industrial and commercial developments and serve new
residences driven by the growing population of the area. Thereafter, acquiring existing systems and
developer extensions were the prime vehicles for LCA’s expansion in Western Lehigh County. LCA
also expanded into other areas of Lehigh and Northampton counties by acquiring satellite water and
wastewater systems and wherever possible integrating them with other LCA systems.

As mentioned previously, in 2013, a major step towards regionalization of Lehigh County water and
wastewater systems was accomplished through the Concession for the City Systems, which created a
regional service approach for many communities in Lehigh County.

LCA currently provides two types of services to communities in the City Division. Through the Water
Plant and Distribution System (the City Water System) LCA serves 48,212 residential and business
units in the City of Allentown and supplies water under Municipal Services Agreements to Lehigh
County Municipalities of South Whitehall, Hanover, Salisbury, Whitehall, and to the LCA service area
adjacent to the City of Allentown (the Suburban Division) under various water supply agreements.
Through the Sewer Utility System (the City Sewer System) LCA provides sewage collection, treatment
and disposal services to 48,171 residential and business units in the City of Allentown and to the
Lehigh County Municipalities of Emmaus, Hanover, Salisbury, Lower Macungie and South Whitehall,
the Coplay-Whitehall Sewer Authority, and to the LCA Suburban Division under several inter-
municipal agreements.
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LCA currently provides four types of service to communities in the Suburban Division. Through the
Western Lehigh Interceptor System, LCA provides sewage transportation service to the Townships of
Lower Macungie, Upper Macungie, Upper Milford, Weisenberg and the Boroughs of Alburtis, Emmaus
and Macungie. LCA also owns and operates wastewater collection systems in the Upper Milford,
Heidelberg, Lowhill, Lynn, North Whitehall, Weisenberg and Washington Townships serving a total of
3,129 customers. The Authority provides sewage transportation service to Salisbury and South
Whitehall Townships along with the other users of the Western Lehigh Interceptor System. As of
December 31, 2023, the Suburban Water System serves 24,402 residential and business units in the
Lehigh County Townships of Upper Macungie, Lower Macungie, North Whitehall, Washington,
Weisenberg, South Whitehall, Heidelberg, Lower Milford, Lowhill, Lynn, Salisbury and Upper Milford,
and Moore Township in Northampton County.

In aggregate, LCA serves a population of more than 200,000 with water, wastewater, or both services
throughout its service areas.

Budgetary Control: LCA annually adopts operating and capital budgets based on an assumed level of
water and wastewater system operation. Monthly reports are prepared to monitor each budget.

The Chief Executive Officer is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between line items within any
budget; however, any revisions that alter the total expenses or revenue of any budget must be
approved by the Authority Board. The level of control (level at which expenses may not exceed
budget) is the individual budget within each fund. Budgets for all funds are adopted on a basis
consistent with generally accepted accounting principles.

ECONOMIC CONDITIONS

The Lehigh Valley saw favorable economic conditions in 2023, with the unemployment rate
decreasing from 3.8% as of year-end 2022 to 3.2% as of year-end 2023 in Lehigh County. The 2023
year-end unemployment rate of 3.2% is lower than the State rate of 3.4% and is lower than the
National rate of 3.6%. Over the years, the Lehigh Valley has built a diversified residential and
industrial base, which has mitigated the economic volatility experienced in other larger east coast
cities. The City of Allentown has experienced significant redevelopment over the past 10 years with
projects like the PPL Arena, the NIZ Development Zone, Waterfront Development and other
construction.

This increased usage of both water and wastewater services by the Suburban Division’s industrial
customer base has allowed rates to remain among the lowest in the Commonwealth, although a
water rate increase of approximately 5.5% was implemented in 2023 to address near-term capital
improvement needs in the system, and additional increases are expected in the years ahead to
ensure revenues are sufficient to keep pace with increased capital improvement and regulatory
requirements. Under the Concession, rates to City residents and businesses rose in 2023 reflecting
the change in the Consumer Price Index in 2023 plus Capital Cost Recovery Charges to recover the
cost of Major Capital Improvements (>$1,000,000) completed in 2022 or initiated in 2023. The total
increase in water and sewer charges to the average residential customer in the Authority’s
Allentown Division in 2022 was 9.8%.
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AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

o LCAwas recognized by the Government Finance Officers Association of The United States and
Canada with a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting for its Annual
Comprehensive Financial Report for the year ended December 31, 2022. The Certificate of
Achievement is a prestigious national award, recognizing conformance with highest standards
for preparation of state and local government financial reports.

o The City Water Filtration Plant was awarded the Area Wide Optimization Award and Directors
Award from the Association of State Drinking Water Administrators and the American Water
Works Association, respectively, (for the seventeenth consecutive year). This award
recognizes the staff’s outstanding efforts towards optimizing filter plant performance.

Acknowledgements: We recognize and thank LCA employees and the Board for their focus and
dedication which underlie our 2023 accomplishments. We also thank the Board for its continued
encouragement and support in planning, operating and managing the Authority’s affairs in a forward
looking and business-like manner.

Respectfully Submitted,

Deca PN

Liesel M. Gross
Chief Executive Officer
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Edward C. Klein
Chief Financial Officer
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FINANCIAL SECTION
This section is composed of the following four parts:
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULES
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Directors

Lehigh County Authority
Allentown, Pennsylvania

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the financial statements of the business-type activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of Lehigh County Authority, Pennsylvania, as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise Lehigh County Authority’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of Lehigh County Authority, as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the years then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of Lehigh Authority and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Lehigh County Authority’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or

events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Lehigh County Authority’s ability
to continue as a going concern for one year after the date that the financial statements are issued.

830 Sir Thomas Court, Suite 100, Harrisburg, PA 17109 2370 York Road, Suite A-5, Jamison, PA 18929
3800 McKnight East Drive, Suite 3805, Pittsburgh, PA 15237 420 Chinquapin Round Road, Suite 2-i, Annapolis, MD 21401
34745 Burbage Road, Frankford, DE 19945 210 Tollgate Hill Road, Greensburg, PA 15601

www.zallc.org
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that
includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material
if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment
made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

o Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Lehigh County Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about Lehigh County Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern
for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis on pages 16 through 29 and the schedule of changes in the net pension liability
and related ratios, schedule of contributions for the pension plan, schedule of changes in net OPEB
liability and related ratios — Suburban Employees, schedule of contributions — Suburban Employees
OPEB Plan, schedule of investment returns — Suburban Employees OPEB Plan, and schedule of
changes in total OPEB liability and related ratios — City Division, on pages 83 through 88 be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
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Zelenkofske Axelrod LLC

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

EXPERIENCE | EXPERTISE | ACCOUNTABILITY

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise Lehigh County Authority’s basic financial statements. The Other Supplementary Information
and the Supplemental Schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required
part of the basic financial statements.

The Other Supplementary Information and the Supplemental Schedules are the responsibility of
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves,
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the Other Supplementary Information and the Supplemental Schedules
are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Information Included in the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report

Management is responsible for the other information in the annual comprehensive financial report. The
other information comprises the introductory and statistical sections, but does not include the basic
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinions on basic financial statements do not
cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon. In
connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the
basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other
information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

Zalimkeil Aeboe! 1

ZELENKOFSKE AXELROD LLC
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania
April 30, 2024
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1053 SPRUCE RD * P.O. BOX 3348 * ALLENTOWN, PA 18106-0348
‘ 610-398-2503 * email: service@lehighcountyauthority.org
] ) www.lehighcountyauthority.org
Lehigh County Authority

INTRODUCTION

Lehigh County Authority is pleased to present its Annual Financial Report for the year ended December 31, 2023. The
Authority is a water and wastewater agency created by the County of Lehigh, Pennsylvania in 1966 under the
Pennsylvania Municipality Authorities Act. Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MDA) is intended to serve as an
introduction to the Authority’s basic financial statements.

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform with current year presentation.
Information in this MDA is presented under the following headings:

Authority Activities and Highlights

Overview of the Financial Statements

Financial Analysis

Capital Contributions

Capital Assets & Service Concession Arrangement
Debt Administration

Economic Factors and Rates

Contacting the Authority’s Financial Management

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
2023: A Year of Fresh Starts & Looming Challenges

For many organizations, 2023 was a year in which the COVID-19 pandemic began to fade into the background, and
more energy and focus could be dedicated to looking forward and generating new programs and ideas. Such was also the
case for Lehigh County Authority. Throughout the year, great progress was made on several key initiatives and strategies
outlined in LCA’s 2022-2027 Strategic Plan. Notably:

A Strategic Asset Management Plan (SAMP) was developed in 2023 that will guide LCA’s efforts for the next several
years to care for the Authority’s water and sewer assets in a way that balances risk, cost, and service.

A new Employee Health & Safety initiative was rolled out in 2023, including development of an executive steering
committee, renewed focus on incident reporting to support improved safety protocols, and several new employee
training programs.

Continued work was completed on a regional sewer facilities plan (called an “Act 537 Plan”), moving LCA closer to its
target of submitting the plan to state regulators in early 2025. The Act 537 Plan was rolled out publicly in the fourth
quarter of 2023.

Internal efforts to enhance administrative and financial processes have been successful, and a new financial software
implementation project lined up for completion in 2024.

These significant achievements in 2023 are worth celebrating, and will lay the foundation for the Authority’s success
in achieving its strategic initiatives. However, it is also important to look forward and adjust priorities as needed to
address changes in the utility landscape. Three such changes are looming, and the Authority is developing plans and
programs to address them. First is the changing regulatory framework related to lead in drinking water, as the U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency seeks to finalize new requirements for utilities to remove all lead service lines across
the nation. Related, EPA is working to finalize new drinking water regulations related to the class of chemicals commonly
referred to as PFAS. These two regulatory changes must be considered in concert with the third major challenge that all
utilities are facing — affordability. To address rapidly increasing regulatory requirements, and to address aging

LEHIGH COUNTY AUTHORITY
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infrastructure, customers’ water and sewer bills will increase at a rate that will outpace inflation for the foreseeable
future. Ensuring that safe drinking water is accessible for all populations will be an increasing challenge for the Authority
as we look ahead. Greater focus must be placed on pursuing grant opportunities and developing avenues for vulnerable
customers to receive assistance on their water and sewer bills. LCA has made significant progress in address all of these
looming challenges in 2023 and expects to shift focus to ensure these issues remain at the forefront of the Authority’s
planning efforts in the years to come.

More information about the Authority’s 2022-2027 Strategic Plan is available on the Authority’s website, or by
contacting CEO Liesel Gross at lieselgross@Ilehighcountyauthority.org. Looking ahead, the groundwork laid in 2023 will go
a long way toward supporting the Authority’s mission: To protect public health and the environment by providing high-
quality, safe, and reliable water and wastewater services.

Authority Activities and Highlights

The Authority’s City Division was created on August 7, 2013, when the Authority bought the rights to lease and
operate the City of Allentown’s Water and Wastewater Systems for a term of 50 years. This transaction, which was
memorialized by the Allentown Water and Sewer Utility System Concession and Lease Agreement, was financed
through the issuance of $307,683,599 of bonds. In 2020, the Authority’s Concession agreement with the City was
amended to achieve mutual goals related to revenue capacity and operational sustainability of the system, and
$155,915,000 of the bonds were refinanced to support the process, the positive impacts of which are described in
the financial statements included in this report.

At the close of 2023, the Authority’s total assets and deferred outflows exceeded its liabilities and deferred
inflows by $172,353,925 (net position). The part of net position that can be used to meet the Authority’s on-going
obligations to customers and creditors, unrestricted net position, is ($8,649,978).

The Authority’s net position increased in 2023 by $15,485,296, with an increase of $8,266,949 and $7,774,363 in
the Suburban Water and City Division funds, respectively, partially offset by a decrease in the Suburban Wastewater
fund of $556,016.

Operating revenues increased from $78,096,829 in 2022 to $86,129,844 in 2023 due to increased Suburban
Water Revenues of $175,449, increased Suburban Wastewater revenues of $2,750,179 and an increase in City
Division Revenues of $5,107,387. Operating expenses increased from $55,032,473 in 2022 to $62,170,856 in 2023
due to inflationary effects on employee cost, higher purchased services, and higher depreciation and amortization.

Overview of the Financial Statements

Lehigh County Authority’s basic financial statements include statements of net position, statements of revenues,
expenses and changes in net position, statements of cash flows and notes to the financial statements. This report
also includes other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

The Authority’s financial statements are prepared on an accrual basis following generally accepted accounting
principles promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

Government-wide financial statements: The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide
readers with a broad overview of the Authority’s finances in a manner like private sector business.

Statement of net position: The statement of net position presents the financial position of the Authority. It
presents information on the Authority’s assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows
of resources, with the difference between the four reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in
net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Authority is improving or
deteriorating.

LEHIGH COUNTY AUTHORITY
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Statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position: The statement of revenues, expenses, and
changes in net position presents information showing how the Authority’s net position changed during the most
recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Revenues are recognized when earned, not when
they are received. Expenses are recognized when incurred, not when they are paid. Additionally, some revenues
and expenses are reported in this statement for items that will result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g.,
accrued wages).

Statement of cash flows: The statement of cash flows presents information on the effects of the changes in
assets, liabilities and operations have on cash during the fiscal year.

Statement of fiduciary net position: This statement presents the financial position of the Authority’s OPEB
Trust Fund. It presents information on the funds, assets, and liabilities, with the difference reported as net
position held in trust for employees’ post-retirement benefits.

Statement of changes in fiduciary net position: The statement presents information on the contributions,
changes in the fair value of investments and expenses of the Authority’s Other Post Employment Benefit (OPEB)
Trust Fund.

Notes to the financial statements: The notes supply additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the Authority-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds: The Authority maintains proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to report functions
presented as business-type activities, accounting for its suburban water, suburban wastewater, and city division
operations.

Other information: In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also
presents certain required supplementary information concerning the Authority’s obligation to supply pension
benefits and OPEB for its employees.

LEHIGH COUNTY AUTHORITY
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Financial Analysis
Net Position (City Division):

A summary of the Authority’s City Division Statements of Net Position on December 31 is presented as
follows:

2023 2022 2021
Current Assets, Unrestricted $ 30,780,618 $ 28,009,615 $ 20,025,488
Non-current Assets:
Restricted 70,658,305 61,306,220 60,788,278
Capital Assets, Net 2,734,094 1,987,204 945,827
Other Assets, Net 251,868,154 255,809,350 253,383,943
Total Assets 356,041,171 347,112,389 335,143,536
Deferred Outflows of Resources 28,649,107 28,003,303 29,671,334
Total Assets & Deferred Outflows $ 384,690,278 $ 375,115,692 $ 364,814,870
Current Liabilities $ 7,982,927 $ 8,045,281 $ 7,552,226
Non-current Liabilities 420,944,770 415,749,905 413,589,023
Total Liabilities 428,927,697 423,795,186 421,141,249
Deferred Inflows of Resources 1,479,746 4,812,034 3,710,580
Total Liabilities & Deferred Inflows $ 430,407,443 $ 428,607,220 $ 424,851,829
Net Position:
Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 1,921,159 $ 1,367,914 $ 693,351
Restricted - 3,288,666 1,037,068
Unrestricted (47,638,324) (58,148,108) (61,767,378)
Total Net Position $(45,717,165) $(53,491,528) $ (60,036,959)

As expected for a water/sewer authority, the largest part of the City Division’s assets are Capital Assets and Other Assets
(71.5%). These categories reflect the Authority’s total investment in the leased Concession assets and the purchased
rolling stock and other fleet of vehicles, less any depreciation and amortization.

Current and noncurrent assets other than capital assets and other assets in 2023 increased $12,123,088, or
13.6%. This increase was primarily due to an increase in unrestricted cash, restricted cash, and trade
receivables.

Capital assets, net and other assets, net in 2023 decreased by $3,194,306. The decrease was a result of the
previous net pension asset becoming a net pension liability in 2023.

Current liabilities in 2023 decreased by $62,354 from 2022. This decrease was primarily due to a reduction in
trade payables partially offset by an increase the current portion of revenue bonds and notes payable.
Noncurrent liabilities in 2023 increased by $5,194,865 from 2022. The increase was primarily a result of the
previous net pension asset becoming a net pension liability in 2023 along with additional note borrowings.
Current and noncurrent assets other than capital assets and other assets in 2022 increased $8,502,069, or
10.5%. This increase was primarily due to an increase for unrestricted cash, restricted cash, trade receivables
and other receivables.

Capital assets, net and other assets, net in 2022 increased by $3,466,784, which was the net increase after
considering new acquisitions offset by depreciation and amortization of $6,492,067 along with an increase in
the net pension asset.

Current liabilities in 2022 increased by $493,055 from 2021. This increase was primarily due to a higher
current part of long-term debt with a partial offset from a reduction in trade payables.

Noncurrent liabilities in 2022 increased by $2,160,882 from 2021. The increase was primarily due to
additional bond liability for the service concession liability.

LEHIGH COUNTY AUTHORITY
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Net Position (Suburban Water Fund):

A three-year condensed summary of the Authority’s Suburban Water Fund Statements of Net Position as of

December 31 of each year is presented as follows:

Current Assets, Unrestricted
Non-current Asset:
Restricted
Capital Assets, Net
Other Assets, Net
Total Assets
Deferred Outflows
Total Assets & Deferred Outflows

Current Liabilities
Non-current Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Deferred Inflows
Total Liabilities & Deferred Inflows

Net Position:
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

2023 2022 2021
$ 17,102,380 $ 13,417,932 $ 12,480,046
2,126,600 1,875,456 1,943,941
138,375,589 131,525,866 128,614,268
1,822,066 2,282,894 2,540,046
159,426,635 149,102,148 145,578,301
1,215,330 969,294 744,779
$160,641,965 $150,071,442 $146,323,080
$ 3,953,091 $ 5,894,716 $ 3,854,367
37,598,729 32,251,632 34,422,363
41,551,820 38,146,348 38,276,730
- 1,101,898 1,361,667
$ 41,551,820 $ 39,248,246 $ 39,638,397
$ 99,479,344 $ 97,314,000 $ 92,406,620
3,359,476 3,629,406 3,747,477
16,251,325 9,879,790 10,530,586
$119,090,145 $110,823,196 $106,684,683

Again, as expected for a water/sewer authority, the largest part of the Suburban Water Fund’s total assets &
deferred outflows are Capital Assets and Other Assets (87.3%). These categories reflect the Authority’s total
investment in the capital and other assets (e.g., infrastructure, buildings, machinery, and equipment), less any

depreciation and amortization.

Current and noncurrent assets other than capital assets and other assets in 2023 increased by
$3,684,448, or 27.5%. This increase was primarily due to an increase in unrestricted cash balances and

an increase in trade receivables.

Capital assets, net and other assets, net in 2023 increased $6,388,895 or 4.8%. This was primarily due to

capital spending on projects.

Current liabilities in 2023 decreased $1,941,625 or 32.9% from 2022. This decrease was primarily due to

a decrease in trade payables.

Noncurrent liabilities in 2023 increased $5,347,097 or 6.3% from 2022, as a result of the Authority

issuing a note to fund capital projects.

Current and noncurrent assets other than capital assets and other assets in 2022 increased by $869,401,
or 6.0%. This increase was primarily due to an increase in unrestricted cash balances and an increase in

trade receivables with a partial offset from a reduction in other receivables.
Capital assets, net and other assets, net in 2022 increased $2,654,446 or 2.0%. This was primarily due to

capital spending on projects.

Current liabilities in 2022 increased $2,040,349 or 52.9% from 2021. This increase was primarily due to

an increase in trade payables.

Noncurrent liabilities in 2022 decreased $2,170,731 or 6.3% from 2021, due to a reduction in bond

liability.

LEHIGH COUNTY AUTHORITY

20



Net Position (Suburban Wastewater Fund):

A three-year condensed summary of the Authority’s Suburban Wastewater Fund Statements of Net Position as
of December 31 of each year is presented as follows:

2023 2022 2021

Current Assets, Unrestricted $ 21,028,699 $ 18,904,361 $ 15,726,177
Non-current Asset:

Restricted 398,063 338,677 338,360

Capital Assets, Net 81,730,215 82,277,489 83,812,944
Other Assets, Net 4,021,307 6,200,367 8,830,906
Total Assets 107,178,284 107,720,894 108,708,387
Deferred Outflows 521,755 269,644 331,223

Total Assets & Deferred Outflows $ 107,700,039 $ 107,990,538 $ 109,039,610
Current Liabilities $ 3,592,298 $ 2,495,932 $ 2,516,100
Non-current Liabilities 5,126,796 5,420,433 6,081,672

Total Liabilities 8,719,094 7,916,365 8,597,772
Deferred Inflows - 537,212 449,750

Total Liabilities & Deferred Inflows $ 8,719,094 $ 8,453,577 $ 9,047,522
Net Position:

Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 76,243,924 $ 76,055,630 $ 76,926,452

Restricted - 445,851 140,598

Unrestricted 22,737,021 23,035,480 22,925,038

Total Net Position $ 98,980,945 $ 99,536,961 $ 99,992,088

Again, as expected for a water/sewer authority, the largest part of the Suburban Division’s total assets &
deferred outflows are Capital Assets and Other Assets (79.8%). These categories reflect the Authority’s total
investment in the capital and other assets (e.g., infrastructure, buildings, machinery, and equipment), less any
depreciation and amortization.

Current and noncurrent assets other than capital assets and other assets in 2023 increased $2,183,724,
or 11.3%. This increase was primarily due to an increase in unrestricted cash balances and trade
receivables, partially offset by a decrease in unrestricted investments.

Capital assets, net and other assets, net in 2023 decreased $2,726,334 or 3.1%. This was due to capital
spending on projects being outpaced by higher depreciation as well as a decrease in the net pension
asset and facilities planning costs.

Current liabilities in 2023 increased $1,096,366 or 43.9% from 2022. This increase was primarily due to
increased trade payables.

Noncurrent liabilities in 2023 decreased $293,637 or 5.4% from 2022, due to a reduction in debt
balances from principal payments and an increase in the net pension liability.

Current and noncurrent assets other than capital assets and other assets in 2022 increased $3,178,501,
or 19.8%. This increase was primarily due to an increase in unrestricted cash balances and an increase in
unrestricted investment balances.

Capital assets, net and other assets, net in 2022 decreased $4,165,994 or 4.5%. This was due to capital
spending on projects being outpaced by higher depreciation.

Current liabilities in 2022 decreased $20,168 or 0.8% from 2021. This decrease was primarily due to
decreases in lease liabilities.

Noncurrent liabilities in 2022 decreased $661,239 or 10.9% from 2021, due to a reduction in debt
balances from principal payments.
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Changes in Net Position (City Division):

A summary of the Authority’s City Division Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position for the years
ended December 31 is presented as follows:

Operating Revenues: 2023 2022 2021
User Charges $ 51,449,526 $ 46,293,205 $ 41,949,921
Other Income & Rent 415,106 464,040 326,513
Total Operating Revenues 51,864,632 46,757,245 42,276,434

Operating Expenses:

Salaries, Benefits & Administrative 13,616,627 11,922,755 11,658,011
Utilities, Supplies & Services 7,378,345 5,837,862 4,706,369

Treatment & Transportation 11,307 11,594 12,480

Depreciation & Amortization 6,755,624 6,492,067 6,399,799
Total Operating Expenses 27,761,903 24,264,278 22,776,659
Operating Income 24,102,729 22,492,967 19,499,775

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses):

Tapping & Capital Recovery Fees 3,027,960 2,491,962 2,173,581
Meter Sales 54,211 36,231 29,584
Inspection, Plan Reviews & Project
Reimbursements 2,405,574 5,806,628 1,308,125
Interest Earnings 3,458,984 914,681 5,373
Other Income 480,370 214,812 113,357
Interest Expense (19,973,362) (19,703,642) (19,452,114)
Other Expense (5,782,103) (5,708,208) (4,029,868)
Total Net Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) (16,328,366) (15,947,536) (19,851,962)
Increase (Decrease) in Net Position 7,774,363 6,545,431 (352,187)
Beginning Net Position (53,491,528) (60,036,959) (59,684,772)
Ending Net Position $(45,717,165) $(53,491,528) $(60,036,959)

Year over year changes are as follows:

Operating Revenue for 2023 for the City Division was $51,864,632, compared to $46,757,245 in 2022 with
most of the increase attributable to a rate increase and higher Signatory Revenues.

Operating Expenses, net of depreciation and amortization were $21,006,279 in 2023 compared to
$17,772,211in 2022, an increase of $3,234,068. The increase is due to higher employee costs, higher costs
for materials and supplies, and higher costs for services.

Operating Income, net of depreciation and amortization was $30,858,353 in 2023 compared to $28,985,034 in
2022, an increase of $1,873,319 driven mostly by the increased operating revenues with a partial offset from
higher operating expenses.

Operating Revenue for 2022 for the City Division was $46,757,245, compared to $42,276,434 in 2021 with
most of the increase attributable to a rate increase and higher Signatory Revenues.

Operating Expenses, net of depreciation and amortization were $17,772,211 in 2022 compared to
$16,376,860 in 2021. The increase is due to higher employee costs, higher costs for materials and supplies,
and higher costs for services.

Operating Income, net of depreciation and amortization was $28,985,034 in 2022 compared to $25,899,574 in
2021, an increase of $3,085,460 driven mostly by the increased operating revenues with a partial offset from
higher operating expenses.

It should be noted that interest expense of $19,973,362 in 2023 is comprised of actual interest paid ($11,475,921),
accretion ($4,053,453), amortization of the SCA Payable ($3,216,234), change in accrued interest payable ($12,691),
amortization of bond discount ($165,941), interest on leases ($29,206), and deferred refunding loss of ($1,019,916).

The City Division’s Annual Debt Service Coverage Ratio exceeded the indenture requirement of 1.20. The ratio for all
years of operation has exceeded 1.20.
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Changes in Net Position (Suburban Water Fund):

A condensed summary of the Authority’s Suburban Water Fund Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes
in Net Position for the years ended December 31 is presented below:

Operating Revenues: 2023 2022 2021
User Charges $ 16,418,379 $ 15,642,798 $ 12,399,103
Other Income & Rent 75,002 675,134 58,764
Total Operating Revenues 16,493,381 16,317,932 12,457,867

Operating Expenses:

Salaries, Benefits & Administrative 4,220,175 3,574,441 3,221,208
Utilities, Supplies & Services 5,236,816 5,006,631 4,340,242
Treatment & Transportation - - -
Depreciation & Amortization 3,898,085 3,665,828 3,373,864
Total Operating Expenses 13,355,076 12,246,900 10,935,314

Operating Income/(Loss) 3,138,305 4,071,032 1,522,553

Non-Operating Revenues/(Expenses):

Tapping & Capital Recovery Fees 316,943 279,250 386,165
Meter Sales 126,852 140,444 150,087
Inspection, Plan Reviews & Project Reimbursements 286,607 233,338 1,022,771
Interest Earnings 374,909 64,387 34,284
Other Income 207,290 173,318 132,181
Interest Expense (954,076) (847,133) (1,136,953)
Other Expense (119,528) (229,725) (255,343)
Total Net Non-Operating Revenues/(Expenses) 238,997 (186,121) 333,192
Increase/(Decrease) in Net Position Before

Capital Contributions 3,377,302 3,884,911 1,855,745

Capital Contributions
Grants - - 34,523
Capital Assets Provided by Developers & Other 4,889,647 253,602 3,227,112
Total Capital Contributions 4,889,647 253,602 3,261,635
Increase/(Decrease) in Net Position 8,266,949 4,138,513 5,117,380
Beginning Net Position 110,823,196 106,684,683 101,567,303
Ending Net Position $ 119,090,145 $ 110,823,196 $106,684,683

Changes in the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position were as follows:

Operating Revenue in 2023 for the Suburban Water Fund was $16,493,381 compared to
$16,317,932 in 2022. The primary driver for the increase in Water Fund revenue was higher
volumes along with increased rates, offset by a reduction in other income & rent.

Operating expenses, net of depreciation & amortization was $9,456,991 in 2023 compared to
$8,581,072in 2022, an increase of $875,919 over 2021. This increase was driven by higher
employee costs, and higher services costs.

Operating Revenue in 2022 for the Suburban Water Fund was $16,317,932 compared to
$12,457,867 in 2021. The primary driver for the increase in Water Fund revenue was higher
volumes along with increased rates.

Operating expenses, net of depreciation & amortization was $8,581,072 in 2022 compared to
$7,561,450in 2021, an increase of $1,019,622 over 2021. This increase was driven by higher
employee costs, higher materials and supplies, and higher services costs.
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Changes in Net Position (Suburban Wastewater Fund):

A condensed summary of the Authority’s Suburban Wastewater Fund Statements of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Position for the years ended December 31 is presented below:

Changes in the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position were as follows:

Operating Revenues: 2023 2022 2021
User Charges $ 17,465,394 $ 14,684,737 $ 15,606,887
Other Income & Rent 306,437 336,915 204,533
Total Operating Revenues 17,771,831 15,021,652 15,811,420

Operating Expenses:

Salaries, Benefits & Administrative 2,149,349 1,470,168 1,437,400
Utilities, Supplies & Services 8,295,840 7,114,123 6,906,429
Treatment & Transportation 3,903,664 2,846,176 3,899,502
Depreciation & Amortization 6,705,024 7,090,828 6,671,362
Total Operating Expenses 21,053,877 18,521,295 18,914,693

Operating Income/(Loss) (3,282,046) (3,499,643) (3,103,273)

Non-Operating Revenues/(Expenses):

Tapping & Capital Recovery Fees 1,326,278 3,236,640 752,932
Meter Sales 359 - -
Inspection, Plan Reviews & Project Reimbursements 44 556 82,529 4,108
Interest Earnings 576,327 (3,778) 25,019
Other Income 495,094 1,585 45,690
Interest Expense (168,364) (185,935) (199,973)
Other Expense (133,968) (86,525) (55,412)
Total Net Non-Operating Revenues/(Expenses) 2,140,282 3,044,516 572,364
Increase/(Decrease) in Net Position Before

Capital Contributions (1,141,764) (455,127) (2,530,909)

Capital Contributions
Grants - - -
Capital Assets Provided by Developers & Other 585,748 - 422,300
Total Capital Contributions 585,748 - 422,300
Increase/(Decrease) in Net Position (556,016) (455,127) (2,108,609)
Beginning Net Position 99,536,961 99,992,088 102,100,697
Ending Net Position $ 98,980,945 $ 99,536,961 $ 99,992,088

Operating Revenue in 2023 for the Suburban Wastewater Fund was $17,771,831 compared to
$15,021,652 in 2022. The increase can be attributed to higher municipal user charges.

Operating expenses, net of depreciation & amortization was $14,348,853 in 2023, an increase of
$2,918,386 compared to 2022 of $11,430,467. The increase was caused by higher employee cost,
higher materials and supplies, higher service cost, and higher treatment and transportation cost.
Operating Revenue in 2022 for the Suburban Wastewater Fund was $15,021,652 compared to
$15,811,420 in 2021. The primary driver for the decrease in Wastewater Fund revenue was lower

flows and loads.

Operating expenses, net of depreciation & amortization was $11,430,467 in 2022, a decrease of
$812,864 compared to 2021 of $12,243,331. The primary driver was lower treatment &

transportation charges.
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As a sign of the new growth in the Suburban Division territory, the following table illustrates the
three-year trend of Water System connections and Wastewater capacity sales to new and

expanding users.

2023 2022 2021

Water System # of Units Connected:

Single Family Detached 156 175 162
Single Family Attached (Townhouses) 61 95 98
Apartments and Mobile Homes 3 274 9
Commercial 17 9 15
Total Water System Connections 237 553 284
Wastewater Capacity Sales in Gallons:

Residential 25,868 71,806 63,555
Commercial 73,359 182,559 1,150
Total Sales 99,227 254,365 64,705

The table reflects a decrease in new Water System connections for both detached and attached single
family homes while we had a decrease in connections for Apartments, mobile homes, and commercial.
Wastewater capacity sales were lower in 2023 to previous year due to lower commercial activity.

The Suburban Water System bought 7.36 million gallons per day (mgd) from the interconnection
with its City Division in 2023. We expect to buy similar volume in 2024.

The Suburban Division’s Annual Water System Operating Coverage, which is figured out by
dividing net operating revenues by annual debt service, was above the 110% required by the

Suburban Water Bond Indenture.
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Changes in Net Position (Suburban Division Summary):

A summary of the Authority’s Statement of Changes in Net Position Suburban Division (Suburban Water and
Wastewater) is presented as follows:

Statement of Changes in Net Position Year Ended December 31, 2023

Beginning Increased / Ending
Balance (Decreased) Balance
Net Investment in Capital
Assets $173,369,630 $ 2,353,638 $ 175,723,268
Restricted Net Position 4,075,257 (715,781) 3,359,476
Unrestricted Net Position 32,915,270 6,073,076 38,988,346
Total Net Position $210,360,157 $7,710,933 $218,071,090
Other Selected Information:
2023 2022 2021
Equivalent Fulltime Employees at Year-End 164 165 158
Units Served:
City Division:
Water:
Water — Residential 42,417 42,249 41,998
Water — Industrial & Commercial 5,795 5,462 5,184
Total Water Billable Units 48,212 47,711 47,182
Wastewater:
Wastewater — Residential 42,387 42,219 41,968
Wastewater — Commercial 5,784 5,452 5,174
Total Wastewater Billable Units 48,171 47,671 47,142
Suburban Division:
Water — Residential 23,605 23,383 22,791
Water — Industrial & Commercial 797 782 774
Total Water Billable Units 24,402 24,165 23,565
Wastewater Collection — Residential 2,995 2,957 2,897
Wastewater Collection — Commercial 134 133 132
Total Wastewater Billable Units 3,129 3,090 3,029
Customers: 2023 2022 2021
City Division:
Water — Residential 30,467 30,456 30,442
Water — Industrial & Commercial 3,057 3,046 3,034
Total Water Customers 33,524 33,502 33,476
Wastewater Collection — Residential 30,445 30,434 30,420
Wastewater Collection — Commercial 3.046 3,036 3,024
Total Wastewater Customers 33,491 33,470 33,444
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Customers:
Suburban Division:
Water — Residential
Water — Industrial & Commercial
Total Water Customers
Wastewater Collection — Residential
Wastewater Collection — Commercial
Total Wastewater Customers

Ratios:
City Division:
Ratio of Operating Revenue to:
Operating Expenses, Net of Depreciation &
Amortization
Total Assets (Annualized)
Total Net Position
Debt Related Ratios:
Net Position to Long-Term Debt
Current Ratio (Current Assets/Current Liabilities)

Suburban Water:
Ratio of Operating Revenue to:
Operating Expenses, Net of Depreciation &
Amortization
Total Assets
Total Net Position
Debt Related Ratios:
Net Position to Long-Term Debt
Current Ratio (Current Assets/Current Liabilities)

Suburban Wastewater:
Ratio of Operating Revenue to:

Operating Expenses, Net of Depreciation &
Amortization
Total Assets (Annualized)
Total Net Position

Debt Related Ratios:
Net Position to Long-Term Debt
Current Ratio (Current Assets/Current Liabilities)

2023

20,636
791
21,427
2,635
_ 128
2,763

2023

2.47
0.15
N/A

N/A
3.86

1.74
0.10
0.14

3.27
4.33

1.24
0.17
0.18

21.55
5.85
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2022 2021
20,417 20,145
776 768
21,193 20,913
2,597 2,537
127 126
2,724 2,663
2022 2021
2.63 2.58
0.13 0.13
N/A N/A
N/A N/A
3.51 2.65
1.90 1.65
0.11 0.09
0.15 0.12
3.47 3.19
2.28 3.24
1.31 1.29
0.14 0.15
0.15 0.16
19.28 16.44
7.57 6.25



Capital Contributions

The Authority received no grants related to construction in 2023 and had none in 2022. Another major source of
capital contributions was derived from developer installed systems donated to the Authority. In 2023, $5,475,395
was received compared to $253,602 in 2022.

Capital Assets & Service Concession Arrangement:

The largest investment in the Authority’s history occurred on August 7, 2013, with the financing of the
acquisition of the City of Allentown’s Water and Sewer System through a 50-year lease concession. The Authority’s
Net Capital Investment in intangible and other assets decreased from $247,299,215 in 2022 to $245,998,066 in
2023, and the City Divisions net capital assets increased from $1,987,204 in 2022 to $2,734,094 in 2023. More detail
on the Service Concession Arrangement can be found in Note 6 to the financial statements.

Net Capital Assets in Suburban Water increased by $6,849,723 and decreased by $547,274 in Suburban
Wastewater. The changes from year to year are due to the relative changes in capital spending against depreciation
& amortization. More detail on the Authority’s Capital Assets can be found in Note 5 to the financial statements.

Debt Administration:

In 2013 the Authority issued $307,683,599 million in three series of bonds to fund the upfront payment to the
City of Allentown, capital improvements, create various reserves necessary under the Indenture and to fund
financing and other transaction costs related to the Concession. Increases to debt in 2018 consisted of issuance of
the Series 2018 Bond and accreted interest on the 2013 Series B Capital Appreciation Revenue Bonds. The Series C
Bonds were refinanced in 2018 and a part of the Series A bonds were refinanced in 2020.

In 2020 the Authority issued City Division Water and Sewer Revenue Bond Series 2020 and Series A of 2020 in
the amounts of $161,035,000 and $18,150,000, respectively. The Series 2020 Bonds were issued to advance refund
a part of the City Divisions Series 2013 A Bonds, fund a debt service reserve, and pay the costs and expenses of
issuing the Bonds. The Series A 2020 Bonds were issued to currently refund the City Divisions Series 2018 Bonds,
fund a debt service reserve, and pay the costs and expenses of issuing the Bonds.

In 2021, the Authority refinanced $21,679,902 of existing debt in the Suburban Water fund.

In 2022, there was $12.2M of additional project financing activity in the Suburban Water Fund.

In 2023, there was no additional financing activity in any of the funds.
See note 8 of the Notes to the Financial Statements for further detail on outstanding debt.
Economic Factors and Rates:

City Division:

City Division rates increased by 9.8% in January 2023 per the Concession Agreement to support the mutual goals
of the Authority and the City of Allentown related to revenue capacity and operational sustainability of the system.

Suburban Division:

From the Suburban Division perspective, the Authority chose to increase water rates in 2023 to cover the
funding of certain capital projects. The Suburban Division’s rates continue to be among the lowest in the Lehigh
Valley region.

With higher treatment and transportation costs from the former City of Allentown water and wastewater
departments and significant maintenance needed on the Authority’s Interceptor System, annual Wastewater rate
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increases have been enacted since 2007. For the Authority’s smaller satellite systems and wastewater collection
systems, the most recent rate increase was on January 1, 2013, a 5% increase.

Contacting the Authority’s Financial Management:

This financial report is designed to provide our customers, creditors, and funding agencies with a general
overview of the Authority’s finances and to show the Authority’s accountability for the money it receives. If you
have any questions about this report or need more information, contact Edward C. Klein, the Lehigh County
Authority’s Chief Financial Officer, P.O. Box 3348, Allentown, PA 18106.

Submitted by,

5/4{4_&/ ZL?W’#({
Liesel M. Grdss
Chief Executive Officer

/J \ ,
@14!:}%4; C 7{,»/{ Qe

Edward C. Klein
Chief Financial Officer
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LEHIGH COUNTY AUTHORITY
ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVANIA

STATEMENTS OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUND

DECEMBER 31, 2023 and 2022

Assets
Investments:
Cash Equivalents
Mutual Funds - Equity
Stocks
Corporate Bonds

Total Assets

Liabilities
Accounts Payable

Total Liabilities

Net Position Restricted for
Post Retirement Health Benefits

Component Unit

Suburban

Post Employment Health Fund

2023 2022
$ 211,822 146,523
1,909,326 1,767,807
1,503,603 1,288,876
156,528 154,422
$ 3,781,279 3,357,628
$ - -
$ - -
$ 3,781,279 3,357,628

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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LEHIGH COUNTY AUTHORITY
ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVANIA

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUND
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 and 2022

Component Unit

Suburban
Post Employment Health Fund
2023 2022
Additions:
Contributions:
Employer $ 47,039 $ 12,008
Total Contributions 47,039 12,008
Investment Income:
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Fair Value of Investments 490,066 (571,813)
Net Investment Income/(Loss) 490,066 (571,813)
Total Additions 537,105 (559,805)
Deductions:
Administrative Expense 20,354 20,674
Reimbursement of Benefits Expense 93,100 90,780
Total Deductions 113,454 111,454
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Net Position 423,651 (671,259)
Net Position Restricted for Post Retirement Health Benefits:
Beginning of Year 3,357,628 4,028,887
End of Year $ 3,781,279 $ 3,357,628

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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LEHIGH COUNTY AUTHORITY
ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVANIA

Notes to Financial Statements
NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Reporting Entity

The Lehigh County Authority (the Authority) incorporated under the Pennsylvania Municipal
Authorities Act, by the Lehigh County Commissioners in 1966, "... for the purpose of accumulating,
conserving and distributing fresh water ...” Under the Act, an authority is an independent municipal
corporation and a separate governmental agency of the state. In 1969, the County Commissioners
advanced the Authority from a paper organization to an operating unit to plan and construct a water supply
system and a wastewater interceptor system to serve residential, commercial, and industrial users in the
western part of Lehigh County. In 2013, the Authority started serving other areas of Lehigh County when
it bought the rights to lease and operate the City of Allentown’s Water and Sewer Systems under a 50-year
Concession and Lease Agreement (the Concession). As a result of this Agreement, the Authority created
both City and Suburban Divisions, in recognition of the various agreements and financings, related to each
entity.

The Authority currently provides two types of services to communities in the City Division. Through
the Water Plant and Distribution System (the City Water System) the Authority serves 48,212 residential
and business units in the City of Allentown and supplies water under Municipal Services Agreements to
Lehigh County Municipalities of South Whitehall, Hanover, Salisbury, Whitehall, Bethlehem and to the
Suburban Division under a previously executed water supply agreement. Through the Sewer Utility System
(the City Sewer System) the Authority provides sewage collection, treatment and disposal services to
48,171 residential and business units in the City of Allentown and to the Lehigh County Municipalities of
Coplay-Whitehall, Emmaus, Hanover, Salisbury, Lower Macungie, South Whitehall and to the Suburban
Division, under a previously executed sewer services agreement.

The Authority currently provides four types of service to communities in the Suburban Division.
Through the Western Lehigh Interceptor System, the Authority provides sewage transportation service to
the Townships of Lower Macungie, Lowhill, Upper Macungie, Upper Milford, and Weisenberg and the
Boroughs of Alburtis, Emmaus, and Macungie. The Authority owns and operates wastewater collection
systems in the Townships of Upper Milford, Heidelberg, Lynn, North Whitehall and Weisenberg serving a
total of 3,129 customers as of December 31, 2023. Through the Little Lehigh Relief Interceptor System,
the Authority provides sewage transportation service to Salisbury and South Whitehall Townships along
with the other users of the Western Lehigh Interceptor System excluding Emmaus. As of December 31,
2023, the Water System serves 24,402 residential and business units in the Lehigh County Municipalities
of Upper and Lower Macungie, North Whitehall, Washington, Weisenberg, South Whitehall, Heidelberg,
Lower Milford, Lownhill, Lynn, Salisbury, and Upper Milford Townships and in Moore Township of
Northampton County.

The accompanying financial statements include all funds which are "controlled by or are dependent
on" the Authority. The funds included are the Suburban Water Fund, both operating and capital, the
Suburban Wastewater Fund, both operating and capital for the Western Lehigh Interceptor System, Little
Lehigh Relief Interceptor System, Wastewater Collector Systems in Upper Milford, Weisenberg,
Washington, Lynn, Heidelberg and North Whitehall Townships, a Wastewater Treatment Plant and planning
activity for providing wastewater service, and the City Division Fund, both operating and capital.

Accordingly, the accompanying financial statements do not include the financial activities of the
County of Lehigh (the County), nor are the Authority's financial activities included in the County's financial
statements, since each is considered a separate entity under the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) criteria.

37



LEHIGH COUNTY AUTHORITY
ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVANIA

Notes to Financial Statements
NOTE 1 —- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

For purposes of financial reporting, the Authority is a related organization to the County. The criteria
used in deciding the scope of the reporting entity are outlined below.

The Authority Board members are appointed to five-year terms by the County Executive, with
concurrence by the County Commissioners, in an authoritative, official capacity. After confirmation, only
the Court of Common Pleas can remove a member for cause. While there is continuing communication
with the County, there is little linkage to the elected County officials thereafter.

The management and employees of the Authority responsible for the operations of the Authority
are appointed by and held accountable to the Authority. The County does not have powers of appointment
over any Authority employee.

The Authority reviews and approves all budgets, sets rates, and exercises control over facilities,
property and policies relating to the services provided by the Authority. The County is under no obligation
to finance operating deficits and does not have claim to any surpluses. The Authority has the power to
issue bonds and other financing, with the County having no legal responsibility for debt issued by the
Authority.

The accounting policies of the Lehigh County Authority conform to generally accepted accounting
principles as established by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. The following is a summary
of the significant policies:

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources,
and net position and disclosures at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

The financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a
liability is incurred, regardless of timing of related cash flows. Grants and related items are recognized as
revenues as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Operating revenues and expenses are distinguished from non-operating items in the statement of
revenues, expenses, and changes in net position. Operating revenues and expenses result from providing
services in connection with the Authority’s principal ongoing operations. Principal operating revenues of
the Authority are charges to customers for water use and wastewater collection, transmission, and
treatment. When calculating user fees charged to customers, the Authority includes a part for the
repayment of principal on the Authority’s outstanding debt. Operating expenses include the cost of
supplying water and wastewater services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.
The principal non-operating revenues of the Authority are capital recovery fees, plan review and inspection
fees and investment income. The principal non-operating expenses of the Authority include interest
expense and cost of goods sold.

Capital grant funding represents amounts received from capital project grants, which are restricted

to capital acquisition or construction. The Authority recognizes capital grant funding when the grants are
earned which is generally when the related capital expenditure is made.
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The funds and component unit of the Authority are grouped in the financial statements in this report as

follows:

1.

Proprietary Funds:

Enterprise Funds - are used to account for business-like activities provided to the public. These
activities are financed primarily by user charges, and the measurement of financial activity focuses
on net income measurement like the private sector. The reporting entity includes the following
enterprise funds, which are reported as major funds:

Suburban Water Fund - Used to account for the operations of the suburban water supply and
distribution system. The suburban water system is a public utility service, which is intended to
be maintained on a self-supporting basis.

Suburban Wastewater Fund - Used to account for the operations of the suburban wastewater
interceptor, collector systems, and treatment facilities. The suburban wastewater system is a
public utility service, which intends to be maintained on a self-supporting basis.

City Division Fund — Used to account for the operations of the City Concessioned System. The
City Division Fund is a public utility service, which intends to be maintained on a self-supporting
basis. This fund was added in 2013 because of the Service Concession Arrangement
discussed in Note 6.

Fiduciary Component Unit:

The Suburban Post-Employment Health Trust Plan (the “Plan”) was created in 2010 to
accumulate assets to be used for payment of health benefits to qualified retirees. The Plan is
included in the financial reporting entity as a fiduciary component unit because the Plan is (1)
considered to be a separate legal entity, (2) the Authority appoints a voting majority of the
governing board, and (3) the plan imposes a financial burden on the Authority as it is has
assumed an obligation to make contributions to the Plan.

C. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The Lehigh County Authority follows these procedures in establishing the annual budgets:

1.

Starting in the summer months department heads develop a preliminary budget, including
personnel needs, for all capital and operating programs and for all line items for the coming
calendar year. Supporting detail provides justification for each budget component, including
calculations, quotations, project timetables, and outlines.

The budget is given to the Authority Board in September or October for review. A formal
presentation is made the second week of October with final adoption at the Authority’s final
October meeting. The final copy of the budget includes an individual budget for City and
Suburban Divisions, including Water and Wastewater Operating, and Water and Wastewater
Capital sections. The officially adopted budget is the financial plan for the ensuing year.

Each month, a Budget vs. Actual Report is prepared. The report cites monthly and year-

to-date activity as well as unused budgeted monies. All department heads are responsible for
evaluating their areas for compliance with the budget and taking proper remedial action.
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4, The Accounting Supervisor may transfer budgeted amounts between line items within any
budget; however, any revisions that alter the total expenses or revenues of any fund must be
approved by the Authority Board. For the year ended December 31, 2023, there were no
budget amendments that needed Board approval.

5. The level of control (level at which expenses may not exceed budget) is the individual
budgets within each fund. Budgets lapse at year-end.

6. Budgets for the Enterprise Funds are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The budgets of the Authority
are maintained and are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Budgeted amounts
are as originally adopted, as amended by the Accounting Supervisor, or as amended by the
Authority Board.

D. Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Authority considers all highly liquid investments,
including investments in external investment pools and money market mutual funds as discussed in Note
2, with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

Restricted Cash and Certificates of Deposit include escrow accounts established in the Authority’s
name for maintenance security by developers, funds held by the trustee in debt service accounts, and other
special purpose trustee accounts which include unspent bond proceeds.

E. Trade Receivables

All trade receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectables, as applicable, trade
receivables are evaluated for collectability and an allowance is established, as deemed necessary based
on the best information available and in an amount that management believes is adequate. Trade
receivables are written off when deemed uncollectible. Recoveries of trade receivables previously written
off are recorded when received.

F. Inventory

Inventory of the Suburban Water Fund consists of meters and related components and is stated at
cost (first-in, first-out). It is the policy of the Authority to expense all other materials and supplies on a
current basis for all funds.

G. Investments, External Investment Pools, Certificates of Deposit

The Authority invests its idle funds in various instruments, including external investment pools
which invest in government secured instruments and certificates of deposit with federally insured financial
institutions. The Authority’s investment in external investment pools, as discussed in Note 2, and
government secured money market instruments are valued at fair value, or amortized cost, which
approximates cost and is classified as cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet. The Authority
invests in both negotiable and non-negotiable certificates of deposit (CD) in federally insured financial
institutions. Negotiable CDs are valued at fair value while non-negotiable CDs are valued at cost because
they are considered non-participating contracts for which redemption terms do not consider market rates.
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H. Capital Assets & Depreciation, and Service Concession Arrangement & Amortization

The Authority uses a capitalization threshold of $5,000 to record capital assets purchased and
constructed. The expenses are recorded at cost including any liability for contract retainage and
construction costs payable. In addition, the Authority included any water rights associated with a project
as part of the cost of that project and depreciated them accordingly. Intangible assets acquired in the
Service Concession Arrangement are amortized over 50 years. Intangible assets with an indefinite life are
not subject to amortization. The construction accounts have also been charged with applicable
administrative expenses.

Contributed assets are carried at estimated acquisition value at the time of contribution.
Depreciation is determined using the straight-line method based upon the following estimated useful lives:

Years
Wells 45
Transmission and Distribution Mains 100
Services 60
Fire Hydrants 65
Reservoirs 55
Pumping Station — Structures 45
Pumping Station - Electrical and Pumping Appurtenances 35
Pumping Station — Purification 33.5
Metering System 20
Transportation and Computer Equipment 5
Communication and Miscellaneous Equipment 5-20
Wastewater Collector System 100
Western Lehigh Interceptor System 50
Relief Interceptor Systems 100
Office Equipment and Furnishings 10
Office Building and Site Improvements 20-40
Water Capacity 40

Normal maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred. Renewals and
betterments are capitalized and depreciated based upon the expected life of such improvements.

Non-exchange transactions, such as donated system assets and assets acquired by contributions,
are recognized as capital contributions in accordance with GASB Statement No. 33.

I. Facilities Planning Costs

The Authority has adopted a policy of amortizing planning costs related to all Water and
Wastewater activity. With the exception of the development of a Water System hydraulic model, a Financial
Information System Selection, an Integrated Computer System study, a Methane Gas Energy Study and
the costs of negotiating a lease agreement with the County of Lehigh for oversight of a wastewater treatment
plant, all of which are being amortized over 7 years, and a future water supply drilling program and a
wastewater hydraulic model, which are being amortized over 10 years, all other planning costs are
amortized over a 3-year period.
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The period over which the costs are amortized and the amortization expense for 2023 and 2022
are as follows:

Amortization 2023 2022
Period (Years) Amortization Amortization
Suburban Water Fund:
Facilities Planning Costs 3-10 $ 205,296 $ 226,692
Suburban Wastewater Fund:
Facilities Planning Costs 3-7 3,289,598 3,597,188
Total Amortization $ 3,494,894 $ 3,823,880

J. Compensated Absences

The Authority has an incentive excused absence policy, which annually compensates employees
who are absent from work less than a specific number of days during the year. Excused absences include
employee and dependent illness, medical or dental appointments, or any other valid reason approved by
the employee's immediate supervisor. There is no carryover of the excused absence allowance.

With approval up to 25 days of unused vacation can accumulate for 18 months beyond the year in
which it is earned.

The following table summarizes unused vacation liability:

2023 2022
Balance at Beginning of Year $ 296,276 $ 244,820
Additions 219,191 296,276
Retirements (296,276) (244,820)
Balance at End of Year $ 219,191 $ 296,276

Unused vacation days are used within 12 months and are reported in current liabilities as a part of
Accrued Payroll and Other.

K. Deferred Outflows of Resources

The statement of Net Position reports a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This
separate financial statement element represents consumption of net assets that applies to a future period(s)
and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense) until then. The Authority has three
items that qualify for reporting in this category: deferred outflows related to pensions, OPEB and refunding
losses on bonds.
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L. Deferred Inflows of Resources

The statement of Net Position reports a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This
separate financial statement element represents acquisition of net assets that applies to future period(s)
and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The Authority has two
items that qualify for reporting in this category: deferred inflows related to pensions and OPEB.

M. Adoption of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements

The Authority adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 94, “Public-Private and Public-Public
Partnerships and Availability Payment Arrangements”, GASB Statement No. 96, “Subscription Based
Information Technology Arrangements”, and certain provisions of GASB Statement No. 99, “Omnibus
2022". The adoption of these statements had no effect on previously reported amounts.

N. Pending Changes in Accounting Principles

In April 2022, the GASB issued Statement No. 99, “Omnibus 2022”. The Authority is required to
adopt the remaining provisions of statement No. 99 for its calendar year 2024 statements.

In June 2022, the GASB issued Statement No. 100, “Accounting Changes and Error Corrections —
an amendment of GASB Statement No. 62”. The Authority is required to statement No. 100 for its calendar
year 2024 statements.

In June 2022, the GASB issued Statement No. 101, “Compensated Absences”. The Authority is
required to adopt statement No. 101 for its calendar year 2024 statements.

In December 2023, the GASB issued Statement No. 102, “Certain Risk Disclosures”. The Authority
is required to adopt the provisions of Statement No. 102 for its fiscal year 2025 financial statements.

The Authority has not yet completed the various analysis required to estimate the financial
statement impact of these new pronouncements.
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The carrying amounts of the cash and investments on December 31 consist of the following:

2023

Demand deposit, money market, and savings
accounts $ 99,933,476

Certificates of deposit, nonnegotiable 1,066,824

Overnight repurchase 5,189,819

Certificates of deposit, negotiable 8,921,772

Pennsylvania School District Liquid Asset Fund 3,629,045

OPEB Investments:

Cash Equivalents 211,822
Mutual Funds - Equity 1,909,326
Mutual Funds — Fixed Income -
Stocks 1,503,603
U.S. Treasury Obligations -
U.S. Agencies -
Corporate Bonds 156,528

$ 122,522,215

Classification per statements of net position:

Unrestricted current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 35,569,372

Certificates of deposit 9,988,596
Restricted non-current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 73,182,968
Certificates of deposit -
Investment U.S. treasury obligations -
OPEB Investments:
Cash Equivalents 211,822
Mutual Funds - Equity 1,909,326
Mutual Funds — Fixed Income -
Stocks 1,503,603
U.S. Treasury Obligations -
U.S. Agencies -
Corporate Bonds 156,528
$ 122,522,215

Deposits:

2022

$ 74,050,606
3,045,962
13,241,009
8,765,376
1,424,872

146,523
1,767,807

1,288,876

154,422
$ 103,885,453

$ 25,196,134
11,811,338

63,520,353

146,523
1,767,807

1,288,876

154,422

$ 103,885,453

The Authority has a policy that requires all deposits and investments, other than U.S. government
obligations, to be covered by Federal insurance or to be fully collateralized by the financial institution issuing
the investment or acquiring the deposit. Deposits that are not insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation are collateralized using the pooled asset method to 100% of value as required by Pennsylvania

Law.

The securities pledged as collateral are held by the trust department of a financial institution or by
its agent in the financial institution’s name. When certificates of deposit are purchased, the Authority or its
agent either holds the actual certificate of deposit or receives a safekeeping certificate as its proof of

ownership.
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The Authority has custodial credit risk on cash and investment deposits. This is the risk that, in
case of a financial institution failure, the Authority’s deposits may not be returned. On December 31, 2023,
and 2022, the carrying amounts of the Authority's bank deposits were $21,767,267 and $23,679,148
respectively, and the bank balance of $22,955,819 and $24,543,946, respectively. As of December 31,
2023, and 2022, $21,138,995 and $20,747,985 of deposits were exposed to custodial risk because they
were uninsured and collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department
or agent, but not in the Authority’'s name. On December 31, 2023, and 2022 none of the Authority’s
investments were subject to custodial credit risk.

Investments:

Pennsylvania Law limits investment and deposit types that the Authority may purchase as follows:

(@) U.S. Treasury bills

(b) Short-term obligations of the U.S. government or its agencies

(¢) Demand, savings and time deposits with institutions insured by the FDIC or the National
Credit Union Share Funds or collateralized with securities as provided by law.

(d) Obligations of the United States or any of its agencies, the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
or any of its agencies or any political subdivisions of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
or any of its agencies providing the obligations are backed by the full faith and credit of the
political subdivisions.

Pennsylvania School District Ligquid Asset Fund

The Authority has funds invested with the Pennsylvania School District Liquid Asset Fund
(PSDLAF); an investment pool managed by RBC Capital Markets. In 2001, PSDLAF amended its bylaws
to allow Pennsylvania municipal entities besides school districts to take part in the fund. The purpose of
the pool is to enhance investment potential through cash pooling while providing security and liquidity. Pool
participants are allocated a pro-rata share of each investment purchased by the pool.

Purchased securities, placed in the name of PSDLAF, serve as collateral and are held in
safekeeping at PNC Bank. A liquid fund and MAX fund require no advance notice for withdrawals; however,
since the MAX fund does not provide check writing services, a higher rate of return is earned.

In addition, each member can purchase certificates of deposit and other investments through
the pool. Security for collateralized certificate of deposit purchases is held at the Bank of New York or the
Federal Reserve Bank of Boston. The PSDLAF fund is regulated by the Municipal Securities Rulemaking
Board. Investment policy is guided by Pennsylvania statute. The Authority’s fair value of its position in the
pool is measured at amortized cost and is the same as the value of the pool shares.

Money Market Funds

The Authority invest in various money market mutual funds. The money market accounts are
secured only by the investments within the fund, which are generally U.S. Government obligations.
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As of December 31, 2023, and 2022, the Authority had the following investments and maturities:

2023
Investment Maturities
(In Years)
One-to- Six-to- More
% of Less than Five Ten than 10
Investment Type Cost Fair Value Total One Year Years Years Years
Certificates of
Deposit,
negotiable $8,908,000 $8,921,772 71.09% $4,094,851 $4,826,921 -
U.S. Treasury
Obligations - - - - - -
Pennsylvania
School District
Liquid Asset
Fund 3,629,045 3,629,045 28.91% 3,629,045 - -
Total $12,537,045 $12,550,817 100.00% $7,723,896 $4.826,921 $ $ -
Fiduciary Fund
U.S Government
Agencies - - - - - -
U.S. Government
Treasury
Obligations - - - - - -
Corporate Bonds 160,236 156,528 100.00% - 156,528 -
Fixed Income
Mutual Bonds - - - - - -
Total $160,236 $156,528 100.00% $ - $156,528 $ $ -
2022
Investment Maturities
(In Years)
One-to- Six-to- More
% of Less than Five Ten than 10
Investment Type Cost Fair Value Total One Year Years Years Years
Certificates of
Deposit,
negotiable $8,954,000 $8,765,376 74.21% $5,231,208 $3,534,168 -
U.S. Treasury
Obligations - - - - - -
Pennsylvania
School District
Liquid Asset
Fund 3,045,962 3,045,962 25.79% 3,045,962 - -
Total $11,999,962 $11,811,338 100.00% $8,277,170 $3,534,168 $ $ -
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2022
Investment Maturities
(In Years)
One-to- Six-to- More
% of Less than Five Ten than 10
Investment Type Cost Fair Value Total One Year Years Years Years
Fiduciary Fund
U.S Government
Agencies - - - - - -
U.S. Government
Treasury
Obligations - - - - - -
Corporate Bonds 163,788 154,422 100.00% 41,755 112,667 -
Fixed Income
Mutual Bonds - - - - - -
Total $163,788 $154,422 100.00% $41,755 $112,667 $ - $

Interest Rate Risk:

As a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates, the
Authority's investment policy limits the value of investments with maturities to no greater than five years.

Credit Risk:

The Authority limits the type of investments permitted as defined in the Municipality Authorities Act
and the related trust indentures. Allowed investments are defined above. The Authority's investment policy
is consistent with these limitations.

As of December 31, 2023, the Authority’s investments were rated by Standard and Poor’s as follows:

Credit Quality Percent of

Investment Type Rating Investment Type
Corporate Bonds AA- 6.12%
Corporate Bonds A+ 6.66%
Corporate Bonds A 4.58%
Corporate Bonds A- 19.37%
Corporate Bonds BBB 34.55%
Corporate Bonds BBB+ 28.72%
Pennsylvania School District

Liquid Asset Fund AAAM 100%
Certificates of Deposit Negotiable NR 100%
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Fair Value:

The Authority categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established
by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to
measure the fair value of the assets. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets;
Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.

The Authority’s investments in negotiable certificates of deposit, stocks, fixed income mutual funds,
and equity mutual funds are valued using quoted market prices (Level 1 inputs).

The Authority’s investments in U.S. Treasury Obligations, U.S. Government Agencies, and
Corporate Bonds are valued using a matrix pricing model (Level 2 inputs).

Quoted Prices

in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
12/31/2023 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Investments by fair value level
Debt securities
Corporate Bonds $ 156,528 $ - $ 156,528 $
Total debt securities 156,528 156,528
Equity securities
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 8,921,772 8,921,772
Stocks 1,503,603 1,503,603
Equity Mutual Funds 1,909,326 1,909,326
Total equity securities 12,334,701 12,334,701 -
Total investments by fair value $ 12,491,229 $ 12,334,701 $ 156,528 $

NOTE 3 — DEVELOPER ESCROW DEPOSIT

The Authority requires developers to supply improvement security for system extensions. To meet
this requirement, developers supply such security in cash or a letter of credit. An offsetting liability for all
developer deposits is shown as a current and non-current liability on the Statement of Net Position.

NOTE 4 — RECEIVABLES — DEVELOPER CONTRACTS

As of December 31, 2023, the Authority has two agreements with customers, which allow for the
financing of wastewater capital recovery fees over a multi-year period. The purpose of these arrangements
is to make it more affordable for high-volume wastewater users to locate in the Authority service area. The
total amounts of unpaid fees have been recorded as current ($207,224) and long-term receivables
($533,320). Atyear-end 2022, there were two agreements, and the unpaid fees were recorded as current
($210,885) and long-term receivables ($749,038). The Authority is recording interest income on the
receivables in the year of receipt, which is not materially different than the accrual method.
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Capital assets of the Authority for 2023 and 2022 consist of the following:

Suburban Water Fund
Non-depreciable Assets:
Land
Construction in progress
Total Capital Assets Not Being
Depreciated
Depreciable Assets:
Wells & Reservoirs
Transmission & Distribution Mains
Service & Hydrants
Building Structure & Appurtenances
Metering System
Equipment
Right-To-Use Leased Equipment
Right-To-Use Leased Vehicles
Capacity
Total Capital Assets Being
Depreciated
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Wells & Reservoirs
Transmission & Distribution Mains
Service & Hydrants
Building Structure & Appurtenances
Metering System
Equipment
Right-To-Use Leased Equipment
Right-To-Use Leased Vehicles
Capacity
Total Accumulated Depreciation
Total Net Capital Assets Being
Depreciated
Total Capital Assets, Net

Balance at Balance at

12/31/22 Additions Retirements 12/31/23
$ 3,334,473 $ 399,692 $ - $ 3,734,165
4,714,305 5,645,820 (7,631,506) 2,728,619
8,048,778 6,045,512 (7,631,506) 6,462,784
11,702,311 1,737,294 - 13,439,605
88,676,537 5,705,240 - 94,381,777
18,511,665 1,895,426 - 20,407,091
30,639,526 69,957 - 30,709,483
14,109,805 534,377 - 14,644,182
10,619,945 2,001,583 (32,099) 12,589,429
8,829 5,951 (8,829) 5,951
407,400 215,091 - 622,491
1,207,901 - - 1,207,901
175,883,919 12,164,919 (40,928) 188,007,910
(3,949,796) (216,086) - (4,165,882)
(16,292,404) (916,452) - (17,208,856)
(5,463,253) (317,412) - (5,780,665)
(11,506,614) (809,354) - (12,315,968)
(6,947,290) (608,023) - (7,555,313)
(7,343,202) (725,339) 32,099 (8,036,442)
(7,692 (1,476) 8,829 (339)
(50,035) (103,226) - (153,261)
(846,545) (31,834) - (878,379)
(52,406,831) (3,729,202) 40,928 (56,095,105)
123,477,088 8,435,717 - 131,912,805
$ 131,525,866 $ 14,481,229 $ (7,631,506) $ 138,375,589
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Balance at Balance at
12/31/22 Additions Retirements 12/31/23
Suburban Wastewater Fund
Non-depreciable Assets:
Land $ 1,896,050 $ - $ - $ 1,896,050
Capacity 248,561 - - 248,561
Construction in progress 1,421,586 4,463,282 (5,568,660) 316,208
Total Capital Assets Not Being
Depreciated 3,566,197 4,463,282 (5,568,660) 2,460,819
Depreciable Assets:
Interceptor & Collector Systems 39,577,398 2,126,983 - 41,704,381
Wells & Reservoirs 3,494,643 - - 3,494,643
Building Structure & Appurtenances 71,847,880 1,329,205 - 73,177,085
Metering System 429,778 - - 429,778
Right-To-Use Leased Equipment 8,829 5,951 (8,829) 5,951
Right-To-Use Leased Vehicles 1,100,894 44,421 (82,115) 1,063,200
Equipment 24,113,872 545,348 - 24,659,220
Total Capital Assets Being
Depreciated 140,573,294 4,051,908 (90,944) 144,534,258
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Interceptor & Collector Systems (12,389,291) (327,248) - (12,716,539)
Wells & Reservoirs (793,837) (63,539) - (857,376)
Building Structure & Appurtenances (26,380,940) (2,267,533) - (28,648,473)
Metering System (297,374) (10,610) - (307,984)
Right-To-Use Leased Equipment (7,692) (1,476) 8,829 (339)
Right-To-Use Leased Vehicles (735,894) (122,003) 3,737 (854,160)
Equipment (21,256,974) (623,017) - (21,879,991)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (61,862,002) (3,415,426) 12,566 (65,264,862)
Total Net Capital Assets Being
Depreciated 78,711,292 636,482 (78,378) 79,269,396
Total Capital Assets, Net $ 82,277,489 $ 5,099,764 $ (5,647,038) $ 81,730,215
Balance at Balance at
12/31/22 Additions Retirements 12/31/23
City Division Fund
Depreciable Assets:
Transportation Equipment $ 3,512,245 $ 798,308 $ (672,895) $ 3,637,658
Miscellaneous Equipment &
Computers 248,981 - - 248,981
Right-To-Use Leased Equipment 54,217 49,165 (54,217) 49,165
Right-To-Use Leased Vehicles 940,098 461,938 - 1,402,036
Office Furniture & Equipment 23,116 - - 23,116
Total Capital Assets Being
Depreciated 4,778,657 1,309,411 (727,112) 5,360,956
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Transportation Equipment (2,271,469) (306,811) 638,198 (1,940,082)
Miscellaneous Equipment &
Computers (248,981) - - (248,981)
Right-To-Use Leased Equipment (47,393) (9,831) 54,217 (3,007)
Right-To-Use Leased Vehicles (200,494) (211,182) - (411,676)
Office Furniture & Equipment (23,116) - - (23,116)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (2,791,453) (527,824) 692,415 (2,626,862)
Total Net Capital Assets Being
Depreciated 1,987,204 781,587 (34,697) 2,734,094
Total Capital Assets, Net $ 1,987,204 $ 781,587 $ (34,697) $ 2,734,094
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NOTE 5 — CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Balance at Balance at
12/31/22 Additions Retirements 12/31/23
Total Funds
Total Capital Assets Not Being
Depreciated $ 11614975 $ 10,508,794 $ (13,200,166) _$ 8,923,603
Total Capital Assets Being
Depreciated 321,235,870 17,526,238 (858,984) 337,903,124
Total Accumulated Depreciation (117,060,286) (7,672,452) 745,909 (123,986,829)
Total Net Capital Assets Being
Depreciated 204,175,584 9,853,786 (113,075) 213,916,295
Total Capital Assets, Net $ 215,790,559 $ 20,362,580 $ (13,313,241) $ 222,839,898
Balance at Balance at
12/31/21 Additions Retirements 12/31/22
Suburban Water Fund
Non-depreciable Assets:
Land $ 3,295,901 $ 38,572 $ - $ 3,334,473
Construction in progress 1,434,072 6,053,338 (2,773,105) 4,714,305
Total Capital Assets Not Being
Depreciated 4,729,973 6,091,910 (2,773,105) 8,048,778
Depreciable Assets:
Wells & Reserwoirs 11,069,710 632,601 - 11,702,311
Transmission & Distribution Mains 88,175,419 539,789 (38,671) 88,676,537
Service & Hydrants 18,461,760 49,905 - 18,511,665
Building Structure & Appurtenances 30,349,884 323,792 (34,150) 30,639,526
Metering System 13,988,178 121,627 - 14,109,805
Equipment 9,552,072 1,079,201 (11,328) 10,619,945
Right-To-Use Leased Equipment 8,829 - - 8,829
Right-To-Use Leased Vehicles 97,216 310,184 - 407,400
Capacity 1,207,901 - - 1,207,901
Total Capital Assets Being
Depreciated 172,910,969 3,057,099 (84,149) 175,883,919
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Wells & Reserwoirs (3,739,968) (209,828) - (3,949,796)
Transmission & Distribution Mains (15,417,409) (884,469) 9,474 (16,292,404)
Service & Hydrants (5,162,213) (301,040) - (5,463,253)
Building Structure & Appurtenances (10,729,898) (808,788) 32,072 (11,506,614)
Metering System (6,339,177) (608,113) - (6,947,290)
Equipment (6,807,833) (546,697) 11,328 (7,343,202)
Right-To-Use Leased Equipment (5,743) (1,949) - (7,692)
Right-To-Use Leased Vehicles (9,722 (40,313) - (50,035)
Capacity (814,711) (31,834 - (846,545)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (49,026,674) (3,433,031) 52,874 (52,406,831)
Total Net Capital Assets Being
Depreciated 123,884,295 (375,932 (31,275) 123,477,088
Total Capital Assets, Net $ 128,614,268 $ 5,715,978 (2,804,380) $ 131,525,866
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NOTE 5 — CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Balance at Balance at
12/31/21 Additions Retirements 12/31/22
Suburban Wastewater Fund
Non-depreciable Assets:
Land $ 1,896,050 $ - $ - $ 1,896,050
Capacity 579,587 - (331,026) 248,561
Construction in progress 829,357 3,081,527 (2,489,298) 1,421,586
Total Capital Assets Not Being
Depreciated 3,304,994 3,081,527 (2,820,324) 3,566,197
Depreciable Assets:
Interceptor & Collector Systems 39,317,989 259,409 - 39,577,398
Wells & Reservoirs 3,494,643 - - 3,494,643
Building Structure & Appurtenances 70,916,999 930,881 - 71,847,880
Metering System 429,778 - - 429,778
Right-To-Use Leased Equipment 8,829 - - 8,829
Right-To-Use Leased Vehicles 983,239 117,655 - 1,100,894
Equipment 23,887,742 398,414 (172,284) 24,113,872
Total Capital Assets Being
Depreciated 139,039,219 1,706,359 (172,284) 140,573,294
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Interceptor & Collector Systems (12,025,413) (363,878) - (12,389,291)
Wells & Reservoirs (730,297) (63,540) - (793,837)
Building Structure & Appurtenances (24,114,938) (2,266,002) - (26,380,940)
Metering System (286,537) (10,837) - (297,374)
Right-To-Use Leased Equipment (5,743) (1,949) - (7,692)
Right-To-Use Leased Vehicles (532,530) (203,364) - (735,894)
Equipment (20,835,811) (590,257) 169,094 (21,256,974)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (58,531,269) (3,499,827) 169,094 (61,862,002)
Total Net Capital Assets Being
Depreciated 80,507,950 (1,793,468) (3,190) 78,711,292
Total Capital Assets, Net $ 83,812,944 $ 1,288,059 $ (2,823,514) $ 82,277,489
Balance at Balance at
12/31/21 Additions Retirements 12/31/22
City Division Fund
Depreciable Assets:
Transportation Equipment $ 3,074,705 $ 839,241 $ (401,701) $ 3,512,245
Miscellaneous Equipment &
Computers 248,981 - - 248,981
Right-To-Use Leased Equipment 54,217 - - 54,217
Right-To-Use Leased Vehicles 338,169 601,929 - 940,098
Office Furniture & Equipment 23,116 - - 23,116
Total Capital Assets Being
Depreciated 3,739,188 1,441,170 (401,701) 4,778,657
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Transportation Equipment (2,376,252) (282,957) 387,740 (2,271,469)
Miscellaneous Equipment &
Computers (248,007) (974) - (248,981)
Right-To-Use Leased Equipment (35,694) (11,699) (47,393)
Right-To-Use Leased Vehicles (110,292) (90,202) (200,494)
Office Furniture & Equipment (23,116) - - (23,116)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (2,793,361) (385,832) 387,740 (2,791,453)
Total Net Capital Assets Being
Depreciated 945,827 1,055,338 (13,961) 1,987,204
Total Capital Assets, Net $ 945,827 $ 1,055,338 $ (13,961) $ 1,987,204

52



LEHIGH COUNTY AUTHORITY
ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVANIA

Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 5 — CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Balance at Balance at
12/31/21 Additions Retirements 12/31/22

Total Funds
Total Capital Assets Not Being

Depreciated $ 8,034,967 $ 9,173,437 $  (5,593,429) $ 11,614,975
Total Capital Assets Being

Depreciated 315,689,376 6,204,628 (658,134) 321,235,870
Total Accumulated Depreciation (110,351,304) (7,318,690) 609,708 (117,060,286)
Total Net Capital Assets Being

Depreciated 205,338,072 (1,114,062) (48,426) 204,175,584
Total Capital Assets, Net $ 213,373,039 $ 8,059,375 $ (5,641,855) $ 215,790,559

Under an agreement dated December 29, 1981, the Authority acquired 1,400,000 gallons per day
of sewage treatment capacity ("grandfathered capacity") from the City of Allentown in addition to the
amortized costs. This capacity was available to municipalities in Western Lehigh County for developments
connected to the wastewater system. When a municipality required capacity to serve a business or
residence, a fee was paid and recorded as a sale of capacity on the Authority's books. In addition, on an
as-needed basis, the Authority purchases sewage treatment capacity from the City for non-grandfathered
users ("General Pool Capacity"). This capacity is recorded on the books at the date of purchase and is
reduced as such capacity is sold to the various municipalities and is included as a capital asset in the above
table. Atyear-end 2023 and 2022 the total value of this capacity was $248,561 and $248,561, respectively.

NOTE 6 — SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENT

On August 7, 2013, the Lehigh County Authority (“LCA”") entered into the Allentown Water and
Sewer Utility System Concession and Lease Agreement (the “Service Concession Arrangement”) with the
City of Allentown, under which the LCA leased the Water and Sewer Utility Systems and retained the right
and related obligation to operate those systems as the Concessionaire for 50 years. The LCA must operate
and maintain the systems in accordance with the Service Concession Arrangement. The LCA entered the
Service Concession Arrangement to aid further regionalization of water and sewer services in the Lehigh
Valley and to benefit the ratepayers with the overall organizational efficiencies. The LCA paid the City an
upfront payment of $211,332,218. The LCA also agreed to make required annual payments of $500,000
starting in 2016, and every year thereafter, adjusted for inflation using the consumer price index. In addition
to the required annual payments, the LCA must establish a Capex Fund (held in trust) no later than January
1, 2033. The LCA must make annual deposits into the Capex Fund in the amounts of $1,000,000 for years
2033 to 2042, $2,000,000 for years 2043 to 2052, and $3,000,000 for years 2053 to 2062, adjusted for
inflation using the consumer price index. These funds can be withdrawn by the LCA to pay costs incurred
with respect to major capital improvements meeting certain requirements of the concession agreement. On
the reversion date of the Water and Sewer Utility System, any moneys or securities held in the Capex Fund
shall be applied first to pay any unpaid termination compensation, AA-Compensation and Concession
Compensation and any amount remaining shall be remitted to the City. In conjunction with the execution
of the service concession arrangement capital assets with an approximate fair value of $1,485,804 were
conveyed to LCA from the City.

This transaction meets the criteria for reporting under Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) Statement No. 60 “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service Concession Arrangements”.
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As aresult, an intangible asset (Service Concession Arrangement) of $246,205,824, representing:
I) the upfront payment, less the fair value of conveyed capital assets, II) the discounted future annual
payments, and Ill) the discounted future Capex Fund funding requirements was recorded by LCA on the
execution date. The intangible asset will be amortized on the straight-line method over the life of the
agreement (50 years). Cost of improvements to the facility during the term of the Service Concession
Arrangement that increase capacity or efficiency of the facility are recorded as increases to the intangible
asset and amortized systematically over the term of the arrangement. Costs of $4,926,651 and $5,137,503
were recorded as increases to the intangible asset in 2023, and 2022, respectively. Amortization expense
in the amount of $6,227,799 and $6,106,153 was recognized in 2023, and 2022, respectively related to the
intangible asset. The net book value of the asset was $245,998,066 and $247,299,215 at December 31,
2023, and 2022, respectively.

In addition to the intangible asset, LCA recorded an initial liability (‘SCA Payable”) of $36,359,411
representing: 1) the present value of future annual payments, and II) the present value of future Capex Fund
deposit requirements on the execution date. This liability is adjusted annually to reflect the present value
of the future payments. Interest expense of $3,216,234 and $3,074,043 was recognized in 2023 and 2022,
respectively. The liability was $69,626,135 and $67,771,081 on December 31, 2023, and 2022,
respectively.

As part of the Service Concession Agreement the LCA was required to offer employment to
substantially all existing employees of the Water and Sewer System. The LCA was required to provide
existing levels of certain benefits to these employees, including OPEB and Pension. This resulted in the
adoption of a new OPEB plan in 2013 (Note 12) and the addition of new employees into the LCA Pension.
The impact of the addition of these new employees into the plan resulted in an unfunded actuarial accrued
liability of $220,059 on August 8, 2013.

In 2020 the Authority and the City of Allentown entered into an agreement which modified certain
terms of original Service Concession Arrangement. The modified terms included future payments to be
made by the Authority to the City, as well as changes to the terms in which the Authority may increase rates
to customers of the system. This agreement resulted in the Authority recording additions of $14,733,768
to the intangible asset and SCA Payabile liability in 2020.

NOTE 7 — FACILITIES PLANNING COSTS

Facilities Planning Costs for 2023 and 2022 consist of the following:

As of As of
12/31/22 Additions Retirements 12/31/23

Suburban Water Fund
Facilities Planning Costs $ 680,076 $ 13,963 $ (101,361) $ 592,678
Less Accumulated Amortization (447,185) (205,296) 101,361 (551,120)

Total Suburban Water Facilities

Costs - Net 232,891 (191,333) - 41,558
Suburban Wastewater Fund
Facilities Planning Costs 14,822,695 1,772,107 (2,694,877) 13,899,925
Less Accumulated Amortization (9,817,217) (3,289,598) 2,694,877 (10,411,938)

Total Suburban Wastewater

Facilities Planning Costs - Net 5,005,478 (1,517,491) - 3,487,987
Total Facilities Planning Costs - Net $ 5,238,369 $ (1,708,824) $ - $3,529,545
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Suburban Water Fund

Facilities Planning Costs
Less Accumulated Amortization

Total Suburban Water Facilities

Planning Costs - Net
Suburban Wastewater Fund
Facilities & Planning Costs

Less Accumulated Amortization
Total Suburban Wastewater

Planning Facilities Costs - Net

Total Planning Facilities Costs - Net

NOTE 8 — LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt for 2023 and 2022 consists of the following:

Suburban Water Fund
Bonds
Water Revenue Bonds
Series of 2017
Water Revenue Bonds
Series of 2021
Subtotal
Add Bond Premium
Total Suburban Water Fund Bonds
Less Current Maturities
Net Suburban Water Fund
Long-Term Bonds

Notes from Direct Borrowings
2011 Pennsylvania Infrastructure
Investment Authority Note
Water Revenue Bonds
Series of 2022
Total Suburban Water Fund Direct Borrowings
Less Current Maturities
Net Suburban Water Fund
Long-Term Direct Borrowings

Total Net Suburban Water Fund Long-Term

As of As of
12/31/21 Additions Retirements 12/31/22
$ 606,537 $ 96,748 $ (23,209) $ 680,076
(243,702) (226,692) 23,209 (447.,185)
362,835 (129,944) - 232,891
13,960,439 873,051 (10,795) 14,822,695
(6,230,824) (3,597,188) 10,795 (9.817,217)
7,729,615 (2,724,137) - 5,005,478
$ 8,092,450 $ (2,854,081) $ - $ 5,238,369
Balance Balance Principal Due
Outstanding As Additions / Outstanding As Within One
of 12/31/22 Accretions Retirements of 12/31/23 Year
$ 13,910,000 $ - $ (350,000) $ 13,560,000 $ 360,000
16,000,000 - (1,585,000) 14,415,000 1,645,000
$ 29,910,000 $ - $ (1,935,000) $ 27,975,000 $ 2,005,000
3,148,039 - (345,761) 2,802,278
$ 33,058,039 $ - $ (2,280,761) $ 30,777,278
(2,005,000)
8 28772278
$ 787,494 $ - $ (75,540) $ 711,954 $ 76,690
63,629 6,950,000 - 7,013,629 -
$ 851,123 $ 6,950,000 $ (75,540) $ 7,725,583 $ 76,690
(76,690)
$ 7648893
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Suburban Wastewater Fund
Bonds
2011 Sewer Revenue Bonds
Series A
Less Current Maturities
Net Suburban Wastewater Fund
Long-Term Bonds

Notes from Direct Borrowings
2009 Pennsylvania Infrastructure
Investment Authority Note
2013 Pennsylvania Infrastructure
Investment Authority Note
2015 Pennsylvania Infrastructure
Investment Authority Note
Total Suburban Wastewater Fund Direct Borrowings
Less Current Maturities
Net Suburban Wastewater Fund
Long-Term Direct Borrowings

Total Net Suburban Wastewater Fund Long Term

City Division Fund
Bonds

2013 Water and Sewer Revenue
Bonds, Series A

2013 Water and Sewer Capital
Appreciation Revenue Bonds,
Series B

2020 Water and Sewer Revenue
Bonds
Subtotal
Less Bond Discount

Total City Division Fund Bonds

Less Current Maturities
Net City Division Fund Long-Term Bonds

Direct Borrowings
2020 Series ARefunding Bonds
2023 Pennsylvania Infrastructure
Investment Authority Note
Total City Fund Direct Borrowings
Less Current Maturities
Net City Division Fund Long-Term
Direct Borrowings

Total Net City Division Fund Long Term

Total Net Long-Term Debt

Suburban Water Fund
Bonds
Water Revenue Bonds
Series of 2011
Water Revenue Bonds
Series of 2017
Water Revenue Bonds
Series of 2021
Subtotal
Add Bond Premium
Total Suburban Water Fund Bonds
Less Current Maturities
Net Suburban Water Fund
Long-Term Bonds
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Balance Balance
Outstanding As of Additions / Outstanding As of Principal Due
12/31/22 Accretions Retirements 12/31/23 Within One Year
1,133,791 $ - (122,966) $ 1,010,825 $ 225,680
(225,680)
$ 785,145
2,424,027 $ - (273,569) $ 2,150,458 $ 280,617
1,744,846 - (142,237) 1,602,609 144,400
555,083 - (37,570) 517,513 38,231
4,723,956 $ - (453,376) $ 4,270,580 $ 463,248
(463,248)
3,807,332
$ 4592477
107,615,000 $ - - $ 107,615,000 $ -
68,671,563 4,053,452 (2,410,000) 70,315,015 2,804,460
161,035,000 - - 161,035,000 -
337,321,563 $ 4,053,452 (2,410,000) $ 338,965,015 $ 2,804,460
(4,134,698) - 165,941 (3,968,757)
333,186,865 $ 4,053,452 (2,244,059) 334,996,258
(2,804,460)
8 332101798
14,640,000 $ - (1,245,000) $ 13,395,000 $ 1,280,000
- 1,371,117 (31,043) 1,340,074 62,553
14,640,000 $ 1,371,117 (1,276,043) $ 14,735,074 $ 1,342,553
(1,342,553)
8 13392521
_$ 345584319
_$__ 386597,967
Balance Balance
Outstanding As of Additions / Outstanding As of Principal Due
12/31/21 Accretions Retirements 12/31/22 Within One Year
$ 65,767 $ $ (65,767) $ - $ -
14,250,000 (340,000) 13,910,000 350,000
17,445,000 (1,445,000) 16,000,000 1,585,000
$ 31,760,767 $ $ (1,850,767) $ 29,910,000 $ 1,935,000
3,493,800 (345,761) 3,148,039
$ 35,254,567 $ $ (2,196,528) $ 33,058,039
(1,935,000)
$ 31,123,039
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Balance Balance Principal Due
Outstanding As of Additions / Outstanding As of Within One
12/31/21 Accretions Retirements 12/31/22 Year
Suburban Water Fund
Notes from Direct Borrowings
2011 Pennsylvania Infrastructure
Investment Authority Note 861,904 - (74,410) 787,494 75,541
Water Revenue Bonds
Series of 2022 - 63,629 - 63,629 -
Total Suburban Water Fund Direct Borrowings 861,904 $ 63,629 (74,410) $ 851,123 $ 75,541
Less Current Maturities (75,541)
Net Suburban Water Fund
Long-Term Direct Borrowings $ 775,582
Total Net Suburban Water Fund Long-Term $ 31,898,621
Suburban Wastewater Fund
Sewer Revenue Bonds
2011 Sewer Revenue Bonds
Series A 1,252,497 $ - (118,706) $ 1,133,791 $ 241,714
Less Current Maturities (241,714)
Net Suburban Wastewater Fund
Long-Term Bonds $ 892,077
Direct Borrowings
2009 Pennsylvania Infrastructure
Investment Authority Note 2,690,721 $ - (266,694) $ 2,424,027 $ 273,567
2013 Pennsylvania Infrastructure
Investment Authority Note 1,884,953 - (140,107) 1,744,846 142,238
2015 Pennsylvania Infrastructure
Investment Authority Note 592,007 - (36,924) 555,083 37,571
Total Suburban Wastewater Fund Direct Borrowings 5,167,681 $ - (443,725) $ 4,723,956 $ 453,376
Less Current Maturities (453,376)
Net Suburban Wastewater Fund
Long-Term Direct Borrowings 4,270,580
Net Suburban Wastewater Fund Long Term $ 5,162,657
City Division Fund
Bonds
2013 Water and Sewer Revenue
Bonds, Series A 107,615,000 $ - - $ 107,615,000 $ -
2013 Water and Sewer Capital
Appreciation Revenue Bonds,
Series B 66,656,927 3,909,636 (1,895,000) 68,671,563 2,196,583
2020 Water and Sewer Revenue
Bonds 161,035,000 - - 161,035,000 -
Subtotal 335,306,927 $ 3,909,636 (1,895,000) $ 337,321,563 $ 2,196,583
Less Bond Discount (4,300,639) - 165,941 (4,134,698)
Total City Division Fund Debt 331,006,288 $ 3,909,636 (1,729,059) 333,186,865
Less Current Maturities (2,196,583)
Net City Division Fund Long-Term Debt $ 330,990,282
Direct Borrowings
2020 Series A Refunding Bonds 15,850,000 $ - (1,210,000) $ 14,640,000 $ 1,245,000
Less Current Maturities (1,245,000)
Net City Division Fund
Direct Borrowings 13,395,000
Total Net City Division Fund Long Term 344,385,282
Total Net Long Term Debt 381,446,560
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The Authority’s direct borrowings hold provisions that in the event of certain defaults the notes or
bonds become immediately due and payable at the discretion of the lenders.

A summary of the long-term payable is provided in the ensuing paragraphs.
A. Suburban Division Water Fund

On December 21, 2011, the Authority issued $1,185,400 of 2011 Water Bonds to refinance the
balance of the 2001 Pennvest loan and to cover financing costs. The maturity date for the new bonds
remained on July 1, 2022, and carries a fixed interest rate of 2.75%. The loan is secured by a pledge of
the gross receipts and revenues of the water system and resulted in a 2% present value savings of refunded
principal.

On June 29, 2011, Pennvest approved a $1,660,303 loan to the Authority for a Water Meter
Replacement program. Terms of the loan provide that the Authority will be reimbursed up to the limit of the
loan amount. Interest payments began on November 1, 2011. Principal payments began on October 1,
2012. The loan carries a 1% interest rate for the first five years and a 1.51% annual interest rate for the
remainder of the 20-year term. The debt is secured by the project collateral.

On June 20, 2017, the Authority issued Water Revenue Bond Series 2017 in the amount of
$14,900,000. The bond was issued to fund capital projects under the Authority’s Capital Improvements
Program, fund a deposit to the Debt Service Reserve Fund, and pay the costs related to the issuance of
the Bonds. Interest payments began on November 1, 2017, and are payable every May and November.
Principal payments began on November 1, 2020, and end on November 1, 2047. The bonds carry fixed
annual interest rates ranging from of 3% to 5%.

In June 2021, the Authority issued Water Revenue Bond, Series of 2021 in the amount of
$17,740,000. The bonds were issued at a premium of $3,326,942. Proceeds of the bond together with
other funds of the Authority were used to currently refund the Authority’s 2007 Pennworks loan, currently
refund the Authority’'s Water Revenue Bonds, Series A of 2010, currently refund the Authority’s Water
Revenue Bonds, 2015 A Series, fund a debt service reserve, and pay the costs and expenses of issuing
the Bond. The bond carries a fixed interest rate of 4.00% per annum, payable commencing on November
1, 2021, and semi-annually thereafter on the interest payment date. The bond matures on November 1,
2031, and is secured by a pledge of system revenues. The refunding decreased the Authority’s total debt
service payments by $3,037,117 and resulted in an economic gain of $2,676,038.

In August 2022, the Authority issued Water Revenue Bond, Series 2022 in the amount of
$12,255,000. The bond was issued to fund capital projects of the Suburban Water Fund and pay the cost
related to issuance of the bond. Interest payments began on May 1, 2023, and are payable every May and
November. Principal payments begin on November 1, 2028, and end on November 1, 2042. The bonds
carry fixed annual interest of 4.04% through November 1, 2032, and thereafter variable interest of 80% of
the Prime Rate with an interest rate cap of 5.75%. The Authority draws funds as needed. As of December
31, 2024, the Authority has drawn $7,013,629 on the bond.
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The schedule of principal maturity and annual debt service for the suburban water fund is as follows:

Notes from
Bonds Direct Borrowings
Principal Total Principal Total

Year Amount Interest Amount Interest
2024 $ 2,005,000 $ 1,045,214 $ 76,690 $ 293,572
2025 2,090,000 961,414 77,856 292,406
2026 1,890,000 874,014 79,039 291,222
2027 2,200,000 794,414 80,241 290,021
2028 2,275,000 702,214 122,461 288,800
2029-2033 8,360,000 2,229,370 3,424,667 1,391,208
2034-2038 2,795,000 1,352,659 3,864,629 622,676
2039-2043 3,295,000 858,430 - -
2044-2048 3,065,000 262,912 - -
$ 27,975,000 $9,080,641 $ 7,725,583 $ 3,469,905

B. Suburban Wastewater Fund

On December 21, 2011, the balance of the 2000 Pennvest loan was refinanced by the 2011 Sewer
Series A bonds. The new bonds ($2,166,100) also provided additional funds to pay for a portion of the
Vera Cruz sewer project and to cover bond issue financing costs. The maturity date for the new bonds is
November 1, 2031. The revenues of the common rate collector systems are serving as loan collateral. The
loan carries an interest rate of 2.25% for the first 5 years and a variable rate thereafter, which equates to
70% of the 10-year average prime rate with 3% minimum and 5.5% maximum rate caps.

On November 16, 2009, the Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority (Pennvest) approved
a loan of $5,878,847 to the Authority to fund the design and construction of a 3-million-gallon flow
equalization basin and pump station. The purpose of the project is to shave off and hold wet weather flows
to address system capacity deficiencies during precipitation events. The loan carries an annual interest
rate of 1.274% for the first five years and 2.547% for the remainder of the loan.

The loan is secured by a pledge of gross receipts and revenues obtained from users of the Western
Lehigh Interceptor System. The Authority may not prepay at any time all or any portion of the unpaid
principal without the prior written consent of Pennvest. As of December 31, 2012, the Authority received
all ($5,389,323) of the reimbursements for project expenditures. The Authority began paying both interest
and principal on February 1, 2011.

On June 19, 2013, the Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority (Pennvest) approved a
loan of $2,931,170 to the Authority to fund the design and construction of a 40,000 gpd wastewater
treatment plant to be built at Arcadia West to replace the existing plant. As of December 31, 2015, the
Authority received all ($2,931,170) of the reimbursement for project expenditures. The loan carries an
interest rate of 1% for the first 5 years and 1.51% thereafter, for a period of 15 years.
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On February 25, 2015, the Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority (Pennvest) approved
a loan of $1,000,0000 to the Authority to fund the Wynnewood Terrace pump station and force main
replacement. The loan carries an interest rate of 1% for the first 5 years and 1.743% thereafter, for a period
of 15 years.

The schedule of principal maturity and debt service for the suburban wastewater fund is as follows:

Notes from
Bonds Direct Borrowings
Principal Total Principal Total

Year Amount Interest Amount Interest

2024 $ 225,680 $ 52,987 $ 463,248 $ 83,431

2025 131,560 45,888 473,347 73,332

2026 136,280 38,534 483,677 63,002

2027 141,169 30,916 494,243 52,434

2028 146,234 23,025 505,053 41,624
2029-2033 229,902 21,470 1,691,806 72,850
2034-2038 - - 159,206 2,292

$1,010,825 $ 212,820 $ 4,270,580 $ 388,965

C. CITY DIVISION FUND

On July 31, 2013, the Authority issued, in aggregate $307,683,599 of Water and Sewer Revenue
Bonds comprised of $245,590,000 of Series 2013A Revenue Bonds, $43,358,599 of Series 2013B Capital
Appreciation Revenue Bonds and $18,735,000 of Series 2013C Federally Taxable Revenue Bonds. The
bonds were issued at a discount of $10,923,458.

The 2013 bonds were issued to provide funding for 1) a single, up-front concession and lease
payment to the City of Allentown pursuant to the Allentown Water and Sewer utility system Concession and
Lease Agreement, 2) projected capital improvements to the Concessioned System, 3) deposits to certain
reserve and other funds, and 4) transaction costs and expenses incurred in connection with the acquisition
of the Concessioned System and the issuance of the 2013 Bonds.

The 2013 Bonds were issued under and secured by a Trust Indenture between the Authority and
Manufacturers and Traders Trust Company, the concession trustee. The 2013 Bonds are payable from
and secured by a pledge and an assignment by the authority of all the concessionaire interest, including
revenues derived from operating the Concessioned System certain service charges imposed by the
Authority for use of the Concessioned System and certain payments received from the municipal customers
of the Concessioned System.

The 2013 Bonds are also secured by a Debt Service Reserve Fund initially funded at $28,090,273
and held by the Concession Trustee and other funds including an Operations and Maintenance Reserve
Fund and a Major Maintenance Reserve Fund in the amounts of $9,199,515 and $7,500,000, respectively.
These funds are available to pay shortfalls in the scheduled debt service on the 2013 Bonds.

The Series 2013A bonds bear interest of 5% - 5.125% with final maturity on December 1, 2047.

The Series 2013 Appreciation bonds bear interest of 3.21% - 6.21% with final maturity on December 1,
2038.
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In October 2018, the Authority issued Water and Sewer Revenue Bond, Series 2018 (Federally
Taxable) in the amount of $18,735,000. Proceeds of the bond together with other funds of the Authority
were used to currently refund the 2013 Series C bonds, fund a debt service reserve, and pay the costs and
expenses of issuing the Bond. The bond carries a fixed interest rate of 4.75% per annum, payable
commencing on June 1, 2019, and semi-annually thereafter on the interest payment date until June 1, 2029,
at which time the fixed rate shall be reset to a floating or variable interest rate. At no time and in no instance
shall the variable interest rate exceed 6.5% during the variable rate period. The bond matures on December
1, 2033, and is secured by the Authority’s interest in the Concessioned System. The refunding increased
the Authority’s total debt service payments by $7,817,099 and resulted in an economic loss of $2,503,652.

In September 2020, the Authority issued Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 2020 (Federally
Taxable) in the amount of $161,035,000. Proceeds of the bonds together with other funds of the Authority
were used to (1) advance refund a portion of the Authority’s Water and Sewer Revenue Bond (City of
Allentown Concession), Series 2013A; (2) fund a debt service reserve fund with respect to the 2020 Bonds;
and (3) pay transaction costs and expenses in connection with the issuance of the bonds. Interest rates
on the bonds range from 3.232% to 3.632% per annum, payable commencing on December 1, 2020, and
semi-annually thereafter on the interest payment date until maturity. The bonds are payable from and
secured by a pledge and assignment by the Authority of all the Concessionaire Interest in and to the
Concessioned System created by the Concession Agreement. The refunding resulted in a deferred
refunding loss of $27,792,709, an increase in the Authority’s total debt service payments of $55,617,288
and resulted in an economic gain of $9,929,809.

In October 2020, the Authority issued Water and Sewer Revenue Bond, Series A of 2020 (Federally
Taxable) in the amount of $18,150,000. Proceeds of the bond together with other funds of the Authority
were used to currently refund the 2018 Series bonds, fund a debt service reserve, and pay the costs and
expenses of issuing the Bond. The bond carries a fixed interest rate of 2.90% per annum, payable
commencing on December 1, 2020, and semi-annually thereafter on the interest payment date until June
1, 2026, at which time the fixed rate shall be reset to 5.00%. The bond matures on December 1, 2033, and
is secured by the Authority’s interest in the Concessioned System. The refunding decreased the Authority’s
total debt service payments by $1,928,034 and resulted in an economic gain of $1,419,618.

In May 2023, the Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority (Pennvest) approved a loan of
$1,469,273 to the Authority to fund the High Service Pump Variable Frequency Drive Replacement Project.
The loan carries an interest rate of 1% and matures in 2043.

The schedule of principal maturity and debt service for the City division is as follows:

Notes & Bonds from

Bonds Direct Borrowings
Principal Total Principal Total

Year Amount Interest Amount Interest
2024 $ 2,804,460 $ 11,191,901 1,342,553 401,571
2025 3,157,021 11,389,341 1,383,182 363,822
2026 3,470,538 11,645,823 1,193,817 551,601
2027 3,748,297 11,958,065 1,249,458 494,460
2028 3,988,664 12,327,697 1,310,106 434,563
2029-2033 22,565,508 68,951,297 7,570,471 1,163,621
2034-2038 30,580,527 91,871,278 352,664 25,678
2039-2043 61,565,000 49,674,556 332,823 7,683
2044-2048 57,150,000 34,112,744 - -
2049-2053 61,210,000 22,352,643 - -
2054-2058 72,600,000 10,960,628 - -
2059-2063 16,125,000 585,660 - -
$ 338,965,015 $ 337,021,633 $ 14,735,074 $ 3,442,999
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During its operations, the Authority has transactions between funds to finance operations and
provide services. The Suburban Water fund has financed the construction and expansion of the Authority’s
Operation Center and Information Technology Upgrades and is being reimbursed over time by the
Suburban Wastewater fund for its share of the costs. Certain cost incurred by the City Division fund, were
initially paid by the Suburban Water fund, and will be reimbursed to the Suburban Water fund from the City
Division fund. For reporting purposes, the transactions of the Internal Service are included with the
Suburban Water and Suburban Wastewater and City Division funds on a proportional basis. The interfund
receivables and payables are as follows:

2023 2022
Interfund Interfund Interfund Interfund
Fund Receivables Payables Receivables Payables
Enterprise Funds:
City Division $ - $ - $ - $ -
Suburban Water 1,624,525 - 1,577,517 -
Suburban Wastewater - 1,624,525 - 1,577,517
Total $ 1624525 $ 1624525 $ 1577517 $ 1577517

NOTE 10 — DEVELOPER DEPOSITS

Developer Deposits represent funds received by the Authority from developers to cover the costs
of plan reviews and project inspections and to ensure that infrastructure improvements are constructed in
accordance with approved plans. Deposits for developments to be completed within one year are recorded
as current liabilities in the amount of $592,877 and $340,914 as of December 31, 2023, and 2022,
respectively. Deposits for developments not expected to be completed by the end of one year are recorded
as long-term liabilities in the amount of $199,036 and $142,407 as of December 31, 2023, and 2022,
respectively.

NOTE 11 — COMMITMENTS & CONTINGENCIES

In addition to the commitments disclosed in Note 6 related to the Service Concession Arrangement,
the Authority as of December 31, 2023, through contractual agreements, had construction commitments of
$5,712,581 for various capital projects as compared to $4,017,405 at year-end 2022. Operating and Capital
reserves, construction note proceeds and grants will fund these expenditures.
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A. Health & Welfare Plan For Suburban Employees (Suburban Plan)
Suburban Plan:

Plan Description: The Authority through the Pennsylvania Municipal Health Insurance Cooperative
offers a single employer defined benefit plan to eligible retirees for health insurance benefits. The Suburban
Plan is reported as the Post Employment Health Trust Fund in the accompanying financial statements and
does not issue stand-alone statements.

Management of the Suburban Plan is vested in the Authority’s nine members Board of Directors,
who are appointed by the Lehigh County Executive and approved by the Lehigh County Commissioners.

Suburban Plan Membership: On January 1, 2023, Plan membership consisted of the following:

Inactive plan members or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments 22

Inactive plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefit payments -

Active plan members 9
Total 31

The Suburban Plan is closed to new entrants (employees) hired on or after January 1, 2005.

Benefits Provided: Any employee hired prior to January 1, 2005, and retiring with at least 10 years
of service is eligible to receive medical and prescription drug coverage at age 65 (as a supplement to
Medicare). This coverage will include the spouse of the retiree if the retiree is living. The authority to
establish and amend the benefit terms of the Suburban Plan resides with the nine-member Board of
Directors.

Contributions: The authority to establish and amend the contribution requirements of the Authority
and plan members also resides with the nine-member Board of Directors. The Board establishes rates
based on an actuarially determined rate. Based on the funded status of the Suburban Plan and the latest
actuarial valuations neither the plan members or the Authority were required to make contributions for the
years ended December 31, 2023, and 2022.

Investments: The Suburban Plan’s policy regarding the allocation of invested assets is established
and may be amended by the nine-member Board of Directors. It is the policy of the Board of Directors to
pursue an investment strategy that reduces risk though diversification of the portfolio by investing in a
variety of equities and fixed income securities. The following is the Suburban Plan’s target asset allocation
as of December 31, 2023, and 2022:

2023
Asset Class Target Allocation Asset Class Target Allocation
Domestic Equity
Large Cap 52.6% International Equity 0.0%
Small/Mid Cap 2.6% Non-US Debt 15.1%
Bonds 24.1% Cash 5.6%
2022
Asset Class Target Allocation Asset Class Target Allocation
Domestic Equity
Large Cap 31.6% International Equity 16.0%
Small/Mid Cap 20.4% Non-US Debt 6.0%
Bonds 22.0% Cash 4.0%
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The annual money-weighted rate of return on investments, net of investment expense, was 14.6%
and -14.2%, for the years ended December 31, 2023, and 2022, respectively. The money-weighted rate
of return expresses investment performance, net of investment expense, adjusted for the changing amounts
invested.

See Note 2 to the financial statements for additional details on the plan’s investments.

Net OPEB Liability of the Suburban Plan: The components of the net OPEB liability of the Suburban
Plan on December 31, 2023, and 2022, were as follows:

2023 2022
Total Plan OPEB Liability $ 2,000,771 $ 2,193,319
Plan Fiduciary Net Position 3,781,279 3,357,628
Plan's Net OPEB Liability/(Asset) $(1,780,508) $(1,164,309)
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of
the Total OPEB Liability/(Asset) 189.0% 153.1%

Actuarial Assumptions: The Suburban Plan’s net OPEB liability was measured as of December 31,
2023, and 2022, and the plan’s total OPEB lability used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined
by actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2023, and January 1, 2021, respectively. The actuary utilized update
procedures to roll forward the Suburban Plan’s total OPEB liability in the January 1, 2023, and January 1,
2021, actuarial valuations to the December 31, 2023, and 2022 measurement dates.

The Suburban Plan’s total OPEB liability in the January 1, 2023, actuarial valuation was determined
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless
otherwise specified:

Inflation 2.45% for 2022 and 2.47% for 2023

Salary Increases 5.0%, average, including inflation.

Investment Rate of Return 6.27%, net of OPEB plan investment expense,
including inflation.

Healthcare Cost Trend Rates For the December 31, 2023, Measurement Date:
6.25% during 2024 to an ultimate rate of 4.00% in
2061.

For the December 31, 2022, Measurement Date:
.29% in 2023 to an ultimate rate of 4.75% in 2024.

Cost Sharing with Inactive Plan Members Eligible retirees who retired prior to January 1,
2005 contribute 50% of premiums, retirees who
retire after January 1, 2005, contribute 21% of the
premiums.

Mortality rates were based on the 2010 Public General Amount Weighted Mortality Tables projected
to 2028 using Scale MP-2021.
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It is assumed that 100% of eligible retirees and spouses will participate in the plan.

The actuarial assumptions used in the January 1, 2023, valuation was based on historical results,
as a recent experience study was not completed.

The long-term expected rate of return on the Suburban Plan’s OPEB investments was determined
using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.
These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected
future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best
estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the target asset allocation
as of December 31, 2023, and 2022 are summarized in the following tables:

2023
Long-Term Expected Long-Term Expected
Asset Class Real Rate of Return Asset Class Real Rate of Return
Domestic Equity
Large Cap 6.20% International Equity 6.91%
Small/Mid Cap 9.72% Non-US Debt 1.34%
Bonds 2.46% Cash 0.76%
2022
Long-Term Expected Long-Term Expected
Asset Class Real Rate of Return Asset Class Real Rate of Return
Domestic Equity
Large Cap 5.37% International Equity 6.22%
Small/Mid Cap 6.53% Non-US Debt 0.32%
Bonds 1.36% Blend -0.45%

Discount Rate: The discount rate used to measure the Suburban Plan’s total OPEB liability was
6.27% and 6.79% on December 31, 2023, and 2022. The projection of cash flows used to determine the
discount rate assumed that the Authority’s contributions to the plan will be made at rates equal to the
actuarially determined contribution rates. Based on those assumptions, the Suburban Plan’s fiduciary net
position was projected to available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on Suburban Plan’s investments was applied to all periods
of projected benefit payments to determine the Suburban Plan’s total OPEB liability.
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Changes in the net OPEB liability for the Suburban plan for the year ended December 31, 2023,
were as follows:

Increase (Decrease)

Total OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net OPEB
Liability Net Position Liability/(asset)
(a) (b) (@) - (b)
Balances as of 12/31/22 $ 2,193,319 $ 3,357,628 $ (1,164,309)
Service cost 7,962 - 7,962
Interest cost 130,870 - 130,870
Differences between expected
and actual experience - - -

Changes in Assumptions (228,105) - (228,105)
Contributions - employer (10,175) 47,039 (57,214)
Contributions - members - - -
Net investment income - 490,066 (490,066)
Benefit payments (93,100) (93,100) -
Plan administrative expenses - (20,354) 20,354
Other changes - - -
Net Changes (192,548) 423,651 (616,199)
Balances as of 12/31/23 $ 2,000,771 $ 3,781,279 $  (1,780,508)

Changes in the net OPEB liability for the Suburban plan for the year ended December 31, 2022,
were as follows:

Increase (Decrease)

Total OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net OPEB
Liability Net Position Liability/(asset)
(a) (b) (@) - (b)
Balances as of 12/31/21 $ 2,130,976 $ 4,028,887 $ (1,897,911)
Service cost 10,732 - 10,732
Interest cost 142,391 - 142,391
Differences between expected
and actual experience - - -

Changes in Assumptions - - -
Contributions - employer - 12,008 (12,008)
Contributions - members - - -
Net investment income - (571,813) 571,813
Benefit payments (90,780) (90,780) -
Plan administrative expenses - (20,674) 20,674
Other changes - - -
Net Changes 62,343 (671,259) 733,602
Balances as of 12/31/22 $ 2,193,319 $ 3,357,628 $ (1,164,309)
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Sensitivity of the Suburban Plan Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate: The following
presents the December 31, 2023 net OPEB liability of the Suburban Plan, as well as what the Suburban
Plan’s net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower
(5.27%) or 1-percentage-point higher (7.27%) than the current discount rate:

1 % Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(5.27%) (6.27%) (7.27%)
Net OPEB Liability (Asset) 12/31/23 $ (1,572,385) $ (1,780,508) $ (1,960,064)

Sensitivity of the Suburban Plan Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate: The following
presents the December 31, 2022 net OPEB liability of the Suburban Plan, as well as what the Suburban
Plan’s net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower
(5.79%) or 1-percentage-point higher (7.79%) than the current discount rate:

1 % Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(5.79%) (6.79%) (7.79%)
Net OPEB Liability (Asset) 12/31/22 $ (938,221) $ (1,164,309) $ (1,359,317)

Sensitivity of the Suburban Plan Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend
Rates: The following presents the December 31, 2023 net OPEB liability of the Suburban Plan, as well as
what the Suburban Plan’s net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates
that are 1-percentage-point lower (5.25% decreasing to 3%) or 1-percentage-point higher (7.25%
decreasing to 5%) than the current healthcare cost trend rates:

1 % Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(5.25% decreasing (6.25% decreasing (7.25% decreasing
to 3%) to 4%) to 5%)
Net OPEB Liability (Asset) 12/31/23 $ (1,980,391) $ (1,780,508) $ (1,548,608)

Sensitivity of the Suburban Plan Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend
Rates: The following presents the December 31, 2022 net OPEB liability of the Suburban Plan, as well as
what the Suburban Plan’s net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates
that are 1-percentage-point lower ((.71%) increasing to 3.75%) or 1-percentage-point higher (1.29%
increasing to 5.75%) than the current healthcare cost trend rates:

1 % Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
((-71%) increasing (-29% increasing (1.29% increasing
to 3.75%) to 4.75%) to 5.75%)
Net OPEB Liability (Asset) 12/31/22 $ (1,401,711) $ (1,164,309) $ (886,957)
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OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources: For the year ended December
31, 2023, and 2022, the Authority recognized OPEB expense of ($349,080), and ($34,746), respectively
for the plan. On December 31, 2023, and 2022, the Authority reported deferred outflows and inflows of
resources related to the OPEB plan from the following sources:

12/31/2023 12/31/2022
Qutflow (Inflow) Outflow (Inflow)
Differences between expected and actual experience $ - $ - $ - $ (34,710)
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on OPEB plan investments 178,846 - 414,649 -
Changes of assumptions - - 18,987 -
Total $ 178846  $ - $ 433,636 $ (34,710)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized
in OPEB expense as follows:

Year Ended December 31:

2024 $ 55,940
2025 60,242
2026 115,530
2027 (52,866)
2028 -
Total $ 178,846

B. Health & Welfare Plan For City Division Employees (City Plan)

City Plan

City Plan Description: The Authority through a single employer defined benefit plan offers to eligible
City Division retirees health insurance and prescription drug benefits in accordance with a memorandum of
agreement with the Service Employees International Union Local 32BJ. No assets are accumulated in a
trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement 75.

The authority to establish and amend the benefit terms and financing requirements to the Authority

resides with the Authority’s nine-member Board of Directors, who are appointed by the Lehigh County
Executive and approved by the Lehigh County Commissioners.
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City Plan Membership: On January 1, 2023, Plan membership consisted of the following:

Inactive plan members or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments 1

Inactive plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefit payments -

Active plan members 72
Total 73

Benefits Provided: The benefits provided to Other Key Employees hired, were the same as those
provided to Union Employees, except for union employees hired after January 1, 2017, receive coverage for
three years or until Medicare eligible, whichever occurs first. Any employee retiring with a minimum age of 55
and 20 years of service or retiring at the age of 60 with 15 years is eligible to receive medical and prescription
drug coverage until they reach the age of 65, with the exception previously noted for union employees hired after
January 1, 2017. This coverage will include the spouse of the retiree until the retiree or spouse attains the age
of 65 and dependent child coverage that ends when the dependent child reaches the age of 26 or the retiree
reaches the age of 65. The authority to establish and amend the benefit terms of the City Plan resides with the
nine-member Board of Directors.

Actuarial Assumptions & Total OPEB Liability: The City Plan’s total OPEB liability was measured as of
December 31, 2023, and 2022, and were determined by an actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2023, and January
1, 2021, respectively. The actuary utilized update procedures to roll forward the total OPEB liability for the City
Plan in the January 1, 2023, and January 1, 2021 actuarial valuation to the December 31, 2023, and 2022
measurement dates.

The City Plan’s total OPEB liability in the January 1, 2023 actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:

Inflation 2.45% for 2022 and 2.47% for 2023

Salary Increases 5.0%, average, including inflation.

Discount Rate 4.31% for 2022 and 4.00% for 2023

Healthcare Cost Trend Rates For 2022 Measurement Date: (.8%) during 2023

to an ultimate rate of 4.00%
For 2023 Measurement Date: 7.25% during 2024
to an ultimate rate of 4.00%

Cost Sharing with Inactive Plan Members Eligible retirees with a minimum of 15 years pay
25% of premiums, retirees with more than 10 years
but less than 15 pay 50% of premiums.

The discount rate was based on the S&P 20-year AA municipal bond rate.

Mortality rates were based on the 2010 Public General Amount Weighted Mortality Tables projected
to 2026 using Scale MP-2020.

It is assumed that 100% of eligible retirees and spouses will participate in the plan.

The actuarial assumptions used in the January 1, 2023, valuation was based on historical results as a
recent experience study was not completed.
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Changes in the total OPEB liability for the City Plan for the year ended December 31, 2023, were
as follows:

Increase (Decrease)

Total OPEB
Liability
(a)

Balances as of 12/31/22 $ 3,199,323
Service cost 159,146
Interest cost 108,467
Change in Benefit Terms -
Differences between expected

and actual experience (812,854)
Change in Assumptions * (155,048)
Benefit payments (58,557)
Other changes -
Net Changes (758,846)
Balances as of 12/31/23 $ 2,440,477

*- The December 31, 2023, measurement date reflects a change in assumptions related to the
Healthcare Cost Trend Rate, a change in the discount rate, and updated mortality rates.

Changes in the total OPEB liability for the City Plan for the year ended December 31, 2022, were
as follows:

Increase (Decrease)

Total OPEB
Liability
(a)

Balances as of 12/31/21 $ 3,588,854
Service cost 231,050
Interest cost 85,577
Change in Benefit Terms -
Differences between expected

and actual experience -
Change in Assumptions * (672,953)
Benefit payments (33,205)
Other changes -
Net Changes (389,531)
Balances as of 12/31/22 $ 3,199,323

*- The December 31, 2022, measurement date reflects a change in assumptions related to the
Healthcare Cost Trend Rate, and a change in the discount rate.
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Sensitivity of the City Plan Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate: The following
presents the December 31, 2023 total OPEB liability of the City Plan, as well as what the City Plan’s total
OPERB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (3.00%)
or 1-percentage-point higher (5.00%) than the current discount rate:

1 % Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(3.00%) (4.00%) (5.00%)
Total OPEB Liability 12/31/23 $ 2,663,811 $ 2,440,477 $ 2,230,864

Sensitivity of the City Plan Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate: The following
presents the December 31, 2022 total OPEB liability of the City Plan, as well as what the City Plan’s total
OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (3.31%)
or 1-percentage-point higher (5.31%) than the current discount rate:

1 % Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(3.31%) (4.31%) (5.31%)
Total OPEB Liability 12/31/22 $ 3,514,287 $ 3,199,323 $ 2,908,888

Sensitivity of the City Plan Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates:
The following presents the December 31, 2022 total OPEB liability of the City Plan, as well as what the City
Plan’s total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-
percentage-point lower (6.25% decreasing to 3%) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.25% decreasing to 5%)
than the current healthcare cost trend rates:

1 % Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6.25% decreasing (7.25% decreasing (8.25% decreasing
to 3%) to 4%) to 5%)

Total OPEB Liability 12/31/23 $ 2,106,290 $ 2,440,477 $ 2,840,484

Sensitivity of the City Plan Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates:
The following presents the December 31, 2022 total OPEB liability of the City Plan, as well as what the City
Plan’s total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-
percentage-point lower ((1.8%) increasing to 3%) or 1-percentage-point higher (.2% increasing to 5%) than
the current healthcare cost trend rates:

1 % Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
((1.8%) increasing ((-8%) increasing (2% increasing to
to 3%) to 4%) 5%)

Total OPEB Liability 12/31/22 $ 2,743,942 $ 3,199,323 $ 3,750,206
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NOTE 12 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued)

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources: For the year ended December 31, 2023,
and 2022, the Authority recognized OPEB expense of $126,469 and $384,229, respectively for the plan.
The plan is funded on a “pay as you go” basis. On December 31, 2023, and December 31, 2022, the
Authority reported deferred outflows of resources related to the OPEB plan from the following sources:

12/31/2023 12/31/2022
Qutflow (Inflow) Qutflow (Inflow)
Differences between expected and
actual experience $ 95167 $ (781,236) $ 152,865 $ (99,907)
Changes of assumptions 312,400 (698,510) 448,598 (749,560)
Total $ 407,567  $(1,479,746) $ 601,463 $(849,467)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB
expense as follows:

Year Ended December 31:

2024 $ (143,727)
2025 (180,940)
2026 (220,784)
2027 (163,766)
2028 (120,988)
Thereafter (241,974)
Total $(1,072,179)

NOTE 13 — NET POSITION

The basic financial statements utilize a net position presentation. Net position is categorized as
net investment in capital assets, restricted and unrestricted.

Net investment in capital assets is intended to reflect the portion of net position that are associated
with non-liquid, capital assets, less outstanding capital asset related debt. Restricted assets are liquid
assets generated from revenues that have third-party (statutory, bond covenant or water user) limitation on
their use. Unrestricted net position are amounts that do not meet the definitions of “invested in capital
assets” or “restricted assets” and are available for Authority operations.

It is the Authority’s policy to first use restricted assets prior to the use of unrestricted net position
when an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted assets are
available.
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NOTE 14 — DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN
A. General Information about the Pension Plan

Plan Description. The Authority, through a January 2014 agreement, provides employee pension
benefits through participation in the Pennsylvania Municipal Retirement System (PMRS). The PMRS was
created by the Pennsylvania General Assembly in 1974 with the passage of the Pennsylvania Municipal
Retirement Law 1974, P.L. 34, No. 15. PMRS administers pension plans on a contracted basis for any
municipality or institution supported and maintained by a Pennsylvania municipality. This agent multiple-
employer public employee retirement system maintains each municipality’'s account separately with that
municipality's contributions and related employee contributions, and earnings segregated into separate
accounts. PMRS issues a separate Annual Comprehensive Financial Report, which can be obtained by
contacting the PMRS accounting office at P.O. Box 1165, Harrisburg, PA 17108-1165.

Benefits Provided. Benefit terms were established under the 2014 agreement between PMRS and
the Authority, changes to benefit terms can only occur by modification of this agreement. Major provisions
of the 2014 agreement include the following:

All full-time and permanent part-time Authority employees are required to participate in the System.
Benefits vest after eight years of service. Employees can retire with an annual retirement benefit after 20
years of service provided age 55 has been attained, or at age 60.

The normal form of payment of retirement benefits is a monthly annuity available for the life of the
retired employee. One and two-thirds percent of the employee's average salary for the three consecutive
years of greatest compensation multiplied by the number of years of service, and any fraction thereof, is
used to calculate the normal retirement benefit funded solely by the Authority's contributions. Supplemental
benefits are derived from employee contributions and interest earnings of the fund. A retiree may elect to
receive a reduced amount of benefit and provide a death benefit in the form of annuity or lump sum to the
designated beneficiary. The plan also provides death and disability benefits for an active employee.

Depending upon the annual investment return, the plan may award excess interest earnings to
participating municipalities. The municipalities have the option of either retaining such excess earnings or
sharing the additional earnings with active employees and retirees. In all years when excess interest
earnings have been awarded, the Authority has elected to pro-ratably share excess earnings resulting in a
postretirement increase to retirees. Sharing of excess earnings is the only method available for increasing
postretirement benefits.

The plan does not allow for any cost-of-living adjustments to an employee’s retirement allowance
subsequent to the employee’s retirement date.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms. On December 31, 2022, the following employees
were covered by the benefit terms:

Inactive plan members or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 64
Inactive plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 10
Active plan members 152

Total 226
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NOTE 14 — DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (Continued)
B. Net Pension Liability (Continued)

Contributions. Required contributions to the plan are governed by the 2014 agreement. The PMRS
Board will actuarially determine the normal cost of the benefits provided under the contract (2014
agreement) and any liability associated with the actuarial experience of such benefits which shall be
contributed annually by the Authority. The PMRS Board shall determine, and the Authority shall be charged
an additional amount to be contributed annually toward a reserve account for any disability benefit which
may be payable under the contract (2014 agreement). The amounts so determined shall be computed in
accordance with the Municipal Pension Plan Funding Standard and Recovery Act, 53 P.S. 8895.101 et
seq., and the PMRL. Members shall contribute one percent of their compensation to fund the annuity.
Members may optionally contribute up to, but no more than an additional ten percent of their compensation.
For the years ended December 31, 2023, and 2022, the average active employee contribution rate was
1.0% of annual pay, and the Authority’s average contribution rate was 14.3% and 15.6%, respectively, of
covered annual payroll.

B. Net Pension Liability

The Authority’s net pension liability was measured as of December 31, 2022, and 2021, and the
total pension lability used to calculate the net pension liabilities were determined by actuarial valuations as
of December 31, 2022, and December 31, 2020, respectively. The actuary utilized update procedures to
roll forward the total pension liability in the December 31, 2022, and December 31, 2020, actuarial valuation
to the respective measurement dates.

Actuarial assumptions. The total pension liability in the December 31, 2022, actuarial valuation
was determined using the following actuarial assumptions:

December 31, 2022
Valuation
Investment rate of return 5.25%, net of pension plan
investment expense,
including inflation

Projected salary increases Age/Merit Scale including
inflation ranging from 2.79%
to 6.22%

Inflation 2.8%

Mortality rates Pre-Retirement for the December 31, 2022, valuation was based on the PUB-2010
General Employees male and female tables. Mortality rates Post-Retirement for the December 31, 2022,
valuation was based on the RP-2006 annuitant male and female tables.

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2022, valuation was based on the PMRS
Experience Study for the period covering January 1, 2014, through December 31, 2018, issued by the actuary in
September 2020 as well as subsequent Board approved assumption changes.
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NOTE 14 — DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (Continued)
B. Net Pension Liability (Continued)

The PMRS System'’s long-term expected real rate of return on pension plan investments was determined
using a building-block method in which best-estimates of expected future nominal rates of return (net of
investment expenses) are developed for each asset class. These returns are combed to produce the System’s
Long-Term Expected Real Rate of Return by calculating the weighted average return for each asset class using
each respective target asset allocation percentage and multiplying by the expected future nominal rate of return,
while also factoring in covariance across asset classes, then deducting expected inflation (2.5%). Best estimates
of geometric real rates of return for each utilized asset class are included in the pension plan’s target asset
allocation as of December 31, 2022, and summarized in the table below labeled “System Nominal and Real
Rates of Return by Asset Class.”

System Nominal and Real Rates of Return by Asset Class

12/31/2022 Valuation
Long-Term

Target Nominal Rate of Expected Real

Asset Class Allocation Return Rate of Return
Domestic Equities (large capitalized firms) 24.5% 7.50% 5.00%
Domestic Equities (small capitalized firms) 8.0% 8.20% 5.70%
International Equities (international developed markets) 14.5% 7.60% 5.10%
International Equities (emerging markets) 3.0% 8.01% 551%
Global Equities 5.0% 7.03% 4.53%
Real Estate 10.0% 7.42% 4.92%
Timber 5.0% 6.50% 4.00%
Fixed Income (Core Investment Grade) 24.0% 4.60% 2.10%
Fixed Income (Opportunistic Credit) 5.0% 8.00% 5.50%
Cash 1.0% 2.20% -0.30%

Based on the three-part analysis, the PMRS Board established the System’s Long-Term Expected
Rate of Return at 7.43% for the December 31, 2022, valuation.

In addition to determining the System’s Long-Term Expected Rate of Return, the PMRS Board,
under the laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania (Act 15 of 1974), is obligated to develop and apply
the Regular Interest Rate to each of the individual participating municipalities’ actuarial asset accounts held
by PMRS. The rationale for the difference between the System’s Long-Term Expected Rate of Return and
the individual participating municipalities’ Regular Interest Rate is described in the following section
“Discount Rate.” This rate was 5.25% for the December 31, 2022, valuation.

The System’s policy regarding the investment income allocation on invested assets is established
and may be amended by the PMRS Board. Plan assets are managed on a total return basis with an
emphasis on both capital appreciation as well as the production of income, to satisfy the short-term and
long-term funding needs of PMRS.
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NOTE 14 — DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (Continued)
B. Net Pension Liability (Continued)

Discount rate. While it is often common practice to establish an actuarial Discount Rate that is
equal to the Long-Term Expected Rate of Return, PMRS is required by law (Act 15 of 1974) to establish a
Discount Rate equal to the Regular Interest Rate (Regular Interest Rate / Discount Rate). The PMRS Board
establishes the Regular Interest Rate / Discount Rate on the basis of expected stable and consistent
earnings on investments to be applied to the accounts of the individual participating municipalities and
includes the accounts of plan participants, municipalities, and plan retirees each year. As a starting point,
the Board considers the following five quantitative factors in reviewing the Regular Interest Rate / Discount
Rate:

1.) Retiree Plan liability as a percentage of total Plan liability,

2.) Active Plan participant liability as a percentage of total Plan liability,

3.) Smoothed Pension Benefit Guarantee Corporation (PBGC) annuity rates as a proxy for annuity

purchase rates,
4.) PMRS System Long-Term Expected Rate of Return and,
5.) PMRS administrative expenses.

The PMRS Board then adjust the Regular Interest Rate / Discount Rate by a variety of qualitative
factors such as the desire to minimize Regular Interest Rate / Discount Rate volatility, varying levels of
asset allocation and liquidity, trending of PBGC annuity rates, total PMRS actuarial and market value
funding ratios, feedback from existing PMRS municipalities, and recommendations from the System’s
investment and actuarial consultants. The Regular Interest Rate / Discount Rates adopted by the Board
and used to measure the individual participating municipalities’ total pension liability was 5.25% for the
December 31, 2022, actuarial valuation.

The Regular Interest Rate / Discount Rate will likely be less than the System Long-Term Expected
Rate of Return. Should the System experience a prolonged period of investment returns in excess of the
Regular Interest Rate, the PMRS Board is authorized to allocate any applicable portion of such excess in
accordance with PMRS Board policies in the form of Excess Interest as provided for in the law.

The projection of cash flows for each underlying municipal plan, used to determine if any
adjustment to the Discount Rate was required (depletion testing”), used the following assumptions: 1.)
member contributions will be made at the current contribution rate 2.) participating plan sponsor
contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates
and the member rate, and 3.) the System’s Long-Term Expected Rate of Return will be used in the depletion
testing of projected cash flows. Based on those assumptions, the PMRS pension plan’s fiduciary net
position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan
members.
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NOTE 14 — DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (Continued)
C. Changes in the Net Pension Liability

Increase (Decrease)

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net ~ Net Pension
Liability Position Liability
(@) (b) (a) - (b)
Balances at 12/31/2022(based on 12/31/2021
measurement date) $ 37,833,620 $ 42,453,831 $(4,620,211)
Changes for the year:
Service cost 1,997,070 - 1,997,070
Interest 2,038,498 - 2,038,498
Changes of benefits - - -
Changes of assumptions - - -
Differences between expected
and actual experience 1,541,493 - 1,541,493
Contributions - employer - 1,606,131 (1,606,131)
Contributions - member - 659,596 (659,596)
Net investment income/(loss) - (5,079,954) 5,079,954
Benefit payments, including refunds
of employee contributions (1,473,931) (1,473,931) -
Administrative expense - (104,980) 104,980
Net changes 4,103,130 (4,393,138) 8,496,268
Balances at 12/31/23 (based on a 12/31/22
measurement date) $ 41,936,750 $ 38,060,693 $ 3,876,057
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NOTE 14 — DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (Continued)
C. Changes in the Net Pension Liability (Continued)

Balances at 12/31/2021(based on
12/31/2020 measurement date)

Changes for the year:
Senice cost
Interest
Changes of benefits
Changes of assumptions
Differences between expected
and actual experience
Contributions - employer
Contributions - member
Net investment income/(loss)
Benefit payments, including refunds
of employee contributions
Administrative expense
Net changes

Balances at 12/31/22 (based on a 12/31/21
measurement date)

Increase (Decrease)

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net  Net Pension
Liability Position Liability
@ (b) @- (b

$ 36,584,251 $ 38,041,217  $(1,456,966)

1,959,422 - 1,959,422

1,939,928 - 1,939,928

- 1,684,763 (1,684,763)

- 674,887 (674,887)

- 4,808,310 (4,808,310)

(2,649,981) (2,649,981) -

- (105, 365) 105,365

1,249,369 4,412,614 (3,163,245)

$ 37,833,620 $ 42,453,831  $(4,620,211)

Sensitivity of the pension liability to changes in the discount rate. The following tables present the
net pension liability of the Authority, calculated using the discount rates of 5.25%, as well as what the
Authority’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-
point lower (4.25%) or 1-percentage-point higher (6.25%) than the discount rate utilized for the December

31, 2022 and 2020 actuarial valuations:

Authority’s net pension liability 12/31/23
Authority’s net pension liability 12/31/22

Pension plan fiduciary net position.

position is available in the separately issues PMRS financial report.

Decrease

(4.25%)

$8,705,422
$(342,787)

1%

Discount Rate

(5.25%)

$3,876,057
$(4,620,211)

1% Increase

(6.25%)

$(147,260)
$(8,184,812)

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net
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NOTE 14 — DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (Continued)

D. Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows, and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the Authority recognized pension expense of $408,156,
$205,462, and $1,515,520 in the Suburban Water Fund, Suburban Wastewater Fund, and City Fund,

respectively.

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the Authority recognized pension expense of $(1,627),
$(819), and $(6,040) in the Suburban Water Fund, Suburban Wastewater Fund, and City Fund,

respectively.

On December 31, 2023, and 2022 the Authority reported deferred outflows and deferred inflows of

resources related to pensions from the following sources:

12/31/2023 12/31/2022
Outflow (Inflow) Outflow (Inflow)
Difference between expected and actual experience $1,687,014 $ - $ 666,139 $ -
Changes in assumptions 300,011 - 517,807 -
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments 1,607,375 - - (5,566,967)
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 1,812,390 - 1,610,291 -
Total $5,406,790 $ - $2,794,237 $(5,566,967)

The $1,812,390 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the
Authority contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net
pension liability in the subsequent year financial statements. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows
of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended December 31:

2024 $ (216,924)
2025 575,463
2026 1,179,042
2027 1,616,391
2028 220,213
Thereafter 220,215

NOTE 15 — DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

In 1990, the Authority entered into an agreement with the International City Management
Association (ICMA) to provide a Deferred Compensation Plan in accordance with the Internal Revenue
Code, Section 457, on a voluntary basis to full-time employees. In 2020, the Authority changed record-
keepers to Empower Retirement. The plan permits employees to defer a portion of their salary until future
years. The deferred compensation is only available to participants at employment termination, retirement
or for an unforeseeable emergency. The Authority makes no contributions to the plan. In accordance with
federal law, a trust fund was established for the deposit of Section 457 assets. The trust fund is for the
exclusive benefit of plan participants and beneficiaries. Because the assets are not owned by the Authority
but are held in a trust, the deferred compensation assets and related liabilities are not recorded in the
Authority’s financial statements. The Authority's fiduciary responsibilities are to submit participant payroll
deductions to the plan administrator (Retirement Corporation). Other than reviewing quarterly statements
for accuracy, the Authority has no other fiduciary responsibility. Employees make deferral changes on the
Empower website. Empower submits change reports to the Authority on a bi-weekly basis. Investments
are managed by the plan's trustee with various investment options available. The employee makes the
choice of the investment option(s). Fifty-three and fifty-eight employees contributed into the Empower
Retirement plan in 2023 and 2022, respectively.
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NOTE 16 — RISK MANAGEMENT

The Authority joined the Pennsylvania Intergovernmental Risk Management Association (PIRMA) in
August 1991, to obtain General, Public Officials' and Automobile Liability Coverage. PIRMA, which has operated
since 1987, is a public entity risk pool providing liability insurance coverage to 610 Pennsylvania municipal entities
as of December 31, 2023. In paying claims, the pool covers the first $350,000 per claim. Thereafter, American
Public Entity Excess Pool (APEEP) provides coverage of $4,650,000 per claim and General Reinsurance
Company and Markel Reinsurance Company provide quota share coverage at $5,000,000 per claim of excess
coverage over APEEP for a total coverage of $10,000,000 per claim. The intergovernmental agreement specifies
that in the event a claim or claims exhausts total members' equity, plus excess insurance coverage, then payment
for such claim shall be the obligation of the respective individual member. In 2023 and 2022 the Authority paid
$369,164 and $350,364 to PIRMA as its share of liability insurance premiums, respectively.

The Authority has been a member of the Delaware Valley Workers' Compensation Trust (DVWCT) since
1993. The Trust, a risk sharing pool formed in 1992, is comprised of 107 municipal entities located primarily in
Southeastern Pennsylvania. The DVWCT assumes the first $750,000 of each occurrence with excess insurance
providing coverage up to the PA Statutory limit. If reserve funds and surplus are exhausted by claims, the Trust
Agreement allows the governing board to levy additional assessments against pool members. Any additional
assessments would be equal to the ratio of the participant's annual contribution to the total annual contribution
paid by all participants in the trust year in which a deficit occurred. The Trust's surplus position of $28,433,576
as of December 31, 2022, makes an assessment unlikely.

The Authority paid a net premium contribution (after payroll audit) of $163,974 in 2022 and a deposit
premium contribution of $235,608 in 2023 before payroll audit. The Authority applied a RSF credit of $40,000 to
the 2022 premium. As of January 1, 2024, the Authority had accrued $70,914 in Rate Stabilization Fund (RSF)
credits which were available to reduce the Authority’s 2024 premium. Any unused RSF credits will be rolled over
to 2025, and the Trust will add investment income to the unused balance. The Authority also received dividends
from the Trust of $7,822 in 2022 and $5,638 in 2023.

The Authority offers employees health care coverage through a PPO (Preferred Provider Organization)
Plan using the Pennsylvania Municipal Insurance Cooperative (PMHIC) to purchase such insurance. The
purpose of the cooperative, which consists of 290 municipal entities as of October 1, 2023, is to control escalating
health care premiums by allowing municipalities the potential for volume discounts. The pool utilizes an
Administrative Services arrangement, which uses the insurer (Capital Blue Cross) only for network access and
claims management. The pool is self-funding up to the first $50,000 per claim with reinsurance available to cover
costs in excess of the self-funded limit. Annually a reconciliation of premiums paid to claims incurred is developed
and if the cooperative has favorable experience, a dividend is returned to those participants who paid more
premium than claims incurred. The cooperative uses a third-party administrator to issue bills and function as the
liaison and rate negotiator with the insurers. Authority health benefits payments for retirees and active employees,
net of reimbursements and dividend returns, for the years ended December 31, 2023, and December 31, 2022,
totaled $849,420 and $1,019,289, respectively.

The Authority also purchases property coverage through CNA, brokered through Murray Securus. For
2023 and 2022, insurance costs amounted to $362,715 and $304,500, respectively. All other risks of loss
including employee bonding, group disability and life insurance are insured through commercial insurance.
Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the past four years.

NOTE 17 - MAJOR CUSTOMER AND ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY

Several service agreements specify that the Authority will provide wastewater service through use of the
Western Lehigh and Little Lehigh Relief Interceptor Systems to ten municipalities. As part of this service, the
Authority bills certain municipalities for their share of the City of Allentown’s treatment and transportation costs
and the operating costs of the Western Lehigh and Little Lehigh Relief Interceptor Systems. During 2023 and
2022, two of the municipal customers each provided in excess of 10% of the total operating revenues. Since
any reduction in user discharges is offset by lower treatment and transportation costs, and all municipalities share
in paying system costs, economic dependency of any one of the customers is absent.
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NOTE 18 — LEASES

The Authority leases various office equipment for its operations. The leased office equipment
consists of various copiers and printers. Terms of each lease vary with fixed monthly payments ranging
from $43 to $267, and lease periods ranging from 36 to 60 months. An incremental borrowing rate of 3.25%
was used when calculating the lease liabilities.

The future principal and interest lease payments on the Authority’s leased office equipment as of
December 31, 2023, were as follows:

Suburban W ater Suburban Wastewater City Division
Year Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2024 $ 1,136 $ 397 $ 1,136 $ 397 $ 9,341 $ 887
2025 1,171 314 1,171 314 9,638 687
2026 1,210 219 1,210 219 9,956 481
2027 1,250 122 1,250 122 10,285 267
2028 856 26 856 26 7,044 56

$ 5,623 $ 1,078 $ 5,623 $ 1,078 $46,264 $ 2,378

In addition to office equipment the Authority also leases various vehicles for its operations. Terms
of each lease vary with fixed monthly payments ranging from $283 to $7,770, and lease periods of 60
months. An incremental borrowing rate of 3.25% was used when calculating the lease liabilities.

The future principal and interest lease payments on the Authority’s leased vehicles as of
December 31, 2023, were as follows:

Suburban Water Suburban Wastewater City Division
Year Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2024 $109,278 $11,046 $ 70,959 $ 6,318 $228,733 $26,575
2025 107,492 7,501 79,489 3,630 187,679 18,338
2026 100,573 3,902 36,517 1,281 172,923 11,333
2027 65,980 996 12,298 502 154,553 4,409
2028 4,438 - - - 22,783 -

$387,761 $23,445 $199,263 $11,731 $766,671 $60,655
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NOTE 18 — LEASES (Continued)

The future principal and interest lease payments on all the Authority’s leases as of December 31,
2023, were as follows:

Suburban Water Suburban Wastewater City Division
Year Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2024 $110,414 $ 11,443 $ 72,095 $ 6,715 $238,074 $ 27,462
2025 108,663 7,815 80,660 3,944 197,317 19,025
2026 101,783 4,121 37,727 1,500 182,879 11,814
2027 67,230 118 13,548 624 164,838 4,676
2028 5,294 26 856 26 29,827 56

$393,384 $ 23,523 $204,886 $ 12,809 $812,935 $ 63,033

NOTE 19 — SUSEQUENT EVENTS

In March 2024, the Authority issued City of Allentown Concession Series 2024 Bonds in the amount
of $158,580,000. The Bonds were issued to refinance the existing 2013 Series A Bonds and finance various
capital projects in the City Fund.
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SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULES

Schedule of Cash and Cash Equivalents

Combined Schedule of Certificates of Deposit — All Funds
Schedule of Cash Receipts and Disbursements and Changes in
Account Balances — Fixed Rate Water Revenue Bonds

Budgetary Comparison



LEHIGH COUNTY AUTHORITY
ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVANIA

SCHEDULE OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CURRENT AND RESTRICTED
December 31, 2023

Enterprise Funds

Suburban Division City Division
Financial Institution Total Water Wastewater Water & Wastewater
Bank of New York $ 1,579,432 $ 1,579,432 $ - $ -
Financial Northeastern Companies 297,819 34,850 262,969 -
Truist Bank 126,880 126,380 - -
Fulton Bank 19,089,334 8,630,477 7,462,079 2,996,778
PNC Bank (1) 3,629,045 358,422 3,270,623 -
M & T Bank 84,029,830 - - 84,029,830
Total $ 108,752,340 $ 10,730,061 $ 10,995,671 $ 87,026,608

(1) Represents the Authority's share of the Pennsylvania School District Liquid Asset Fund.
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LEHIGH COUNTY AUTHORITY
ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVANIA

COMBINED SCHEDULE OF CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT - ALL FUNDS

CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT:

Enterprise Funds:
Suburban Water

California First National Bank
Israel Discount Bank of NY
Barclay's Bank Delaware
Oceanfirst Bank

Sandy Spring Bank

Liberty FCU

Magnifi Financial CU
Synchrony Bank

PSDLAF Flex Pool

Suburban Wastewater

Lending Club Bank, NA
Lamar National Bank
Pentagon FCU

Poplar Bank

Live Oak Banking Co.

Austin Telco FCU
Lake-Osceola State Bank
Workers FCU

First Foundation Bank
Medallion Bank

First Technology FCU

Wells Fargo Bank

Raiz FCU

Freedom First FCU
Essential FCU

Lafayette FCU

Comenity Bank (Wilmington)
Ally Bank

Morgan Stanley Bank, Nat'l Assn.

Morgan Stanley Private Bank, Nat'l Assn.

Discover Bank
Connexus CU

Baxter CU

Pacific Western Bank
Jefferson Bank
Vystar CU

Chartway FCU
Clearview FCU
Centris FCU

TOTAL CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT

CURRENT AND RESTRICTED FUNDS
December 31, 2023

Date of Date of % Rate of Total
Purchase Maturity Return Amount By Fund

2/23/22 2/23/24 1.20 247,461
5127122 5/28/24 2.85 242,722
6/2/22 6/3/24 2.85 242,646
6/29/22 6/28/24 3.25 242,785
3/10/23 3/10/25 5.10 239,983
3/17/23 3/17/25 5.05 248,930
6/28/23 6/30/25 5.20 245,855
10/20/23 4/21/25 5.35 245,924

12/31/23 1/31/24 5.28 1,066,824 $ 3,023,130
1/28/22 1/26/24 0.700 244,164
1/28/22 1/29/24 0.700 244,065
1/31/22 1/31/24 0.850 244,071
3/23/22 3/25/24 1.850 245,996
9/12/22 9/12/24 3.450 242,192
1/27/23 1/27/25 4.900 248,422
1/27123 1/27125 4.350 246,961
1/27/23 1/27/25 4.700 247,874
2/2/23 2/3/25 4.400 247,110
2/6/23 2/6/25 4.350 146,777
4/12/23 10/15/24 5.250 245,233
5/5/23 5/5/25 4.850 244,434
5/11/23 5/12/25 4.850 244,451
7112/23 7114125 5.000 248,174
9/20/23 9/22/25 5.500 251,595
9/20/23 9/22/25 5.350 250,542
4/5/22 4/5/24 1.950 198,189
5/26/22 5/28/24 2.850 242,719
5/26/22 5/28/24 2.850 242,719
5/26/22 5/28/24 2.850 242,719
6/1/22 6/3/24 2.850 242,645
8/26/22 8/26/24 3.400 242,329
8/30/22 8/30/24 3.350 242,197
2/8/23 2/10/25 4.650 243,731
2/22/23 2/21/25 4.700 243,927
3/10/23 3/10/25 5.000 242,764
7112/23 7114/25 5.250 246,078
9/8/23 9/8/25 5.500 247,406

12/19/23 12/19/25 5.00 245,982 $ 6,965,466

$ 9,988,596
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LEHIGH COUNTY AUTHORITY
ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVANIA

SCHEDULE OF CASH RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS AND CHANGES IN ACCOUNT BALANCES
SUBURBAN WATER FUND - TRUSTEE ACCOUNTS - FIXED RATE WATER REVENUE BONDS,
December 31, 2023
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

Debt Service

Reserve Debt Service Construction
Accounts Accounts Accounts Total
RECEIPTS:
Interest Income $ 72,008 $ 585 $ - $ 72,593
Bonds Payable - - - -
Bond Refinancing - - - -
Treasury Notes Matured - - - -
Receipts from LCA - 2,985,167 - 2,985,167
Total Receipts 72,008 2,985,752 - 3,057,760
DISBURSEMENTS:
Interest Payments - 1,119,114 - 1,119,114
Water Capital Expenditures - - - -
Principal Reduction - 1,935,000 - 1,935,000
Financing Costs - - - -
Underwriters Discount - - - -
Transfers to Debt Service Accounts 68,593 (68,593) - -
Miscellaneous Expense - - - -
Total Disbursements 68,593 2,985,521 - 3,054,114

EXCESS OF RECEIPTS OVER (UNDER)
DISBURSEMENTS 3,415 231 - 3,646
TRANSFERS TO (FROM) - NET - - - -

EXCESS OF RECEIPTS OVER (UNDER)

DISBURSEMENTS AND TRANSFERS 3,415 231 - 3,646
BALANCE, JANUARY 1, 2023 1,656,335 233 - 1,656,568
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2023 $ 1,659,750 $ 464 $ - $ 1,660,214

BALANCE CONSISTS OF:

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1,659,750 $ 464 $ - 1,660,214
Certificates of Deposit (CD):
(none)
CD Total - - - -
Cash and CD Total $ 1,659,750 $ 464 $ - $ 1,660,214

Note: The Cash and Cash Equivalent amount on this schedule balances to the financial statement as follows:
Cash and Cash Equivalent $1,660,214 plus Other Developer Savings $466,386 equals $2,126,600.
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STATISTICAL SECTION

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the
annual comprehensive financial reports for the relevant year.



FINANCIAL TRENDS

This section provides information on Changes in Net Assets/Net Position
Components and Changes in Net Assets/Net Position.



LEHIGH COUNTY AUTHORITY
ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVANIA

NET ASSETS/ NET POSITION BY COMPONENT

Net Position:
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for Debt Service
Restricted for Net Pension Asset
Restricted for Net OPEB Asset
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

Net Position:
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for Debt Service
Restricted for Net Pension Asset
Restricted for Net OPEB Asset
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets/ Net Position

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
149,158,789 $ 147,742,061 $ 152,434,977 $ 162,309,930 $ 159,792,232
1,209,103 1,209,239 1,209,379 1,365,470 1,380,654
1,162,905 1,148,526 1,133,284 1,182,363 736,708
18,943,226 10,509,902 811,269 (11,732,211) (14,863,918)
170,474,023 $ 160,609,728 $ 155,588,900 $  153,125552 $ 147,045,676
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
168,787,946 $ 163,724,401 $ 170,026,423 $ 174,737,544 $ 177,644,427
1,043,094 1,407,066 1,570,266 1,579,403 1,578,968
- - 1,456,966 4,620,211 -
1,244,053 1,389,099 1,897,911 1,164,309 1,780,508
(25,963,577) (22,517,049) (28,311,754) (25,232,838) (8,649,978)
145111,516 $ 144,003,517 $ 146,639,812 $ 156,868,629 $ 172,353,925

Note: Beginning in 2015, the amounts reported reflect the adoption of GASB 68 and 71. Amounts prior to 2015 have not been
adjusted to reflect the adoption of GASB 68 and 71.

Beginning in 2018, the amounts reported reflect the adoption of GASB 75. Amounts prior to 2018 have not been

adjusted to reflect the adoption of GASB 75.
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LEHIGH COUNTY AUTHORITY
ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVANIA
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS/ NET POSITION

1)@
Increase
(Decrease) in
Total Net Assets/ 1) (2)
Operating Nonoperating Net Position Change in
Fiscal Operating Operating Income Revenues Before Capital Capital Net Assets/
Year Revenues Expenses (Loss) (Expenses) Contributions Contributions Net Position
2014 $ 56,310,007 $ 45,179,303 $ 11,130,704 $ (17,829,251) $ (6,698,547) $ 844,237 $ (5,854,310)
2015 47,477,636 42,312,587 5,165,049 (15,952,394) (10,787,345) 1,692,811 (9,094,534)
2016 53,361,394 44,722,023 8,639,371 (18,205,887) (9,566,516) 4,545,697 (5,020,819)
2017 54,808,820 46,719,135 8,089,685 (18,933,193) (10,843,508) 8,380,151 (2,463,357)
2018 59,507,754 46,926,940 12,580,814 (19,473,727) (6,892,913) 1,828,692 (5,064,221)
2019 61,088,459 48,768,093 12,320,366 (15,985,945) (3,665,579) 1,731,419 (1,934,160)
2020 65,019,277 50,981,731 14,037,546 (15,383,247) (1,345,701) 217,413 (1,128,288)
2021 70,545,721 52,626,666 17,919,055 (18,946,406) (1,027,351) 3,683,935 2,656,584
2022 78,096,829 55,032,473 23,064,356 (13,089,141) 9,975,215 253,602 10,228,817
2023 86,129,844 62,170,856 23,958,988 (13,949,087) 10,009,901 5,475,395 15,485,296

NOTES:
(1) Beginning in 2015, the amounts reported reflect the adoption of GASB 68 and 71. Amounts prior to 2015
have not been adjusted to reflect the adoption of GASB 68 and 71.

(2) Beginning in 2018, the amounts reported reflect the adoption of GASB 75. Amounts prior to 2018
have not been adjusted to reflect the adoption of GASB 75.

(3) Beginning in 2020, the amounts reported reflect the adoption of GASB 87. Amounts prior to 2020
have not been adjusted to reflect the adoption of GASB 87.
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REVENUE CAPACITY

This section provides information on the major sources of revenue, expenses,
schedules of rates and charges, largest industrial and commercial revenue
sources and collections information.



-abed Buimol|o} ayy uo uonoun4 Agq sasuadx3 o} pasedwod aq ued eyep siyl (T)

8GT'CIE'66 $ 9598'89.'T6 $ 816'82.'9L $ TrOZv8'c. $ TOV'6Y9'29 $ TIL'TYSY9 $ 0TC'6€L'65 $ 8¥6'6T065 $ GEE'29T'€S ¢ 86.'899'65 $
TEL'T6Z'TY 6S5'122'95 ¥S¥'906'Sy €T7'G96'01 SET'L0S'0F 0€6'T95'6€E 908'GEZ'9€ T05'950'GE £56'9.1'6C 150'G8€E'2E
660'/.21'6 YIEYIV'6 020'0£9'E 8€.'186'C £LC'TEV'E 067'LT1'E 188'6£€'E ¥¥0'E8E'E v26'21G' TLE'L6L'T
0L€'08Y 218'v1e LSE'ETT 029'1S 659'6S Zry's9 128'€CT'T 0€5'128 T62'EVS 899'028
¥86'85Y'E T89'716 €LE'S S.0'29T 8T9'€6T'T 0€9°L10'T TEY'TVE ¥5.'98¢€ TLT'v2Y T9E'ETT
¥.5'S07'C 829'908'G S2T'80€'T S85'TY8 cov'syy §22'C16 902'2ET'T 885'96€'T L¥8'S62'T 692'76L
T1Z'vS T€T'9E ¥85'62 S65'vC 99v'ze L6€'8 18T'LT 6TEET CLTET S6L°0T
096°220°€ 296'T67'C T8S'ELT'C €98'T06'T 82T'L0L'T 96.'€8€'T oez'seL €58'79L £ve'9eT 8.2'8S
2€9'798'TS S¥2'LGL'9Y vEY'9L2'CY 5/9'€86'LE 298'GL0'LE Ovy'vv1'9e 526'G68'2€ LSY'€L9'TE 620'796'92 989'/85'0€
90T'STY 0v0'v9v €15'92¢ 6v8've 662'8TY €18'96€ 292'c6 sye'vL 0€S5's8 ¥20°L9
92S'6YY' TS S02'€62'9% 126'676' TV 928'87.L'LE £95'269'0¢ 129'Ly.'GE £99'208'2¢ 212'665'1E 667'828'92 299'025'0¢€
009'T 00L'T ovs - §8S S9/ ovs 0cL STO'T ovs
192°L9 L€9'T9 269'LS 9€8'SS LLE'6S 22E'9 S€9'€9 60€'€9 ¥8T'09 ¥28'LS
299'G6.'9 252'1eT'9 188'S9Y'S TST'060'S 05.'509'S 801'009'S 965'789°€ 0£9'8.2'€ 965'G50°E 66.'28T'E
L0G'0G€E'TC 889'026'8T €9G°'9G66'LT 658'562'9T LTE'026'ST ¥90'592'ST 8.6'786'VT 062'989'vT 9€9°'9.€'0T €2T'LICYT
22Y'SST'8T 99€'T0S'9T 069°'TOV'VT ¥0L'TE9'CT SY0'6vZ'TT S69°€00'TT 692°'TLS'0T 9€Z'€TZ'0T 980'6.6'6 6T1.'098'6
8./€'G9C'Y 6v78'G68'C §20'Zev'e ST9'SCT'E 66€'79C'E §29'182'¢ 0T18'0v0‘E 0vE'L16'C TT0'796'C 008'96.°C
069°€T8 €T2'089 ¥25'S€9 T99'6Y¥S 060'85S 8Y.L'TES S€8'95Y 189'6EY TL6'TVY 1S8'YTY
Svy'v12'02 829'8€€'8T 69T'6£9'0T 768'856'6T 188'T€0'9T ¥2.'86L'vT SGT'06V'ET 20T'T02'vT 6€1'S9E'YT 016'.7E'8T
y19'2vy'e 9/6'91€E'E 6v.',28 LOV'v8L'E G28'616'T S62'78L ¥.E'TE9 2LT'82E'T 795'967'C TIT'vv8
¥60'G6Y S8S'T 069'st ¥6T'9 TTL 069 02s'L 060'T 0€6 0€9
985'vY 625'28 80T'Y 559'8 81S'cy €L1'1€ vyv'el 18T'T€ 689 ¥02'205
12€'9.S (822'€) 610'SC 926'€6T Lv8'cee 90g'zee ¥€0'29T 625'8TT 628'60T €G/.'/8
65€ - - - - - - 000°2T - -
8.2'92€'T 0v9'9ez'e 2€6'CSL 269'S.5'E 6v.'€LS'T 925'€es 9LE'6YY 2LE'SIT'T 9T1's8€'2 ¥25'ese
TE8'TLLLT 259'T20'GT 0Zy'T18'GT L2V'vL1'9T 950'280'tT 62V'710'vT 18.'858'2T 0£6'228'2T G/T'698'TT 66.'€0G'LT
LEV'90E ST6'9EE €€G'70C 928'e6T 006'Te 660'76C 90v'062 192'9TT 208'25e SEE'ETT
¥6€'S9Y' LT LEL'Y8I'YT 188°909'ST T09'086'ST 9ST'0V8'ET 0€€'02L'ET S/€'89S'CT €99'95.'CT €L€'9T9'TT Y9v'062'LT
286'S08'LT 699'802'LT GGE'E8T' VT vEL'LTE'TT G8E'0TT'TT L0T'T8T'0T 6v2'€10'0T SvE'Z9L'6 £v9'12E'6 1€8'S€6'8
T09'CIE'T L£1'068 881'G2L'T 290'1S0'T rr8'6LT'T zzeiees SET'656 8EE'LV6 112089 60€'LTL
062'202 8TE'€LT T8T'CET 805'S0T 826'c6 1.6'98 £vE'60T Cragant €15'eS 8GC'VET
606'7.E L8€'%9 ¥82've 856'78 T6T'6LT 6€7'S52 981'L2T 619'T6 2er'ys 260°LY
109'982 8ee'eee TL2'220'T €92'81¢€ 18T'€6E 8vT'e8T €EV'YST 1G2'09T 266°202 L0€'20T
258'92T vrv'orT 180'0ST §89'LL €9/'76 6G2'S8 891'2TT S9€'9ST 280'88 182'T8
£V6'9TE 052'6.2 59T'98€ 8v9'v9v SLL'8TY Sov'Tee SOov'SSy L1T'92Y 20z'9Le T/8'TSE
18E'€61'9T 2€6'LT€'9T 198'/5v'2T 2/9'998'0T TS'0£6'6 G88'8YE'6 ¥1T'¥S0'6 L00'ST8'8 ZEV'vY9'8 225'812'8
- - - - €52'2T S0v'86 6T0'T6 TT0'L6 SYL'TTT 96€'0TT
200'SL YET'SL9 ¥9.'85 0vs'ze 2LT'Se 67601 L0E'66 ZST'TY L2E'TS 12Ty
6.E'8TY'9T 86.'C¥9'ST £0T'66E'2T ZET'ES'0T 9TT'08L'6 TE€G'602'6 88.'€98'8 7¥8'9.9'8 09€'T87'8 500'990'8
¥88'18Y ¥65'8SY 190'v¥y 66T'CIV 629'8LE 198'2ve 0Tv'LSe S08'vSE §zz'0se €6.'87E
202'816 156'206 918'788 e'TL8 66T'9Y8 §59'0€8 12T'S6L 169'2SL €86'60L Tv.'299
S0T'see 109'TS2 2S2'CeT 188'v¢ TTE'EYT TT6'SYT €12'L0T 628'9TT 00T'20T YIv'6.L
0v¥'089'9 S0Z'8EY'9 685'8¢26'Y 0TS'€SE'Y S0€£'688'€ 000°219'€ L29'esy'e £v8'LLE'E 697'9g€'E 9v1'z9z'e
199'v€5' 086'872'C 00S'8T9'T ¥€9'08Y'T 91€'982'T 2ET'E6T'T €66'VET'T Y9E'vY0'T §S2'vE6 9vv'0L8
6.6'S9L'E L2y'ess'e £v0'798'C ¥86'TEE'C vze'sTT'e ¥86'€20'C 0TE'TL6'T 9EE'VT6'T 955'656'T vSC'v8L'T
20T'208'T ¢ 820'6SL'T ¢ O0V8'92S'T ¢ L/9'6SE'T ¢ CEO'STT'T $ ¢88'SS0'T $ VYSO'VIOT ¢ 9T0'TOT'T $ 2/2'880'T $ TT19'2S0'T $
€20e 2eoe Tcoe 0202 6T0C 810¢ 1702 9102 G102 ¥102

30dNOS Ad SINNINTY
VINVATASNNId ‘NMOLINITIV
ALIJOHLNY ALNNOD HOIHAT

spun4 asudiaiug [ejo L

SaNUaA3Y pund UMOJUI||Y €10 L
sanuanay buneladouop [eo |
awodu| JBYIO
awWodU| }saIau|
sjuswasInquiay 193[01d B ‘smalnay ue|d ‘uonoadsul
saes Il
s994 Alanoday [ende) % buidde |
:sanuanay Hunesadouon
sanuanay bunesadQ [elo L
awoou| Jaylo
921M8S 10) sabueyd [elo
92I1MIBS all4 21|gnd
90INIBS BllH dreAld
_yio
sabrey) Jasn
[enuspissy
JaWIWO0D
[euisnpuj
:sabreyD Jawoisn)y
:sanuanay bunelado
W pung Ao
SanuUaAay pun4 Jayemalse n [e10 L
sanuanay Buneladouop [e10 ]
awoosu| Jaylo
Sjuawasinquiay 199[01d B ‘smalnay ue|d ‘uondadsul
awoou| 1saIalu|
so|es sl
$994 A19n023Y [eyde) 7 Buidde |
:sanuanay bBuneladouoN
sanuanay BuneladQ [elo L
awodu| Iy
sabureyd Jasn
:sanuanay bBunelsado
T) pund JoleMalsep) - ueqingns
Sanuanay pund Jayepn [elo L
sanuanay Buneladouop [e10 ]
awoosu| JaYylo
awoou| 1saI8lu|
Sjuawasinquiay 199[01d B ‘smalnay ue|d ‘uondadsul
so|es a1\
$994 A19n023Y [e)de) 7 Buidde |
:sanuanay bBuneladouoN
sanuanay BuneladQ el L
ey
awodu| Iy
921M3S J0j sabreyd [ejo
921AI8S all4 21|gnd
92IAIBS allH 81eAld
Bsyo
[enuapisay
[euonniisu|/[eI121aWwWo)
[elisnpul
feuysnpu abie
:sabreyD Jawolsn)y
:sanuanay Bunelado

euonnunsuy/|

96



'/8 9SV9 Jo uondope sy} 108}ya1 03 palsnipe uaaq Jou aney 0zog 0} Joud sjunowy ‘.8 gSvo jo uondope ay} 10|82 payodal sjunowe ay L
'G/ 9SVv9 jo uondope ay) 1981 0] palsnipe usaq Jou aney gTOg 01 Joud sjunowy G2 gSvoO Jo uondope ay) 199))84 pauodal sjunowe ay L
"I, pue 89 gSvo jo uondope ayj 108})81 0} pajsnipe usaq jou aAey GTOZ 0} Joud sjunowy "7/ pue 89 gSyo jo uondope ay} 108}yl papodal sjunowe ayL
‘abed snoinaid ayy uo 821n0s Agq senuanay 0} pasedwod aq ued elep siyL

9G68°0.T°29 €1¥'2€0°SS 999'929°CS T€.'T86°0S £60'89.'8Y 0v6'926°9Y SET'6TL'OY €202y 18S'TTETY 202'162°€2
£06'79.'/2 8/2'792'7C 6G9'0/.'22 1G5'86.'€C 189'166'€Z G20'GL0'EC 185'65.'22 669'652'TC G9T'0£L'02 101'888'TC
¥29'5G.'9 190°267'9 66.'66€'9 €TE'06T'9 105'GE8'S £Ev'798'S 10£'/88'S G82'7E8'S 8/0'0€S'S 0.£'e62'S
LOS'TT ¥6S'TT 087'2T 926'TT L¥S'6 128'6 960'0T 1T0'TT €70'TT 20S's
850'192'C 9T/',08'T 198'STS'T 9/.'T26'T GE0'V8L'T 8.T'960'C ¥5'029°C £08'06T'C 1€5'8G€'C 8SY'LVT'E
208'812'E 958'/22'C 8/9'081'T T.2'6E'T 69T'STE'T G£8'/92'T 1SS'2TIE'T Gez'eee'T 902°'007'T T0T'6€8'T
G8Y'868'T 062'208'T ¥28's0L'T 1¥0'ST8'T S09'096'T €0T'0v0'C 999'c06'T 6£8'€98'T 095'6£6'T G9£°006'T
865'V.L'S YrT'v8T'y £VZ'vIT'y G0S'296'Y 118'769'9 292'€95'S 222'sST'S 1S8'LTV'Y €26'9v.L'S €/0'2eL'E
620'Zv8'L 119'8€L'L 89/'€6€'L €TL'861'L L¥6'T6E'9 18€'€€2'9 G6T'0.8'S 6.9'809'S 8T8'EVL'S 2€2'0L6'S
1/8'€50'TC G62'12S'8T £69'716'8T 1G6.'210°LT 0.6'292'9T G/8'8VE'ST //¥'058'ST 9£9'790'9T S6€'710'ST 165'/86'9T
¥20'S0.'9 828'060°2 29£'TL9'9 865'G62'9 2L0'TLS'Y L6E'067'Y 960'66S'Y 697'T0S'Y 605'6GE'Y LEE'6TT'Y
¥99'€06'E 9/T'9v8'C 205'668'E 856'006'C 895'G8€'E €5/'vS'E 875'9TS'E ¥€2'120'E G/6'LVE'T STY'€2S'S
1#8'999'L LET'E0S'9 LT0'SOV'9 S67'216'S 16G'0€€'9 89T'LTL'S ¥T10'69€'9 €/9'6ET'L 8£0'966'9 vEL'1T2'9
ZEL'06€ 0ZT'6EE 1S8'1€2 v.5'9e2 6T7'SEE v.'v92 £0S'SST 8T¥'68T 8z€'/8T 0Z8'sST
192'8¢€2 998'T/2 §G5'692 6T¥'962 0€0'vLE 102'062 161922 8%9'v02 982'81e ¥81'822
GvE'620'T G68'6ES 026'629 L€0'79S 9T9'VTL 19%'085 TT6'65S 085795 886'vL1 215'2TY
¥00'02T'T €12'06 08%'208 0.9'008 899'TSS SYT'2ov 802'vzy ¥I9'0vY T.2'0EY S65°0€€
9/0'SGE'ET 006'0v2'2T ¥1€'SE6'0T 627'0LT'0T 9EY'ETS'S 0v0'c0S'8 //0'60T'8 889007~ /20'895'9 G09'C0E'9
G80'868'E 828'G99'E ¥98'c/E'E 190'2v6'C 6.1'209'C €€1'89.'C 875'G69'C 0SY'/8S'C 150'805'C 6.0'T9V'C
8TE'LL0'Y ¥55'799'E 6LY'Y'E 29T'299'E 6ET'G99'C ¥6S'€0L'C 65£'0.2'C 0v8'v20'z ¥80'09.'T 987'8TS'T
005'699 080°'098 9ev'eLy 0Ev'6.2 TLE'TLE 1€6'V62 oeL'zzy 055882 S6€'262 988'992
866'681 166'T8Y Lze'sTy £67'6TY 696'921 Tk z18'02Y 0gz'ozy zey'sey 62.'8TY
860'66.'T £86°00€'T 8/9'v82'T 65€'6.T'T ¥20's0v'T 2'192'T €90'/G2'T ¥€9'5v0'T 9ev'0LL 00v'€88
110'T2Y'T 8sv'c.2'C 0€5'9€6'T 8T6'L69'T ¥G2'2v0'T 288°'/€0'T G95'Z0'T ¥00'820'T 6£9'T08 G20'sG.
(¥) (€) (2)
€202 z20e 1202 0202 6102 8102 1102 9102 5102 ¥102

NOILONNA A9 SASNIdXT ONILVHIdO

VINVATASNNId ‘NMOLINITIV
ALIHOHLINY ALNNOD HOIH3AT

)
€)
2)
T

~ e~~~

sasuadx3 BunesadQ [e10L

el
uoleziuowy pue uoireldaidag
uonerodsuel] pue juswiyeal]
S92IAIBS SNOBUR||9ISIN
salddns pue sjeuare\
S 1N
uoleNSIUILPY puUe [elauds) ‘sujauag
sabe pue salees

M pung Ao

el
uoneziuowy pue uoireldaidag
uonerodsuel] pue juswiyeal]
S82IAIBS SN0BUR||9ISIN
salddns pue sjeuare\

uonENISIUILPY PUe [elsuss ‘siyauag
sabep pue salefes
(1) pund JoleMaISe/ - UBqIngns

[elol
uoleziuowy pue uoireldaidag
S92IAIBS SN0aUR||9ISIN
salddns pue sjeusrepy
sannn
uolFeNSIUIWPY pue [elauas) ‘syjauag
sabe\ pue salees
(T) pund 1818\ - ueqingns

97



TOV'TET L2 89T'T9.9¢ €99'62T'S¢ ¥10'902'€e 188'9v5°CC ¥€L°.0G'vC $ €85'€98'cc $ Tvr'v98'ee €60'2v9'TC 129'€0L'T ¢
G9p'GGL'Ge 0S8'TIv'SS 286'I81'€C 0/2'€9v'T2 69€'9¥9'02 1G0'T29'¢2 _$ v/2'628'TC $ 657'90€22 ¥52'220'02 SIv'v8r'6T ¢
€0T'28L'S 802'80L°S 898'620'Y 661'902'Y G8.'65C'T ¥¥9'0T8'E v29'CIe's 6G1°920'Y 809°L¥0°C GL9'EYS'T
29g'€L6'6T Zr9'€0L'6T YIT2S'6T TL0°LS2'LT 785°'98€'6T ETY'0T8'8T ¢ 0S9'91G'8T $ 00E'08C'8T 9¥9'720'8T ovL'ov6'LT $
ZEE'20E 09r'zLe G8E'S5C S0v'gre vve'lae 9/8'/22 $ 2es'vee $ TOr'092 789'TEC veZ'L12 $
896'€ET G25'98 ZIv'ss 869°CY 0T vy 9/8'0¢ ¥0T'0€ 02€e's9 ¥.5'08 620'€9
¥9€'89T §€6'S8T €16'66T L0L'66T YIT'ETC 000°'26T $ 8Ir'voe $ T180'S6T OTT'TST S02'vST $
709'€L0'T 8G8'9/0'T 962'26E'T 6EE'00S'T V.2'€¥9'T T08'8S9'T ¢ /8/.'66L'T $ T18G'26C'T GGT'8EE'T £6£98Y'T ¢
82S'6TT §zL'6ee £ve'sse €95'LS 9¥2'86 Zr1'es 166'L2V 9T0°'.ST 162'89 0EY'80T
9/0'vS6 €ET'LV8 €56'9€T'T 9LL'Cyy'T 820'SVS'T 6G9'9/G'T $ 96L'TLET $ S9S'OVT'T ¥98'692'T €96'2LE'T ¢
€2¢0¢ (44014 Tc0e 0c0¢ 6T0¢ 8T0¢ L10¢ 910¢ S10¢ v10¢

SISNIdX3 ONILVYHTIdONON

ALIHOHLNY ALNNOD HOIH3T

VINVATASNNZd ‘NMOLINITTV

sasuadx3 BuneladouoN [e101

[eoL
asuadx3 1ayl0
asuadx3 aouenss| pue Buluue|d
asuadx3 1saJalu|
pund Auo

[eoL
asuadx3 1ayl0
asuadx3 1saJaiu|
:pun4 Iaremalsepn - ueqingns

felo1
sjassy [ende) Jo [esodsiq U0 SSOT
asuadx3 1ay10
asuadx3 1salalu|

:pun4 Isrepn - ueqingns

98



S6E'SLY'S 209'ese Gge6'e89's $ €IVLTc  $ 6IV'TELT $ 269828'T $ TST'08€'8 $ L69'GVS'V $ TI8T69T $ LeT'Wi8

. . . s - $ - s - $ - $ - $ - s -

- - - s - $ - s - $ - $ - $ - s -
817.'G8S - ooe'gey  $ 029°L $ 000'ST $ ¥68'vE $ €v6'GS0'C $ 620'986 $ - $ vre'LT
8v.'58S - oog‘zey 029'2 000'ST v68'vE €¥6'550'C 6.0'986 - Yre'LT

- - - s - $ - s - $ - $ - $ - s -
L79'688'Y 209'€Se GEQ'TOZ'E $ €6.'60C $ 6IVITL'T $ 86.€6.T $ 802HCE'9 $ 8T9'6SS'E $ TI8'269T ¢ €68'928
L¥9'688'Y 209'ese [ANWRAA €6.'60¢C 6TY'9TL'T OTT'T8S'T 9TECTT9 990'8vE'E 856'0LC'T €68'9¢8

- - €25'vE $ - $ - $ 889°CTC $ 268TTC $ 2S8S'1TC $ €58'Tey $ -

€¢0c [44014 Teoe 0¢0¢ 6T0C 8T0¢ 110¢ 910¢ ST0¢ 102

304dN0OS Ad SNOILNGIYLINOD 1VL1IdVO
VINVATASNNI ‘NMOLNITTV
ALIHOHLNY ALNNOD HOIH3AT

spun4 asudiajug [elo |
pun4 uMoua||y [e10 L
siadojanaq Aq papinoid s1assy [ended
el
pung Auo
pun4 JaTemalse M\ [e10 L
siadojanaq Aq papinold s1ossy [ende)d
el
pun4 laremalsepn - ueqingns
pun4 Jaje [e1oL
siadojanaq Aq papinoid s1assy [ended

weln
pund JareM - URQINGNS

99



‘pua-1eak Jo Se 1933 Ul Salel Juasaldal Jawolisna [elluapisal ealdAy Jad sabireyd 1arepn 810N

'suo|jeb G'6GT Sfenba suonenopes Jsiem 1oy NA3 UY "898} Jey e uey) Jayrel Na3 Jad pareinofes atem sasy Buiddes uoisiaig A

‘910z Ul (€)

'SUOISIAIQ SBelsT Wieq MalAea|D pue s||iH Al1aAag ‘UUAT Jo saxe auld ‘39310 |l sapnjoul (2)
"1adojanap ay} 0} 3oeq pasinguial a1e Sad) Yans asnedad papnioul Jou ase
siadojanap Aq pajfelsul sulew 0} SUoiIaUU0I Jo} pabireyd sas) z adAL *Auoyiny ayl Ag pajfeisul surew 0] SUOJBUU0I 1o} pabireyd saa) ale yaiym ‘sasy T adAl sapnjoul Ajuo sasy buidde uonnquisia (1)

090'G68'T $ 08.'269'T $ E6V'OMP'T $ 9€T'T0E'T $ 288'WVC'T $ 29v'696 $ Gev'9Ty $ 2v0'S.y  $ G09'82T  $  6¥9'6E $
662 $ LTLT $ 08ET $ 766 $ 06ET $ 6EET $ GEv $ 82T $
GT19'058'T $ 0.¥'829'T $ 82LTIV'T $ €L0'262'T $ 0£0'C2C'T $ €21'896 $ 066'GTYr $ ¥I6'v.r $ G09'8CT $ 6V9'6E $
Ty $ €65'29 $ §8e'ze $ 69T'8 $ 291z %
eb 1ad TGG20°0$ [eb 1ed TGG20°0$  ‘1eb Jad TSG20°0$  eb 4ed 16G20°0$ b Jad 15520 0B Jad T6520"0eh 4ad TS5520 0veh Jod 82£00°0$
eb 1ad 1G800°0$ ‘[eb 1ed TG800°0$  ‘1eb Jad T5800°0% [eb 1ad TG800°0$ b Jad 15800 0B Jad TG800" 0 41ad 15800076 J12d 9T000'0$
‘reb 1ad ot L$ ‘reb iad 22'9% ‘reb 1ad zg'9$ ‘reb 1ad zT1'9% ‘eb 1od gg'g$ ‘[eb tad 6G5'G¢ ‘eb uad ge'gs reb uad 1Z'S$

e/ e/ e/ B’/u e/ e/ e/ B’/u 018 $ 018 $
£G69'9TE $  199'8/2 $ G97'98¢ $  8v9'v9Y $ G/.'8Ty ¢ Sov'iez $ SOy $ L.T'92¥  $ 202'9/Z ¢ T/8'ISE  $
869'€T - - 29¢ 0S€ - - - - -
892'8¢ L2¢e'ee 086'6Y 080°9TT 019'2S 061'9€ 0T0'28 §l€'62T 2L0'v9 6€8'602
189'v.2 $ vee'sse $ §8T'9ee $ 902'8re $ GI8'09¢ ¢ GT6'V8T $ G6E'S9E ¢ 208'96c ¢ 0€T'CIc ¢ 2€0'evT ¢
15'6€C €0°'62T 0002 000'2 0002 0002 0002 0002 0002 0002
89°9v. G2'659 26T 26T 26T 26T 26T 26T 26T 26T
LS'6€C €0'GeT 0002 000'2 0002 0002 0002 0002 0002 000'Z
89°9v. 52'659 Gee feiord Gee gee gee gee gee GeT
00°08%'T 00°08%'T 08¥'T 081'T 08%'T 08¥'T 08¥'T 08¥'T 08¥'T 08¥'T
00°00% 00°00¥% oov 00% oov oov oov 0ov 0ov oov
LS'6€C €0'GeT 0002 000'2 0002 0002 0002 0002 0002 000'Z
89°9v. G2'659 80/ 80L 80/ 80/ 80/ 80/ 80/ 80/
15'6€C €0°'62T 0SS'T 0SS'T 0SS'T 0SS'T 0SS'T 0SS'T 0SS'T 0SS'T
89°9v. §2'659 000'T 000'T 000'T 000'T 000'T 000'T 000'T 000'T
15'6€C €0°'62T 0002 000'2 0002 0002 0002 0002 0002 0002
89°9v. G2'659 G.S S.S G.S G.S G.S G.S G.S G.S
15'6€C €0°'62T 088'T 088'T 088'T 088'T 088'T 088'T 088'T 088'T
89°9v. $ G2'659 $ 509 $ 509 $ 509 $ 509 $ 509 $ 509 $ 509 $ 509 $

€202 2202 1202 0202 6102 8102 1102 9102 ST0Z ¥102

S334 AY3IN0D3Y TVLIdVO d31VM 40 3TNA3IHOS
VINVATASNNId ‘NMOLINI 1TV
ALIMOHLINY ALNNOD HOIH3T

UOISIAIQ UMOlUS||Y [e10L
S884 uoinguisia
sa94 Aldede)
saa4 buidde] |epads % A|lddns
(s18wo3snD || ‘UOISIAIQ UMOIUS||Y) :pPa1da]|0d S8aH [e10 L
(g) uomiod uonnquisiq g Ued - 894 buidde] Alddns
(g) uonuod Anoede) z ued - aa4 buidde) Addns
(g) T ved - @24 bBuidde Alddns
994 Buidde] Addns
NOISIAIQ ALID

uol

1Q ueqingns [e10L
$834 UONYBUUOD
(1) s@a4 buidde| uonnguisig
saa4 buidde] [epads % A|ddns
(si;ewoIsnY ||V ‘SUOISIAIQ UBQINGNS) :Pa}da]|0d S84 [e10L
994 Buidde] uonnguisig
934 buidde Alddns
(2) :suoIsIng walsAs |ews
994 Buidde] uonnguasi
934 buidde Alddns
1UOISIAIQ [eJ3UdD PJOYIN Jaddn
994 Buidde] uonnguisig
934 buidde Alddns
UOISIAIQ AIINJASUOD Shewwg
934 buidde uonnquisia
934 buidde Alddns
:uoisiaIg s1ybieH BiaqglepiaH
994 Buidde] uonngrasi
934 buidde Alddns
1S dm] uoibuiysepm
934 buidde uonnquisia
934 buidde Alddns
ISIAIQ |[eYSUUYM YHION
934 buidde uonnquisia
934 buidde Alddns
:uoisinig yBiyaT fesauad
:Jawoisn) [enuapisay [eaidAL Jad abreyd
NOISIAIA NVadNndns

100



‘suo|feb G'G/ T sfenba suonenoes Jayemalsem 1oy NAJ Uy 93} Jejy e ueyl Jayres N@3 1ad pare|noed atam saay buiddey uoisinig A ‘910z Ul (6)

+aoud aseyaind pue pdb 000‘s/.T Jo aseyaind Jaddad "1q/Bunad sapnjoul saa) pue Aeq Jad suojes (8)

+9oud aseyaund pue pdb 000‘szz 10 aseyaind D77 11 AL Odd/dojes sapnjoul sas) pue Aeq Jad suojes (2)
2oud aseyaund pue pdb Te8'T9 0 aseyoind dnoto JHH sapn|oul sas} pue Aeq Jad suojes (9)
9oud aseyaund pue pdb 0o/ 2 TT Jo aseyaind eidouns sapnjoul saa) pue Aeq Jad suojes (g)

‘Jue|d 1S9 elpedly ay) ade|dal
*9|qeoljdde 1abuo| ou S| pue papus Juawasinquwial a|qibije 1oy

M YoIym Jueld juswiieas) Jajemalsem mau e sjuasalday ()

aw jo pouad a8yl ‘€00z aunr uj paiinboe sem WalsAs SIYL UOISIAIPGNS 1SN BIPEIIY 3U) UIYIIM SUOIID8UU0D 1o} J1adojaAap ay) 0} a|geasingquiial Junowe ay) suasaiday (g)
‘Aep Jad suo|eb G'z9z suasaldal 1l WaISAS yied [euisnpul 1SS BIpedly ay) Jo 8sed ayl ul 1o Auadoud [enuapisal Ajiwey a|buls e suasaldal nun Buijjemq wsjeainb3 1o Nn@3 uy (2)
‘s99) Aloede) uawieal] pue Joidaaisi] Jaiy ybiya ami ‘1oidadssi| ybiya ulsisap sapnjoul [eol (1)

006'2€T'T $ 281'66. $ 880'/2. $  129'009 $ ovZ'eor  $ EPT'I6E  $ 902'6SC  $ v¥8'Tec  $ 6EL'0T  $ 629'8T $
25 1€ 1€ 2z 1€ 0€g 0T 2
1€9'115 ¥98'06 892Z'9v Y 296'70Y ¥50'vSZ G88'svT 205'2ST 6v72'89
172'68S $ T8Z'8VE $ 68.'082 $ €v9'G6T $ T9T'80¢ $ 8eT'ehe $ ¥69'90T $ TEG'EST $ 6EL°L0T $ 629'8T $
‘[e6 1ad z5000°0$ ‘[eb 1ad zG000°0$ [eb 1ad zG000°0$  ‘1eb 4ad 25000°0% 6 Jod z5000'0eh 4ad 25000 0B Jad 25000°0'eb 1ad 82£00°0%
‘[e6 1ad 8e5T0O'0$ [eb 1od 8eGTO'0$ [l 1od 8eGTO'0$  '1eb 4ad 8eGTO'0$ b Jod 8e5TO 0eh Jad 8e5TO 0%l Jad 8e5T0 0reb 1ad 9T000'0%
‘reb 1ad 69'5$ ‘reb 1ad 91°5$ ‘reb 1ad 28'v$ ‘reb 1ad 99'v$ ‘reb 1od gy'v$ ‘[eb sad 9z'v$ ‘leb uad 0T'v$ reb iad 16°S$
e/ e/ e/ B’/u e/ e/ e/ B’/u 089 $ 089 $
Zr9'ey $ T1.6'8S $ ZW6'vL $ 60v'L0T $ oS8y $ 0Sv'ee  $ 6SE0T  $ L.6'2T $ 0eT'L $ STL'0T $
9/9'z 187'0T 982'8T S08'€T 0ST'TT 18707 65€'L 152'8 19S'T 19S'T
61°6V0'€T 09'259'0T 09°259'0T 21°2€9'0T 2T'2€9'0T 0T'80T'0T 0T'80T'0T 05°218'6 05°218'6 00°0S¥'6
'/ '/ '/ '/ '/ ¥1°608'12 ¥1°608'T2 €9°TLL'0Z €9°TLL'02 ¥ST8L'6T
61'6v0'€T 9z'19¢€'2T 09°2566'0T 09°256'0T 09°256'0T 0T'80T'0T 0T'80T'0T 05°218'6 05°218'6 00°0S¥'6
81258 16°208 28'STL 28'STL 28'STL 05799 05'T99 05°0v9 05°0v9 ¥8'229
68281 LE 6T°99V'TE 0z'216'T 8G'85€'2 8G'85€'C T0TYY'T 8€°026 €9'928 €9'928 09°298
¥8¥T0'T 8€'T66 69'258 8€'8.8 8£'8/8 €8'6v8 88°2T9 0€'¥SS 0€'¥SS 22'€8S
1821202 1G'GES'6T ¥2'228'2 9,'152'€ 9/'152'€ 261952 8 €S T 1T°9/€T TT°9/€'T W ivy'T
82'996'% €0'2258'Y 96'656'C §9'282'€ G9'/82'€ 1€'88L°C €2°025'C 85°092' 85°092' 92'9/€'2
15°052'8 1€'G28'L ¥.°658'S ZE'0TT'9 2E0TT'9 92'88€'S 62'VSL'Y S22 S22 0v'905'2
¥5°220'T 8L°€00'T GE'€98 1€'688 1€'688 v.2v8 65929 60°65€ 60'65€ G2°009
G6'858'T 09°289'T G8'Z8Y'T €0°L0€'T €0°L0€'T 05'98€'T 00°SEY S9'€lE S9'€lE 06'20S
1T°0£0'€ $ 6v766'T $ 6V'766'T $ 6v'766'T $ 6V'¥66'T $ GS9I8'T $ 00TEL'c $ 02200Cc $ 022002 $ 02200C $
(8) ) (9) (g)
86.'€L2'T $ 699°L.T'C $ 066'60S $ e9r'0/€'e $ €02'GeS'T $ 9.0'06v $ LTO'GEY $ GYE'€CT'T $ 9vL'GGE'C $ 886'L8T $
122'66 S9£'vSe S0.'v9 €18'762 1€2'1€2 115'8L 9/¥'SL G6.'T0T 1€8'TL2 1002y
089'T $ 09L'€T $ 065'TT $ 065'TT $ 08T'TT $ 080'TT $ 06E0T $ Ovv'6 $ Ovr'6 $ 0S0'6 $
0252 0€T'L 0ze'9 0ze'9 orT'9 0TT'9 ov8's 0.9'S 0.9'S 09%'s
086'T 0€8'T 0LT'T 0LT'T 0ET'T 00T'T 066 0.6 0.6 ov6
08T'S $ 008t $ 00TV $ 00TV $ 0T6'E $ 0.8 $ 095'€ $ 008'C $ 008'C $ 0597 $
€202 2202 1202 0202 6702 8102 1702 9102 ST0Z ¥102

S334 AY3IAO0D3TY TVLIdVO d31VMILSVM 40 3TNATHDS

VINVATASNNId ‘NMOLINI 1TV

ALIMOHLINY ALNNOD HOIH3

UOISIAIQ UMOIUB||Y [e10L
$994 UO199]|0D
sa94 Aldede)
sa94 buidde |
(s18wo1sn || ‘UOISIAIQ UMOIUS||Y) :pPa1da]|0d S8aH [e10 L
(6) uoiod UoNoa||0D Z Ued - 834 buidde .
(6) uomiod Anoede) z ued - aa4 buidde |
(6) T Wed - 824 Buidde
994 Buidde .
NOISIAIAQ ALID

Pa193||0D S994
Aeq J1ad suo|jes
SWa1SAS 10193]|0D - sajes Aloede) Jayemalsep [enuuy
(v) wed Aoeden
Jue|d Juswieal] BlaquasIam uIISaM
(€) ued wawasinquiay
ued Auoede)d
ued uonos|jod
WaISAS 1S3 eIpedlY
ued Auoede)d
ued uonos|jod
:walsAs Bulids pues
ued Auoede)d
ued uonos|jod
{WB1SAS 998119 POOMBUUAN
ued Auoede)d
ued uonos|jod
:waisAs s1ybiaH biaqapiaH
ued Auoede)d
ued uonos|jod
:wa1sAs ployin Jaddn
(2) N@3 1ad abuey) - swalsAs uon29||0D

(T) pa1a)|0D saa4
Aeq 1ad suojeo
wa1sAS 101daaualu| - sajes Ayoeded Jsyemalsep) [enuuy
eloL
Ayoede) uswieal |
Joydaosa] yaley ybya s
J01dalau| ybiya ulaysam
:suojes 000t Jad abuey) - sio1dasiaiu]

101



LEHIGH COUNTY AUTHORITY
ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVANIA
SCHEDULE OF WATER RATES AND CHARGES - SUBURBAN DIVISION

Common Rates (1)
Effective Date 1/1/21 1/1/22 1/1/23

Metered Water Usage
Fixed Charges:

Meter Size
Quarterly 5/8" & 3/4" $ 20.05 $ 31.30 $ 31.30
1" 35.54 55.48 55.48
Monthly 1-1/2" 26.93 42.04 42.04
2" 37.27 58.18 58.18
3" 67.29 105.05 105.05
4" 98.64 154.00 154.00
6" 184.83 288.54 288.54
8" 287.15 448.27 448.27
10" 404.23 631.04 631.04
Volume Charge per 1,000 gallons: (2)

Quarterly Usage (gals.) Monthly Usage (gals.)
First 120,000 First 40,000 2.76 3.26 3.58
Next 2,880,000 Next 960,000 2.68 3.17 3.24
Next 24,000,000 Next 8,000,000 2.33 2.75 2.83
Next 147,000,000 Next 49,000,000 2.01 2.38 2.63
Over 174,000,000 Over 58,000,000 1.82 2.15 2.44

Public Fire Protection (3)

O&M per Hydrant (Rate per Month) $ 9.88 $ 10.01 $ 10.41
Inch-Squared Foot/Year (4) 0.00164 0.00167 0.00174

Private Fire Protection (Charge per month) (5)
Fire Line Size

SF Residential $ 5.00 $ 5.00 $ 5.00
2" 13.61 13.61 13.61
21/2" 21.26 21.26 21.26
3" 30.62 30.62 30.62
4" 54.43 54.43 54.43
6" 122.47 122.47 122.47
8" 217.72 217.72 217.72
10" 340.18 340.18 340.18
12" 489.87 489.87 489.87

Other Fees
Meter Test Fee (5/8", 3/4" & 1") $ 50.00 $ 50.00 $ 50.00
Meter Inspection Fee 50.00 50.00 50.00
Site Visit Charge (Normal Hrs) & Meter Inspection Fee 50.00 50.00 50.00
Site Visit Charge (After Hrs) 150.00 150.00 150.00
Service Order Charge (Normal Hrs) (6) 50.00 50.00 50.00
Service Order Charge (After Hrs) (6) 150.00 150.00 150.00
Lien Administration Fee (7) 132.15 132.15 132.15
Hydrant Security Device Fee (8) 140.00 140.00 140.00

(1) The Authority implemented common rates on 7/1/98 for the majority of the water service areas. Of 24,393 customers
at year-end 2023, only 34 were on separate rate schedules.

(2) Effective first of the year.

(3) Municipalities are billed for this protection.

(4) Applied to total Transmission and Distribution pipe length for mains with a diameter of 6 to 16 inches.
The latest rate change took effect on 1/1/23.

(5) SF Residential effective 7/12/10 while all other Private Fire rates effective 7/1/06.

(6) Effective 1/1/15.

(7) Effective 12/1/17.

(8) Fee charged to developers for hydrant locking device effective 1/1/17.

Note: The Authority has the ability to change rates at any time as authorized by its Board of Directors.
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LEHIGH COUNTY AUTHORITY
ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVANIA

SCHEDULE OF WATER RATES AND CHARGES - CITY DIVISION

Effective Date
Metered Water Usage
Fixed Charges:
Meter Size
Quarterly 5/8"
3/4"
1
1-1/2"
o
3
4"
6"
g

Monthly 5/8"
3/4"
1
1-1/2"
o
3
4"
6"
g

Volume Charge per 1,000 gallons:

Public Fire Protection
Each Hydrant (Rate per year)

Other Fees
Meter Test Fee (5/8", 3/4" & 1")
Meter Inspection Fee
Site Visit Charge (Normal Hrs) & Meter Inspection Fee
Site Visit Charge (After Hrs)
Service Order Charge (Normal Hrs)
Service Order Charge (After Hrs)
Lien Administration Fee

Rates
1/1/21 1/1/22 1/1/23
48.34 $ 60.81 66.95
55.46 68.43 75.35
69.88 83.98 92.46
n/a n/a n/a
n/a n/a n/a
n/a n/a n/a
n/a n/a n/a
n/a n/a n/a
n/a n/a n/a
n/a n/a n/a
n/a n/a n/a
n/a n/a n/a
40.97 43.88 48.32
55.34 59.27 65.25
93.56 100.20 110.32
136.78 146.49 161.29
256.47 274.67 302.42
400.25 428.67 471.96
3.87478 $ 4.15670 4.56266
385.81 $ 413.20 454,94
50.00 $ 50.00 50.00
50.00 50.00 50.00
50.00 50.00 50.00
150.00 150.00 150.00
50.00 50.00 50.00
150.00 150.00 150.00
132.15 132.15 132.15
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LEHIGH COUNTY AUTHORITY
ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVANIA

SCHEDULE OF WASTEWATER RATES AND CHARGES - CITY DIVISION

Effective Date
Metered Water Usage
Fixed Charges:
Meter Size
Quarterly 5/8"
3/4"
1

1-1/2"

2
3"
4"
6"
8
Monthly 5/8"

3/4"
1"

1-1/2"

2

3
4"
6"
8

Volume Charge per 1,000 gallons:

Rates
1/1/21 1/1/22 1/1/23
16.79 $ 21.13 $ 23.27
19.25 23.76 26.16
24.17 29.03 31.96
n/a n/a n/a
n/a n/a n/a
n/a n/a n/a
n/a n/a n/a
n/a n/a n/a
n/a n/a n/a
n/a n/a n/a
n/a n/a n/a
n/a n/a n/a
14.11 15.11 16.64
19.02 20.37 22.43
32.22 3451 38.00
46.97 50.30 55.38
88.02 94.27 103.79
161.48 172.95 190.41
2.785200 $ 2.983180 $ 3.284080
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LEHIGH COUNTY AUTHORITY
ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVANIA
COMPARATIVE WATER CHARGES
FOR MUNICIPAL OWNED WATER UTILITIES IN
LEHIGH VALLEY REGION OF PENNSYLVANIA
Water bill based on 20,000 gallons consumption per Quarter

Utility

Local Suppliers (1)

South Whitehall Township Authority

Slatington Borough
Lehighton Water Authority

Lehigh County Authority - City Division (3)

Northampton Borough Municipal Authority - North Whitehall Twp.
Easton Suburban Water Authority

Lower Nazareth Township Authority

Northampton Borough Municipal Authority

Lehigh County Authority - WTD Welshtown Road

Borough of Macungie
Upper Saucon Township
City of Bethlehem
Borough of Alburtis

Whitehall Township Authority

Lehigh County Authority - Suburban Division (2)

Catasauqua Borough
Borough of Emmaus

(1) Quarterly amounts are based on rates in effect as of 12/31/23 unless noted.

(2) Includes Central Lehigh (Main System), North Whitehall, Millcreek, Pine Lakes of Lynn, Heidelberg
Heights, Washington Twp, Clearview Farms, Beverly Hills and Emmaus Consecutive divisions or 98.7%

of total customer base.

(3) The Authority entered into a lease concession agreement with the City of Allentown on 8/8/13 to provide

service to approximately 46,650 customers.

107

Quarterly
Amount

178.80
175.56
168.25
166.01
147.45
143.32
143.32
140.77
126.00
122.07
122.00
120.39
117.09
110.00
102.90
102.60

63.35



Sam Adams Pa Brewery (1)
Niagara Bottling

Motts LLC

Ocean Spray Cranberries
Nestle Waters

Sunopta

Hamilton Tech Partners (2)
Coca-Cola

Nestle Waters (Perrier)

IPC Acquisition Inc

Totals

Balance from Other Customers

Grand Total

Sam Adams Pa Brewery (1)
Niagara Bottling

Nestle Waters

Nestle Waters (Perrier)
Ocen Spray Cranberries
Coca-Cola

Hamilton Tech Partners (2)
County of Lehigh

Hospital Central Services
Kraft Foods

Totals

Balance from Other Customers

Grand Total

LEHIGH COUNTY AUTHORITY
ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVANIA
TEN LARGEST INDUSTRIAL & COMMERCIAL WATER CUSTOMERS

CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

2023
% of Total Customer

Customer Charges for Water Sales % of Total
Revenues Services (1000 Gals) Water Sales
$ 1,820,674 3.9% 683,923 9.8%
866,257 1.9% 317,913 4.6%
712,594 1.5% 256,732 3.7%
610,634 1.3% 217,955 3.1%
487,171 1.0% 172,877 2.5%
455,590 1.0% 160,392 2.3%
400,336 0.9% 138,138 2.0%
349,392 0.8% 120,344 1.7%
340,868 0.7% 116,967 1.7%
190,144 0.4% 38,160 0.5%
$ 6,233,660 13.4% 2,223,401 32.0%
40,282,144 86.6% 4,728,308 68.0%
$ 46,515,804 100.0% 6,951,709 100.0%

2014
% of Total Customer

Customer Charges for Water Sales % of Total
Revenues Services (1000 Gals) Water Sales
1,056,693 4.4% 699,677 11.3%
454,989 1.9% 285,687 4.6%
385,752 1.6% 238,587 3.9%
225,226 0.9% 129,601 2.1%
223,139 0.9% 127,551 2.1%
205,654 0.8% 117,264 1.9%
140,891 0.6% 75,357 1.2%
117,928 0.5% 37,240 0.6%
110,899 0.5% 34,973 0.6%
100,900 0.4% 54,426 0.9%
$ 3,022,071 12.5% 1,800,363 29.2%
21,183,252 87.5% 4,364,493 70.8%
$ 24,205,323 100.0% 6,164,856 100.0%

(1) Site of the former Pabst Brewery. Sam Adams Pa Brewery purchased plant from Diageo on

June 2, 2008.

(2) Site of former Agere facility.

(3) CH2MHill is the contract operator of Lehigh County Authority's Wastewater Treatment plant .
The Authority acquired the plant from the County of Lehigh in October 2009.

Note: Revenues include usage charges and private fire protection charges.
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LEHIGH COUNTY AUTHORITY
ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVANIA
WATER BILLING COLLECTIONS
SUBURBAN AND CITY DIVISIONS

Suburban - Water Fund:

% Revenues

Water Water VS. Uncollectible
Year Sales Revenues Sales Amount
2014 7,049,471 7,048,941 99.99% 530
2015 7,421,152 7,421,152 100.00% -
2016 7,564,388 7,563,474 99.99% 914
2017 7,711,257 7,710,881 99.99% 376
2018 8,036,009 8,035,228 99.98% 781
2019 8,555,288 8,555,288 100.00% -
2020 9,550,692 9,550,574 100.00% 118
2021 11,070,220 11,055,039 99.86% 15,181
2022 14,281,247 14,277,918 99.98% 3,329
2023 15,018,299 15,013,349 99.97% 4,950

City* - Water Fund:
% Revenues

Water Water VS, Uncollectible
Year Sales Revenues Sales Amount
2014 16,245,175 16,243,410 99.99% 1,765
2015 16,440,664 16,434,872 99.96% 5,792
2016 16,848,893 16,845,133 99.98% 3,760
2017 17,753,510 17,745,266 99.95% 8,244
2018 19,260,747 19,254,867 99.97% 5,880
2019 20,677,284 20,673,531 99.98% 3,753
2020 21,397,131 21,389,064 99.96% 8,067
2021 23,935,127 23,923,509 99.95% 11,618
2022 27,309,180 27,305,914 99.99% 3,266
2023 30,030,152 30,001,376 99.90% 28,776

Note: Water Sales excludes private and public fire protection charges
as listed on the Revenues by Source schedule.

109



DEBT CAPACITY

This section provides data on outstanding debt of the Authority’s Suburban and
City water and wastewater systems, ratios of debt to personal income and per
capita, information on pledged revenue coverage and overlapping debt of other
municipal entities within the Authority’s Service Area.
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LEHIGH COUNTY AUTHORITY
ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVANIA
RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE

SUBURBAN DIVISION - WASTEWATER SYSTEMS

Common Rate Collector Systems: (1)

As a share of

Revenue Customers Total Debt Personal Personal
Year Bonds Notes Total at Year-end per Customer Income (2) Income
2014 $ 1,868,705 $ - 1,868,705 1585 $ 1,178.99 2.61% 45,211
2015 1,782,769 421,852 2,204,621 1,605 1,373.60 2.89% 47,537
2016 1,696,821 778,492 2,475,313 1,608 1,539.37 3.15% 48,834
2017 1,630,058 740,918 2,370,976 1,689 1,403.78 2.74% 51,298
2018 1,560,901 703,913 2,264,814 1,718 1,318.29 2.46% 53,614
2019 1,481,997 666,533 2,148,530 1,784 1,204.33 2.21% 54,471
2020 1,367,092 628,778 1,995,870 1,825 1,093.63 1.87% 58,402
2021 1,252,497 592,007 1,844,504 1,901 970.28 1.55% 62,537
2022 1,133,791 555,084 1,688,875 1,988 849.53 1.29% 65,821
2023 1,010,825 517,513 1,528,338 2,037 750.29  Not Available Not Available

Western Lehigh Interceptor System:
As a share of

Revenue Customers Total Debt Personal Personal
Year Bonds Notes Total at Year-end per Customer Income (2) Income
2014 $ 315,745 $ 4,406,406 4,722,151 19,595 $ 240.99 0.53% 45,211
2015 128,167 4,157,973 4,286,140 19,774 216.76 0.46% 47,537
2016 - 3,927,001 3,927,001 19,801 198.32 0.41% 48,834
2017 - 3,692,167 3,692,167 20,245 182.37 0.36% 51,298
2018 - 3,451,275 3,451,275 20,504 168.32 0.31% 53,614
2019 - 3,204,180 3,204,180 20,711 154.71 0.28% 54,471
2020 - 2,950,716 2,950,716 21,031 140.30 0.24% 58,402
2021 - 2,690,721 2,690,721 21,163 127.14 0.20% 62,537
2022 - 2,424,026 2,424,026 21,436 113.08 0.17% 65,821
2023 - 2,150,458 2,150,458 21,656 99.30 Not Available Not Available

Arcadia Sewer System (3):
As a share of

Revenue Customers Total Debt Personal Personal
Year Bonds Notes Total at Year-end per Customer Income (3) Income
2014 $ - $ 2,691,700 2,691,700 11 $  244,700.00 N/A N/A
2015 - 2,703,890 2,703,890 15 180,259.33 N/A N/A
2016 - 2,568,833 2,568,833 18 142,712.94 N/A N/A
2017 - 2,432,419 2,432,419 19 128,022.05 N/A N/A
2018 - 2,294,634 2,294,634 19 120,770.21 N/A N/A
2019 - 2,158,904 2,158,904 19 113,626.53 N/A N/A
2020 - 2,022,962 2,022,962 19 106,471.68 N/A N/A
2021 - 1,884,953 1,884,953 20 94,247.65 N/A N/A
2022 - 1,744,846 1,744,846 20 87,242.30 N/A N/A
2023 - 1,602,609 1,602,609 20 80,130.45 N/A N/A

(1) Includes Common Rate Collector Systems: Upper Milford, Heidelberg Heights, Wynnewood Terrace, Sand Spring and
Weisenberg Township - Pointe West.

(2) Although Lehigh County Authority's service area is in the more affluent areas of Western and Northern
Lehigh County, the Personal Income level for the whole County was used to determine the share of
personal income attributable to the debt load. Specific municipal income levels for years other than a
census year were not available.

(3) An upgrade to the wastewater treatment facility was necessary in order to maintain compliance with its NPDES permit. The
eighteen customers are commercial and governmental entities.
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Entity

LEHIGH COUNTY AUTHORITY
ALLENTOWN, PENNNSYLVANIA
WATER AND WASTEWATER SERVICE AREAS
SCHEDULE OF OVERLAPPING DEBT

Gross
Outstanding
Debt 12/31/23

2023 Assessment
Valuation of
Taxable Property (7)

Ratio of Debt
to Assessed
Taxable Property

Lehigh County

Borough of Alburtis
Borough of Emmaus
Borough of Macungie
Heidelberg Township
Lowhill Township

Lower Macungie Township
Lynn Township

North Whitehall Township
Salisbury Township

South Whitehall Township
Upper Macungie Township
Upper Milford Township
Washington Township
Weisenberg Township
East Penn School District (1)
Parkland School District (2)

Northern Lehigh School District (3)
Northwestern Lehigh School District (4)

Salisbury School District (5)

Northampton School District (6)

$ 116,924,690
n/a
1,956,000

8,946,000

n/a
11,834,725

n/a
11,052,000
n/a
21,225,000
50,580,000
43,643,279
121,648,901

$ 31,935,927,300
152,801,000
856,287,700
237,548,100
278,764,100
269,887,900
3,785,349,400
369,372,700
1,612,404,400
1,321,178,800
2,508,441,900
4,670,125,700
846,154,900
488,173,600
779,132,400
5,873,339,800
9,055,449,400
662,377,000
1,683,891,000
1,321,936,300
1,251,659,500

(1) East Penn School District includes Boroughs of Alburtis, Emmaus, Macungie, Lower Macungie
and Upper Milford Townships.

(2) Parkland School District includes Upper Macungie, South Whitehall and North Whitehall Townships, and

portions of the City of Allentown, which are not served by LCA.
(3) Northern Lehigh School District includes Washington Township as a portion of area served.

(4) Northwestern Lehigh School District includes Heidelberg, Lowhill, Weisenberg and Lynn Townships.

(5) Salisbury School District includes Salisbury Township.
(6) Northampton School District includes Clearview Farm Estates.
(7) Lehigh County reassessed all properties in 2012. Valuation changed from 50% to 100%.

Source: Lehigh County Assessment Office
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DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC

This section provides trend information on population, major employees, income
levels, housing starts, commercial and industrial facilities and unemployment
rates, which can indicate the level of economic activity.
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LEHIGH COUNTY AUTHORITY
ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVANIA
MUNICIPAL POPULATION TRENDS

2010 2020 2023 Change
Area Census Census No. %
Lehigh County 349,497 374,557 377,754 25,060 7.2%
Northampton County 297,735 312,951 319,091 15,216 5.1%
Allentown 118,032 125,845 124,880 7,813 6.6%
Borough of Alburtis 2,361 2,643 2,589 282 11.9%
Borough of Emmaus 11,211 11,652 12,017 441 3.9%
Heidelberg Township 3,416 4,313 4,087 897 26.3%
Lower Macungie Township 30,633 32,426 32,524 1,793 5.9%
Lower Milford Township 3,775 3,891 3,865 116 3.1%
Lowhill Township 2,173 2,276 2,272 103 4.7%
Lynn Township 4,229 4,368 4,267 139 3.3%
Borough of Macungie 3,074 3,148 3,384 74 2.4%
Moore Township 9,198 9,460 9,352 262 2.8%
North Whitehall Township 15,703 16,370 15,752 667 4.2%
Salisbury Township 13,505 11,828 13,567 (1,677) -12.4%
South Whitehall Township 19,180 20,306 21,403 1,126 5.9%
Upper Macungie Township 20,063 26,377 28,492 6,314 31.5%
Upper Milford Township 7,292 7,675 8,109 383 5.3%
Washington Township 6,624 7,057 6,559 433 6.5%
Weisenberg Township 4,923 5,284 5,006 361 7.3%

Note: Lehigh County Authority provides water and wastewater service to

portions of the listed areas.

Source: U.S. Census Quickfacts
data.census.gov(formally factfinder.census.gov)

PA HomeTown Locator

pennsylvania.hometownlocator.com
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LEHIGH COUNTY AUTHORITY
ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVANIA
COMPARATIVE POPULATION STATISTICS 1950 - 2023

Lehigh 2 United

Year County Change (1) ABE-MSA Change  Pennsylvania  Change (1) States Change
1950 198,207 437,824 10,498,012 151,325,798

1960 227,536 14.8% 492,168 12.4% 11,319,366 7.8% 179,323,000 18.5%
1970 255,702 12.4% 521,447 5.9% 11,811,561 4.3% 203,215,000 13.3%
1980 272,778 6.7% 551,800 5.8% 11,868,305 0.5% 226,502,000 11.5%
1990 291,946 7.0% 596,817 8.2% 11,903,299 0.3% 248,709,873 9.8%
2000 312,090 6.9% 638,867 7.0% 12,286,107 3.2% 273,643,273 10.0%
2010 349,497 12.0% 821,623 28.6% 12,702,379 3.4% 308,745,538 12.8%
2013 355,768 1.8% 829,300 0.9% 12,781,296 0.6% 316,128,839 2.4%
2014 357,823 0.6% 829,835 0.1% 12,787,209 0.0% 318,857,056 0.9%
2015 360,685 0.8% 832,327 0.3% 12,802,503 0.1% 321,418,820 0.8%
2016 356,756 -1.1% 835,652 0.4% 12,779,559 -0.2% 316,515,021 -1.5%
2017 366,494 2.7% 840,550 0.6% 12,805,537 0.2% 325,719,178 2.9%
2018 368,100 0.4% 842,913 0.3% 12,807,060 0.01% 327,167,434 0.4%
2019 369,318 0% 844,052 0.14% 12,801,989 -0.04% 328,239,523 0.33%
2020 374,557 1.4% 846,399 0% 13,002,700 1.6% 331,449,281 1.0%
2021 375,539 0% 865,310 2% 12,964,056 0% 331,893,745 0%
2022 379,968 1% 871,229 1% 12,972,008 0% 338,289,857 2%
2023 377,754 -1% 873,555 0% 12,961,683 0% 335,893,089 -1%

(1) Change from prior decade.
(2) Allentown-Bethlehem-Easton Metropolitan Service Area

Source: U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis

HUD PD&R Housing Market Profiles
City Population

American Fact Finder-data.census.gov
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2023 New Industrial / Commercial / Institutional Customers - Suburban Division

LEHIGH COUNTY AUTHORITY
ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVANIA

Approximate

€}

Est. Water Usage

Name Classification Size in Sq. Ft. in gallons per day
Customer Additions in 2023:
248 RT 100 Taco Bell Restaurant 2,753 600
749 PA RT 100 Warehouse 160,000 1,200
861 N. Route 100 Financial Institution 1,975 900
1435 Nursery Street Financial Institution 2,110 112
3371 Rt 100 Medical Office 10,157 4,260
5245 Maple Ridge Way Irrigation N/A N/A
5353 Oakview Drive Apartment 14,115 223
5420 Crackersport Road Commercial 21,605 1,150
5877 Hamilton Boulevard Home Depot Commercial 136,048 1,500
7034 Ambassador Drive Warehouse 154,000 1,800
8182 Century Blvd Irrigation Meter 1 N/A N/A
8182 Century Blvd Irrigation Meter 2 N/A N/A
8449 Congdon Hill Drive Lot 9 Warehouse 923,660 1,200
ABE Doors & Windows Redevelopment (6776 Hamilton Blvd)  Car Wash & Retail Stores/Restaurant 15,252 10,107
Guardian Storage Self-Storage Facility 120,000 30
Green Hills Commerce Center 5925 Tilghman Street Commercial 11,200 1,000
4344 Charcoal Drive Posh Properties Day Care / Self Storage Facility 121,388 1,115
West Hills Business Center - Lot H Warehouse 105,000 40,000
Plans Approved or under Review:
2766 Rt 100 Warehouse 187,000 1,200
3200 Orchard Road (7284 Alburtis Rd) Warehouse/Logistics Facility 28,500 485
3262 Schoeneck Road Warehouse 200,000 5,250
Air Products Cetronia Road 3 Warehouses 2,600,100 95,000
3369 PA RT 100 Hospital 22,359 4,260
3500 Brookside Road Apts Development 13,300 7,700
3952 Independence Drive Warehouse 12,500 1,200
4002 Chestnut Street Gas Station 2,791 120
5329-5347-5357 Hamilton Blvd Retail Stores/Fast Food N/A 1,300
6503 Lower Macungie Road Funeral Processing Facility w/ Crematorium 10,309 465
6950 Ambassador Drive - Millipore Sigma Warehouse 350,324 720
7312 Windsor Drive - Lot 61 Warehouse 90,664 1,610
7503 Kernsville Road Warehouse 100,569 1,000
8323 Congdan Hill Road Lot 10 Warehouse 88,330 1,200
Advanced Health Care of Allewntown Transitional Care Facility 33,349 5,778
ATAS International Industrial - Manufacturing 474,800 1,980
Bandit Truck Stop Gas station 8,500 1,850
Beit Simcha Messianic Fellowship 14,200 N/A
Betz Court Warehouse 299,880 3,000
Kings Business Park Mixed Use 52,576 3,901
Lehigh Valley South, Lots 1 & 2 Office Buildings 131,060 7,000
Lehigh Valley West IP, Lots 5-11 Warehouse 384,500 4,540
Lehigh Valley Town Center Mix Use 2,564,072 154,500
Lehigh Valley Top Golf Retail 20,460 1,400
Macungie Crossings (Hamilton & Grange Road) Retail Stores 146,470 15,000
North Valley Trade Center Warehouse 3,136,320 5,000
Penn's View at Madison Village Development w/Master Meter N/A 9,900
Raising Cains Restaurant 3,589 605
Shoppes at Trexler Plaza Gas Station/Car Wash/Retail 2,311 3,268
Towneplace Suites by Marriott Hotel 64,000 8,190
Trexler Senior Living Center Senior Living Center / Retail Stores 132,000 2,665
U-Haul of Lower Macungie Rental 87,044 111
Upper Macungie Community Center Community Center 188,186 6,761
Woodmont Valley 2 Apartments Mixed use Master Meter 13,000 28,090
Yourway Facility Expansion Pharmaceutial Warehouse/Testing Facility 90,805 4,125

N/A = Not Available

(1) Water Usage can be based on a developer estimate, LCA estimate based on submitted plans,
township information, application for water service, wastewater allocation purchase, or Department

of Environmental Protection sewage planning modules.
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LEHIGH COUNTY AUTHORITY
ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVANIA

2023 New Industrial / Commercial / Institutional Customers - City Division

Approximate

(€]
Est. Water Usage

Name Classification Size in Sq. Ft. in gallons per day
Customer Additions in 2023:
123-127 N Lumber St Industrial 20,000 2,500
207-247 N Front St Commercial 75,000 22,755
426 S Aubrey St Industrial 200,000 90,000
450 Lloyd St Commercial 326,000 2,810
615 Water Front Dr Commercial 159,000 18,160
909 W Walnut St Apartment 50,000 7,300
932 Hamilton St Commercial 130,000 23,915
1010 W Hamilton St Commercial 100,000 23,800
1110 N Sherman St Commercial 5,000 300
1115 American Pkwy Industrial 205,475 3,990
1935 S 4th St Commercial 2,145 1,500
2901 Lehigh St Commercial 6,140 2,500
Plans Approved or under Review:
18 N 8th St - Davinci Center Learning Center 80,000 9,000
40 S 8th St Apartments 44,010 4,850
101 N 6th St Apartments 248,000 24,770
120 Union St Industrial 16,000 2,050
128 E Walnut St Manufacturing 200,000 90,000
222 N 7th St Childcare Center 14,810 N/A
301 Union Blvd Hotel 9,285 3,510
349 Hanover Apartment Building 4,000 500
366 W Allen St Apartment Building 42,900 6,400
401 Auburn Ct - North Building Apartment Building 8,000 1,020
401 Auburn Ct - South Building Apartment Building 8,000 1,020
401 N Front St BrewPub/Office Building 100,000 2,760
402 Basin St Warehouse 130,000 5,250
414 S Carlise St Apartment Building N/A 1,020
440 S 15th St Dialysis Center 1,900 5,800
502 E Walnut St School N/A N/A
526 S Aubrey St Daycare 5,000 2,115
560 Waterfront Dr Office/Retail/Restaurant 175,000 N/A
606 S 10th St Industrial Manufacturing 51,000 2,400
630 Waterfront Dr Office/Retail/Restaurant 150,000 N/A
645 Waterfront Dr Office/Retail/Restaurant 133,000 N/A
826 W Turner St Apartment Building N/A 16,200
827 Linden St Apartment Building 400 6,000
829 Linden St Apartment Building 400 6,000
836 Constitution Dr Apartment Building 63,390 23,450
864 Dauphin St Mixed Use N/A N/A
902 Union Blvd Restaurant 2,450 1,300
926 W Hamilton St Apartments/Retail 62,350 10,800
939 W Hamilton St Entertainment Venue 31,170 1,875
948 N Front St Apartment Building 41,140 3,700
949 Hamilton St Hotel 5,700 20,675
1014 Sumner Ave Warehouse 23,525 750
1024 N Bradford St Warehouse 146,000 160
1031 Hamilton St Apartment Building 400 6,000
1035 Ridge Ave Apartment Building 16,000 510
1051 American Parkway Warehouse 100,000 1,994
1129 Union Blvd Daycare 2,000 80
1134 Hanover Ave Restaurant 1,917 1,230
1358 S 5th St Storage 87,500 240
1384 S 5th St Storage 50,000 180
1414 E Cedar St School 24,000 3,190
1501 S 12th St LANTA Bus 60,000 2,050
1528 Hamilton St Apartment Building 63,305 7,050
1736 Hamilton St Lukes Mother Baby 8,860 6,880
1811 Glenwood Industrial 148,100 4,725
1901 S 12th St Warehouse 133,000 4,200
2039 Vultee St Warehouse 88,500 320
2118 Hanover Ave Storage 28,800 70
2401 W Emaus Ave Warehouse 224,000 8,330
2443 Lehigh St - Haldeman Auto Sales 6,700 215
2939 Lehigh St - Sheetz Gas Station 6,070 2,500
Allentown Flex Center Commercial N/A 7,000
Cumberland Apt Complex Apartments 250,000 67,210
Maple Street Garage Parking Garage 82,000 N/A
N Bradford Commercial Commercial N/A 160
Royal Farms - 3015 Lehigh St Gas Station 6,500 1,700
Valania Park City Swimming Pool N/A 1595

N/A = Not Available

(1) Water Usage can be based on a developer estimate, LCA estimate based on submitted plans,
township information, application for water service, wastewater allocation purchase, or Department
of Environmental Protection sewage planning modules.
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LEHIGH COUNTY AUTHORITY

ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVANIA

2023 MAJOR INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL COMPLEXES
WITHIN THE LCA SUBURBAN AND CITY SERVICE AREAS

Total
Name Acreage Status

Air Products & Chemicals 52 Infrastructure Complete
Alburtis Crossing 89 Infrastructure Complete
Arcadia West Industrial Park 210 Infrastructure Complete
Barber Street Townhomes 13 Infrastructure Complete
Barnes Lane Development 14 Infrastructure Complete
Boulder Business Center 256 Infrastructure Complete
Diocesan Pastoral Center 62 Design/Review

Grandview Crossings 53 Infrastructure Complete
Greentree Industrial Park 80 Infrastructure Complete
Hamilton Crossings 55 Infrastructure Complete
Indian Creek Industrial Park 26 Design/Review

Iron Run Industrial Park 533 Infrastructure Complete
JDN Retail Development 39 Infrastructure Complete
Lehigh 100 Corporate Center 87 Infrastructure Complete
Lehigh Valley South Industrial Park 116 Infrastructure Complete
Lehigh Valley West 337 Infrastructure Complete
Lehigh Valley West Il 517 Infrastructure Complete
Liberty at Mill Creek 289 Infrastructure Complete
Little Lehigh Estates 13 Infrastructure Complete
Macungie Crossing 27 Infrastructure Complete
Meadows Business Center 59 Infrastructure Complete
Mill Run Corporate Center 157 Infrastructure Complete
North Whitehall Commercial Center 41 Design/Review

North Whitehall Industrial Park 77 Infrastructure Complete
Spring Creek Properties Settlement Subd 620 Infrastructure Complete
Springside Industrial Acres 28 Infrastructure Complete
Tek Park 137 Infrastructure Complete
The Crossings 201 Infrastructure Complete
The Waterfront, Phase 1 26 Infrastructure Complete
The Waterfront, Phase 2 26 Design/Review

Trexler Business Center 17 Infrastructure Complete
West Hills Business Center, Lot H 14 Design/Review

West Hills Business Center, Lots A-F 313 Infrastructure Complete
West Park Business Center 35 Infrastructure Complete
West Park Il 92 Infrastructure Complete
Western Lehigh Valley Corp. 18 Infrastructure Complete
William Penn Business Center 135 Infrastructure Complete

Source: Plans submitted to Lehigh County Authority.
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LEHIGH COUNTY AUTHORITY
ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVANIA
AVERAGE ANNUAL UNEMPLOYMENT RATES

Lehigh United
Year County Pennsylvania States
2014 6.9% 5.8% 6.2%
2015 5.0% 5.1% 5.0%
2016 4.7% 4.8% 4.7%
2017 4.4% 4.9% 4.4%
2018 4.0% 4.2% 3.9%
2019 4.5% 4.6% 3.7%
2020 7.0% 7.1% 6.7%
2021 4.5% 5.5% 3.9%
2022 3.8% 4.3% 3.5%
2023 3.2% 3.4% 3.6%

Source: US Bureau of Labor Statistics
FRED - fred.stlouisfed.org
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Total Personal Income ($000)
Population (000)
Per Capita Personal Income

Total Personal Income ($000)
Population (000)
Per Capita Personal Income

Total Personal Income ($000)
Population (000)
Per Capita Personal Income

Total Personal Income ($000)
Population (000)
Per Capita Personal Income

Total Personal Income ($000)
Population (000)
Per Capita Personal Income

Total Personal Income ($000)
Population (000)
Per Capita Personal Income

LEHIGH COUNTY AUTHORITY
ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVANIA

PERSONAL INCOME

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
Lehigh County
16,177,642 $ 17,145,783 $ 17,734,075 18,800,570 19,735,321
358 360 366 368 363
45211 3 47537 $ 48,834 51,298 53,614
Pennsylvania
618,858,628 $ 649,909,812 $ 676,880,269 682,533,744 720,073,441
12,792 12,802 12,805 12,807 12,791
48,378 $ 49,786 $ 52,096 53,300 56,225
United States
14,955,700,000 $ 15,737,700,000 $ 15,928,700,000 17,164,600,000 18,205,500,000
320,222 325,200 325,719 327,164 328,240
40,962 $ 48,112 $ 50,398 53,712 54,501
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Lehigh County
20,116,946 $ 21,655,640 $ 23,484,928 24,987,016 Not Available
369 376 373 375 378
54,471 $ 58,402 $ 62,537 65,821 Not Available
Pennsylvania
749,808,500 $ 776,466,700 $ 750,118,900 855,739,000 890,752,300
12,802 12,964 13,001 12,970 12,962
58,046 $ 60,720 $ 64,042 65,167 67,839
United States
18,675,100,000 $ 19,607,450 $ 21,294,800 21,277,200 22,952,030
331,163 331,449 332,032 333,288 335,893
56,650 $ 58,865 $ 63,591 66,534 67,513

Source: U.S. Department of Commerce, Economics and Statistical Administration, Bureau of Economic Analysis.
Office of Financial Management
FRED - Federal Reserve Economic Data

The Statistical Portal
PA WorkStats-PA.gov
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LEHIGH COUNTY AUTHORITY
ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVANIA
CIVILIAN LABOR FORCE 2001 - 2040

Age Estimate
Group 2001 2010 2020 2030 2040
Lehigh Valley 16-19 17,626 15,006 5,720 14,199 16,476
20-24 27,409 34,858 14,487 34,313 40,776
25-34 60,332 63,229 36,507 84,598 92,329
35-44 81,995 71,451 33,984 94,126 92,172
45-54 73,679 83,551 32,140 74911 99,258
55-64 34,398 52,236 27,293 60,838 62,106
65+ 11,172 15,280 10,613 33,884 33,775
Total 306,611 335,611 160,744 396,869 436,892
Pennsylvania 9,363,040 7,137,155 6,396,000 6,467,625 NA
United States 212,577,000 233,658,000 160,671,000 165,400,000 NA

Note: NA means not available.
Source: FRED - fred.stlouidfed.org

Bureau of Labor and Statistics - www.bls.gov

*Some estimate figures not yet available**
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OPERATING INFORMATION

This section provides trends of sales, customer growth, systems capacity,
number of employees and other significant operating and capital indicators.
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LEHIGH COUNTY AUTHORITY
ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVANIA
WESTERN LEHIGH INTERCEPTOR
AVERAGE DAILY WASTEWATER FLOW
ACTUAL AND PROJECTED

System  Billable % of Flow
Year Flow (1) Flow (2) Unbilled

Actual 2014 9.48 5.91 37.6%

2015 8.27 7.38 10.8%

2016 7.76 7.21 7.1%

2017 9.25 6.83 26.2%

2018 11.85 7.26 38.7%

2019 11.65 7.41 36.4%

2020 9.61 7.52 21.7%

2021 9.75 8.08 17.1%

2022 10.17 8.46 16.8%

2023 10.11 8.58 15.1%
Projected (A) 2025 10.78
2030 11.00

(1) System flow to City of Allentown recorded at Keck's Bridge Meter Station
and Spring Creek Road Pump Station.
(2) Flow billed to municipalities.

Note: Flow is reported in millions of gallons per day.

(A) Source: LCA Planning Records.

131



‘reak 1ad suo|jeb Jo spuesnoy) ul UMoYs SI Mo|d :910N

282'1v8'e 0507992 186'G51'C €€€20EC 675902 €TE'85€C STRA S TAA 198'66€C LEV'ZIV'C 256'687°C [eloL

S0T'0T v12'6 14¢A 606'TT YST'TT LLE'ET 6v9'0T 96¢€'CT 698'TT v29'1T Braquasiom
€85'6Y 99¢'GS 607'S ZGS'1S 667'GY 07609 91609 02ZT'SS SPE'T9 €9€°09 paoyliN Jaddn
¥28'609'T 918'GeS'T G92'GSE'T €GLTET'T 226'280T TOE'G60°T 696VTT'T 89¥'Z8T'T L66'9ET'T €2/'SeT'T albunoe saddn
9vT'6TE 88.'7S¢ €Le'8YC 88.'9.2 SYAWA 74 6€C'€8C vee'zee ZST'v8e 8¢5‘ L0V 6€6'T6V I'eysnym uinos
9TL'6LT T67°09T TT6°9€T LEQ'BYT 90Z'9ST 969'8YT 2L0'0vT 908'€rT SeL'YYT T67'9ET Aingsijes
JATA) 26099 299179 20019 €L2'99 12769 21219 Zr9‘0L 1,289 G992 albunoep
68.°GSS 686°LES 2.8'CES v2e'L95 088'G¥S 9T.'vE9 665'8TS 8€5'v6Y 158'125 6ET'EES albunoep Jomo
ZsTe ves'e v9€C 9/€C v8¢'C SYe'C 144’84 1444 L2192 ¥¥9°C 1ymo-g
TEL'6Y 0TLTS L88'TS 260°0S GG.'8v 80€°0S 06%°2S S6T'VS 8ST'TS vSE'TS sinqy

€¢0¢e ¢coe X404 0c0¢ 6T0C 8T0¢ LT0C 9T0¢ ST0C ¥10¢ Alredidiuniy

Mmo|d walsAs a|qe)|ig

SMOT4 371gv 1119 d01d30d3LNI 43113 HOIHAT IT1LLIN
VINVATASNNId ‘NMOLINI TV
ALIHOHLNY ALNNOD HOIHTT

132



‘suojeb Jo suoljjiw 01 sarenba 9N pue Aep Jad suojieb 0] sarenba qdo "Aep Jad suojeb Jo suoljjiw 01 sarenba O 910N

‘002 Ul paseyaind sem (Aep Jad suojeb 000‘sE) waisAs buuds pues ayl 2
'$T0Z Arenuer ul pawnsal uonels ayl ybnoiyi moj4
‘swiajqo.d Buneiado Jo asnedaq 900z 1SNBNY Ul 32IAISS WOJ) panowal Apusuewlad sem jue|d vipealy 8yl 'G00Z Joquadaq ul Aep Jad suojieb 000‘09 01 papelbdn sem
Jue|d POOMBUUANN 3L €002 Ul paseyaind alam swaisAs (Aep Jad suojeb 000‘ZT) died [eisnpu| eipedly pue (Aep Jad suojeb 006‘TS) 8Jelid] POOMBUUAA 3yl ‘g
ueld Buluonounjuou e ase|dal 01 000z Ul palajdwod sem jue|d Juswieas Mau Y ‘866T Ul SiyblaH BiaqaplaH e
:UoISIAIQ ueqingns ayl Aq paainboe aiam syue|d Juswieal) abexoed yim swalsAs 10199]|09 Buimolios syl ()
‘pua Jeak 1e eld Juswiean (pbw) Aep Jad suojeh uoliw O siue|d Wwawieall MM puels| auly ays ul Aep Jad suojieb jo suoljiw ul Ayoede) [euoisinig siuasalday (2)
"S9OIAISS JUBWIRal) J0) SUOISIAIQ BY) 0] 1ue|d Juawieall MM Pue|s| aulp ayl Ag pajjiq Aep Jad suojjeb jo suoljjiw ul Mol fenuue ayl sjuasaiday (1)

00°98¢ 00°58¢ 00°98¢ 00°G8¢ 00°98¢ 00°58¢ 00°98¢ 00°G8¢ 00°98¢ 00°58¢ adid Jo sajIiN
000 00'ov 00'0v 0o0'ov 000 0o0'ov 000 00'ov 000 0o0'ov Ayoeded ubisaq jue|d Juawieal |
000 0o'ov 000y 0oov 000y 0o'ov 000y 0oov 000y 0o'ov (@OW) pasn uonedo||y Jayemalsem
€cee T19°¢E Gc'ce 8¢'¢ce v9'LE L0°9€ 8.°0€ L9°6¢ vi'0e 6€'Ce (T) pue|s| saully Je paniadas moj} Alieq abesany

» :WB1ISAS Jaremalsepn uoisiaig A11D

00°0ce 00°0ce 00°0ce 00°0ce 00°0ce 00°0ce 00°0ce 00°0ce 00°0ce 00°0ce Sureiy Is1eM Jo sa|IN
00°0S 00°0S 00°0S 00°0S 00°0S 00°0S 00°0S 00°0S 00°0S 00°0S (o) Auoede) abelols walsAs
00'T. 00°TL 00'T. 00°TL 00°T. 00°TL 00'T. 00°TL 00'T. 00°TL (@on) Awoede) Alddns ajes
89°0€ 18°0€ 0c'6¢ 9¢'8¢ 05'6¢ 9/.°6¢ v1'Le 0€'S¢ c1'9¢ 6¢'G¢ (aoW) puewaq Aeq xead
16¢c 0S'¢c 00°¢c L9°T¢ 16°T¢ 6v'T¢ 9T'T¢ Tv'0c 66°6T 6E°8T (@oW) puewsq Ajreq abelany
9¢'8 €8 7€'8 LE'8 LE'8 ov'8 ce8 9€'8 E€r'8 TZ'8 (Q9OW) safes J1arem

x :WBISAS Jarepn uoisiaig A1D

Sv'0.L A Sv'0.L ¥2°0. 9£'0. €6'T. 89T/ €e'T. AWA) €0°29 adid WalsAS Jayemalsen Jo SajIN [e1oL
82'6€ 82'6€ 82'6€ L0'6€ 61°6€ 9.°0% 150V 9T'0% 16'SE 98'GE walsAS 10199]|00
99'g 99'G 99'g 99'G 99'g 99'G 99'g 99'G 99'g 99'S loydaasaiu| yai2y ybiya amin
15°6¢C 16'S¢C 15°6¢C 16'S¢C 15°6¢C 16'S¢C 15°6¢C 16'S¢C 15°6¢C 15°6¢ loidadssiu) ybiys uiLIsapm
:adid Jo S9N
000'GSE 000'GGE 000'GSE 000'GGE 000'SSE 000'GSE 000'SSE 000'GGE 000'SSE 000'GGE () (dD) swaisAs 10199]10D
ul Ayoede) ubisaq we|d luswieal |
122'66 G9£'vSe S0.L'v9 €/8'762 1£2'T€2 116'8. 9/¥'G. 008'v2T z6g'ele 609'LY (Aep sad suojjeb) p|oS uoneIO||y JaleMalSe
8/°0T 8/°0T 8/°0T 8.°0T 8/°0T 8.°0T 8/°0T 8.°0T 8/°0T 8/°0T (2) AuoedeD juswiess
206 59'6 9T'6 ¥0'6 26°0T 6T'TT 08'8 86°L 88, 268 (T) pueys| s,auly 01 Moy} Ajleq abelany

:Wa1SAS 191BMBISBAN UOISIAIQ URQINgNS

¥6'9G€ 0T'€Se 08'Tve 08'TVe 08'Tve 00'€ve 8.'TvE 19'62¢ 25'22e 26'6TE SUre|y Jayepn JO SafIA
ITTT ITTT ITTT ITTT ITTT ITTT ITTT ST'TT ST'TT ST'TT (o) Auoede) abelois waishs
0L°LT 0L'LT 0L°LT 0L'LT 0L°LT 0L'LT 0L°LT 0L'LT 0L°LT 0L'LT (@ow) Anoeded Alddngs syes
€8'9T €£'9T €2'ST Sy YT 88°ZT Z0°€T 59°CT 09°€T 8/°TT SLTT (@9IN) puewaq Aeq dead
/8°TT STArA) Z6°TT 60°TT Ge0T 10°0T 88'6 00T 89'6 126 (@) puewsq Ajreq abeisny
8.°0T 6.°0T £7'0T 6.6 68'8 6.8 86'8 Z29'6 LT'6 89'8 (@ow) sares 1arem

:WB1SAS IB1BAN UOISIAIQ URQINgnS

€c¢0c (4404 Tcoc 0¢0c 610¢ 810¢ L10¢ 910¢ GT10¢ ¥10Z

SHOL1VIIANI TVLIdVO ANV ONILVH3dO
VINVATASNNId ‘NMOLNI TV
ALIHOHLINY ALNNOD HOIHAT

133



‘paoejdai Buiag 1Inoyum pua-reak alojaq JuswAhojdws Buines| saakojdwa awn|n} pue djay [euoseas Jo asneda(
pua-eah 1e saakojdwa paaoxa Aew s,314 2101 "SInoy uoneziuehlo [e10) Aq puny e 01 paledo|e sinoy [ejol BulpiAip Aq palenojed
sl JuawAojdwa 1ajeainba swnjnd ‘(swnyo Jayio pue uoneoseA Buipnjoul) Jeak Jad sinoy 080‘z 01 usfeAinba sI aakojdwa awnjn} v 910N

‘s108/01d reuded uo Bunjiom sashojdwas pue sioyoadsul sepnjou; (1)

- - N - - - - - - -
791 99T 84T LGT 297 09T qaT 174" 2174 0ST
6'GST 2'esT A4 G297 €GaT 0'€esT L°0ST SarT 8'LYT L'LyT
8T €T [ 0¢ [ A VT €c L'T LT
8'Gy 9Ly 99y 8'TS L'y 8'8¥ a8y 6'Ly 99y 89
6'T 91 9'¢ q'¢ 0€ 6V 8'G 69 1A% 0¢
8'LE €'LE 9'GE €'6¢E 8'6€ V'6€ G'LE L'vE g'ey €8y
86T 98T LT WA 26T €8T €8T 0°LT T.LT 9'qT
7T QT 971 G'¢ 6'¢ LT €T 0T 0T 0T
(A5 '8 'L €8 g9'8 TL 69 T. g9 8'S
q'¢ 6'¢ 9V 0'S 17> €e 8¢ A q'€ 6'T
6'6T ¥'0¢c L'8T A4 TL1 0°LT 2’81 €aT A4 8T
8'GT 6°ET V'ET x4 q'¢cl €17 00T 70T €6 8'6

€20¢ [44 14 1202 0c0c 6102 8T0¢ LT0C 9102 ST0C 7102

saakojdw3 sfeAinb3 awn)n4 101

adNNd A9 S33AO0TdINE 40 d39INNN

VINVATASNNId ‘NMOLNI TV
ALIHOHLNY ALNNOD HOIHA'T

awiued
awnjind

:pus-1eak 1e seakoldw3 Jo #
[elol

(T) reude) iaremarse

suoneladQ Jaremalse

(T) reude) 1arepn

suonelsadQ Jare

[eaus|d
® 90IAISS JaWOISND ‘UoleASIuILPY

NOISIAIQ ALID
(T) reuded 1aremarse
suoneladQ Jaremalse \\
(T) rended Jarem
suoneladQ Jare

[eaus|d
® 90IAISS JBWOISND ‘UoeASIuILPY

NOISIAId NvgdNans

134



OTHER INFORMATION



LEHIGH COUNTY AUTHORITY
ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVANIA
PROFILE OF AUTHORITY MANAGEMENT STAFF
December 31, 2023

Liesel M. Gross, Chief Executive Officer

Ms. Gross holds a Master’s Degree in Public Administration Degree from Kutztown
University and a Bachelor's Degree in Journalism / Public Relations from Indiana University of
Pennsylvania. She has been employed by the Authority since 1998. She began her service to
the Authority in a public relations role and became the Authority’s Customer & Communications
Manager in 2006. In her role as Chief Executive Officer, which she began in 2016, Ms. Gross
focuses attention on providing broad organizational leadership both internally and externally,
with a focus on developing collaboration and synergies among operational groups and engaging
employees and the public in future decision-making of the Authority.

Over her years of service to the Authority, she has served in numerous positions
in local, state and national professional associations. She served on the Board of Directors of
the American Water Works Association (AWWA) from 2016 to 2019. She also has served as
Chair of the American Water Works Association, Pennsylvania Section, Trustee of the
Northeast District AWWA, and has served on numerous committees of the Association at the
state and national level, including the Water Utility Council and the Workforce Strategies,
Knowledge Management, and Diversity & Member Inclusion committees of the AWWA. She is
a current member of the Board of Directors for the East Penn Chamber of Commerce, and the
Greater Lehigh Valley Chamber of Commerce’s Energy & Environment Committee, and serves
as the secretary of the Lehigh Valley Water Suppliers, Inc. She is currently serving on the
Legislative Committee of the Pennsylvania Municipal Authorities Association and the Executive
Committee of the Water Resources Association of the Delaware River Basin.

Edward C. Klein, Chief Financial Officer

Prior to joining the Authority in 2015, Mr. Klein worked for almost fifteen years with
Weir Hazleton, Inc. as Vice President of Finance. His primary area of responsibility was for all
financial activities of the business and had responsibility for Human Resources, Information
Technology, Safety, and Administration. He also served in the operations area of the business
for a short period of time as Interim Vice President of Operations.

Mr. Klein has a Master's Degree in Business Administration from Pennsylvania
State University and a Bachelor’s Degree in Accounting from King’s College. He has provided
financial leadership which had a positive impact on the performance of the businesses that he
has served by implementing solid financial structure, being a business partner to the executive
team through analysis and advice, eliminating waste, managing risks of the business, and being
a champion of change.

In his role as Chief Financial Officer, Mr. Klein focuses on the financial
infrastructure and controls to support the strategic objectives of the Authority and provides the
financial leadership to allow the Authority to improve its overall performance in a highly dynamic
economic environment.
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Charles Volk, P.E., Chief Capital Works Officer

Charles Volk holds a Bachelor's Degree in Civil Engineering from the
Pennsylvania State University. He joined the Authority in 2015 after 30 years of engineering
experience, the majority of which was spent engineering water and wastewater system projects
as a consultant. Mr. Volk has designed and managed numerous water and wastewater
treatment and conveyance projects, and has extensive experience with regulatory and funding
agencies. He also served as engineer for Lehigh Northampton Airport Authority. Mr. Volk is a
registered professional engineer in Pennsylvania, and is a member of various professional
organizations and also serves as a Township Supervisor for his local municipality.

In his role as Chief Capital Works Officer, Mr. Volk is responsible for the planning,
design, and construction of capital improvement projects, many of which are driven by an asset
management protocol for Authority’s linear and vertical water and wastewater assets. Mr. Volk
is responsible for prioritizing facility improvements projects in the capital planning process, with
a focus on reducing long term life-cycle costs and minimizing risk. Mr. Volk also oversees
management and providing capital planning leadership for the Authority’s industrial wastewater
pre-treatment plant and provides in-house engineering support across departments.

Susan Sampson, Communications Manager

Susan Sampson holds a Bachelor's Degree in Rehabilitation Counseling from the
Pennsylvania State University. She joined the Authority in 2017 after 23 years of corporate
public relations, communications, and management experience. She attended the Carroll
School of Management at Boston College, earning a certificate in Corporate Community
Involvement. She has extensive community, media, and legislative relations experience and has
managed corporate partnerships with national organizations, driving results with customer and
public education campaigns.

In her role as Communications Manager, Ms. Sampson is responsible for the
development and implementation of a strategic communications plan, including internal and
external communications, and customer education. She manages the company website and
social media, as well as relationships with media contacts. She coordinates community relations
on behalf of Lehigh County Authority, including youth outreach, volunteer events, site visits,
speaking engagements, community partnerships, and more.
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Christopher W. Moughan, Director of Service & Technology

Christopher Moughan holds a Master's of Business Administration from DeSales
University and undergraduate degrees from Muhlenberg College and Penn State. He is also
MCSE Certified, and has certificates of training for several business reporting software suites.
He joined the Authority in 2017 after spending many years in the information technology field
focusing on security and innovative ways for organizations to gain efficiencies.

He is responsible for leading, planning and organizing all activities of the Information
Technology (IT) department and to ensure the effective, efficient and secure operation of
information technology processes and systems. He also governs the Authority’s IT strategic
plan and direction of the department, including providing oversight on IT governance,
developing user groups, and assessing development training needs. Mr. Moughan provide the
vision and leadership to drive the adoption of technology, innovation and automation for the
organization. Through this work, he supports the Authority’s goals for process improvement,
knowledge retention and capture, and efficiency.

Philip M. DePoe, P.E., Senior Planning Engineer

Mr. DePoe holds a Bachelor's Degree in Civil Engineering from the
Pennsylvania State University. He joined the Authority in 2014 as a Capital Works Engineer
after eight years of service in the engineering consulting business. He worked as a project
engineer prior to joining the Authority, where he obtained his professional engineering license
for Pennsylvania in 2012. In addition, Mr. DePoe is a Board member of the Water Works
Operators’ Association of Pennsylvania, where he served as Editor from 2010-2020. In 2021, he
transitioned into the role of Secretary-Treasurer for the Association.

Prior to his new role as the Senior Planning Engineer at the Authority, Mr. DePoe was
the Capital Works Program Manager where he helped to develop the annual capital plan for
both the Suburban and City Division. His role included significant management of capital
activities for the Allentown Filtration Plant and the Kline’s Island Wastewater Treatment Plant.
Mr. DePoe assumed his new role as Senior Planning Engineer in late 2019 and is now
responsible for strategic long-term water and wastewater facility planning, resource
development, and support for the Authority’s overall regional service approach. In this role, he
works closely with all municipalities within the Authority’s service area to ensure long-term water
and sewer needs are met, and coordinates activities among various Authority departments,
regulators and consultants to develop plans to meet the region’s needs.
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Andrew D. Moore, Director of Plant Operations

Mr. Moore holds a Bachelor’'s Degree in Forensic Chemistry from York College
of Pennsylvania. He joined the Authority in 2017 after seven years of laboratory management
and wastewater plant operation. He holds a PA DEP State Board Wastewater Operators A-E 2-
5 certification and is involved with multiple wastewater and drinking water organizations,
including sitting on the Board of Directors for the Pretreatment Information Exchange, Inc.

In his role as Director of Plant Operations, Mr. Moore is responsible for overseeing
operation and compliance of the Authority’s water and wastewater facilities. He ensures the
organization is held to the highest standards to ensure efficient and cost-effective treatment. In
addition, he examines and advises on new environmental regulations in order to identify risks to
the Authority’s compliance.

Albert J. Capuzzi, P.E., Director of Engineering & Asset Management

Albert J. Capuzzi holds a Bachelor's Degree in Civil Engineering from the Villanova University
and a Master of Arts from Seton Hall University. He is a licensed professional engineer in the
states of New Jersey and New York and a Designated Design Build Professional. He joined the
Authority in 2022. He spent his 30+ year career protecting public health and the environment in
consulting by assisting water and wastewater utilities with successful studies (master plans,
asset management, water quality), designs (conveyance, storage, treatment) and construction
projects. In his role as Director of Engineering and Asset Management, Mr. Capuzzi is
responsible for the leading planning, design, construction, and asset management activities for
the Authority.
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Brian C. Nagle, Chairman — Term Expires December 31, 2024

Mr. Nagle holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Mechanical Engineering from
Rutgers University. Mr. Nagle is a life-long resident of the Lehigh Valley and is now
retired from PPL Corporation after 38 years of service in engineering, project
management, environmental management and regulatory affairs. He was a founding
Board member of the Sustainable Energy Fund and served on the Board of the
Wildlands Conservancy for 8 years until 2015. He also served on the Board of
Macungie Memorial Park Association for 9 years until 2019. Mr. Nagle has also been
involved in the Lehigh Valley’s initiatives to preserve open space and revitalize
abandoned industrial sites. Mr. Nagle has been an Authority Board member since 2009.

Amir Famili, Vice Chairman — Term Expires December 31, 2023

Mr. Famili holds a Ph.D. degree in Chemistry from University of Akron. He worked
at Air Products and Chemicals for 34 years before retirement in 2018. While in Air
Products, Mr. Famili was Global Technology Director and Chief Technology Officer of the
Performance Material business responsible for new products, application development
and new process development. He is a long-time resident of the Lehigh Valley. Mr.
Famili is member of Allentown West Rotary Club and a core volunteer of Lehigh Valley
Habitat for Humanity. Mr. Famili became an Authority Board member in July 2019.

Ted Lyons Jr., Treasurer — Term Expires December 31, 2023

Mr. Lyons holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Civil Engineering from Duke
and an MBA from the Wharton School University of Pennsylvania. He is retired from HT
Lyons, Inc., a mechanical contracting and engineering firm which he founded in 1973
and was acquired by PPL in 1998. He serves on the boards of the Allentown Boys and
Girls Club and the Allentown Art Museum. He is also a past board member of the
Allentown Symphony and the DaVinci Science Center. Mr. Lyons became an Authority
Board member in August 2014.

Kevin |. Baker, Assistant Treasurer — Term Expires December 31, 2025

Mr. Baker holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Chemical Engineering from
University College, London and an MBA from Manchester Business School, University of
Manchester in the UK. He is a Fellow of the Institution of Chemical Engineers and a
Chartered European Engineer. He is President and CEO of UIG, LLC a supplier of
industrial gases and related equipment and services, owned by Nucor Corporation. He is
a long-time resident of Lehigh County and previously served as President of the East
Penn Chamber of Commerce and on the Board of Governors for the Lehigh Valley
Chamber. Mr. Baker became an Authority Board member in April of 2016.
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Linda A. Rosenfeld, Secretary — Term Expires December 31, 2026

Ms. Rosenfeld attended Penn State University. A lifelong resident of Lehigh
County, she is a retired office manager and has served as President of Allentown City
Council, Vice-president of Lehigh County Board of Commissioners, Chair of the
Allentown Commercial and Industrial Development Authority, Vice-chair of the Lehigh
Northampton Airport Authority, Member of the Bridgeworks Advisory Board, Chair of the
Allentown Parking Authority, President of Big Brothers and Big Sisters of Lehigh County,
President of Haven House (Partial Hospitalization Program for the Mentally Ill). She is
presently Secretary of Repertory Dance Theatre, member of the Haven House Advisory
Board, ex-officio on the Board of Allentown Economic Development Authority (AEDC)
and most recently appointed to the Allentown Commercial and Industrial Development
Authority (ACIDA). She served 15 years as a Court Appointed Special Advocate (CASA)
a volunteer representing and advocating for children going through the Court System,
many of whom are neglected or abused. Ms. Rosenfeld became an Authority Board
member in January 2015.

Norma A. Cusick, Assistant Secretary — Term Expires December 31, 2024

Ms. Cusick holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from De Sales University and a
Master of Arts degree from Kutztown University and is a certified paralegal. She has
been a resident of Lehigh County for 49 years and was a small business owner and
business manager. Ms. Cusick has served as the Division Director for the American
Heart Association, Allentown Downtown Improvement District, the Board of Directors
of the Allentown Public Library, Salisbury Township School Board, Salisbury Township
Commissioner, Salisbury Township Planning Commission and is currently on the
Salisbury Township Education Foundation.

Ms. Cusick has served on the Board of Directors of the Pennsylvania
Shakespeare Festival, Child Advocacy Center and was past President of the Lehigh
County Sports Fields. She has also participated with and served on several additional
community organizations, including the Greater Lehigh Valley Girl Scouts. Throughout
the period of her residence, she continues to be active in many other local, regional,
and statewide endeavors. Ms. Cusick is currently on the Executive Committee of the
Board of Associates of Lehigh Valley Hospital Network. Ms. Cusick became an
Authority Board member in March 2010.

140



LEHIGH COUNTY AUTHORITY
ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVANIA
PROFILE OF AUTHORITY BOARD MEMBERS
December 31, 2023

Jeffrey J. Morgan. Member — Term Expires December 31, 2026

Mr. Morgan grew up in Allentown and graduated from William Allen High
School. He earned a Bachelor of Science degree in Physics from Muhlenberg College
and a Master of Science degree in Environmental Engineering and Water Resources
from Villanova University. He is a professional engineer licensed in PA, NJ and DE. He
has over 30 years of diverse engineering and client management experience in the
water and wastewater industry. Mr. Morgan works for a small engineering firm that
specializes in water, wastewater, industrial pretreatment, construction management
and stormwater work for municipalities and authorities. Mr. Morgan has volunteered his
time with various youth sports organizations over the years and is currently in his
sixteenth year of volunteering with the South Parkland Youth Association’s Football
Program. Mr. Morgan currently resides in South Whitehall Township. Mr. Morgan
became an Authority Board member in March 2017.

Sean Ziller, Member — Term Expires December 31, 2027

Mr. Ziller holds a Master of Public Administration degree, with graduate
certificates in Public Budgeting & Financial Management and Public Sector Human
Resources Management, from Penn State University, and a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Political Science from King's College (PA). He is currently the Community and Economic
Development Administrator for the City of Easton, and prior to joining the City, worked in
both the higher education and private sectors - in the latter field, helping to drive the
operational oversight and implementation of multi-million-dollar contracts that provided
new technology resources to regional government agencies in Philadelphia. Sean
became a resident of the Lehigh Valley in 2018 and, in addition to his membership on the
board of the Lehigh County Authority (LCA), he currently serves on the board of the
Volunteer Center of the Lehigh Valley; on the boards of the Greater Lehigh Valley
Chamber of Commerce (GLVCC) Whitehall Area and Easton Area Chambers, holding
the position of Vice Chair on the latter; and is on the Advisory Council for the recently
formed Great Lakes Economic Development Council (GLEDC).

He has previously served on the Whitehall Township Planning Commission, as a column
author for the American Society for Public Administration (ASPA) online editorial; as
Chairperson of the Luzerne County Accountability, Conduct, and Ethics Commission;
and has volunteered extensively with the Muscular Dystrophy Association. Mr. Ziller
became an Authority Board member in February 2023.
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Marc J. Grammes, Member — Term Expires December 31, 2027

Mr. Grammes is a lifelong resident of the Northern Lehigh Area where together with his
wife Elizabeth they raised their family of four children. He remains an active member of
the community. He is a graduate of Slatington High School, and a US Navy Veteran,
both enlisted and as a commissioned officer. He is a 1983 graduate of the US Merchant
Marine Academy at Kings Point New York, where he earned a Bachelor of Science
degree in Marine Engineering, a US Coast Guard License as a Merchant Marine
Officer, Third Assistant Engineer for both Steam and Motor Ocean Vessels of unlimited
tonnage, and a commission in the US Navy. He brings over 40 years of extensive
experience in the design engineering and power operations in both nuclear and fossil
power plants. He has volunteered his time with youth sports, the Boy Scouts of
America, the Rotary Club of Slatington, and the Knights of Columbus. He has a strong
passion for the outdoors and enjoys fishing and hiking. He is the Founder of the Leaser
Lake Heritage Foundation, where he worked together with government officials, local
sportsmen groups and volunteers for the restoration and rehabilitation of Leaser Lake.
Mr. Grammes is also a Founding Member of the Lehigh Valley Zoological Society,
where he advocated for the preservation of the Lehigh Valley Zoo. Mr. Grammes
served as a Lehigh County Commissioner from 2004-2008 and again from 2018 to
2022 and served as Vice Chair of the Board for two years. Mr. Grammes became and
Authority Board member in February 2023.
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LCA Strategic Plan:
2022-2027

Our Mission

Who is Lehigh County Authority?
Why do we exist?

To protect public health and the environment by
providing high-quality, safe, and reliable water and
wastewater services.

Our Vision
What does LCA aspire to become in the future?

To be a trusted and engaged community partner,
advancing the vitality of our region through
exceptional water and wastewater services.




[

Lehigh County Authority

Our Shared Values

: Service - We take pride in our role as public servants.
\Q We focus on serving customers and each other.

\ Engagement - We enjoy learning, exploring new
\y ideas, solving problems, and embracing changes that
000 , :
\ support continuous improvement.

3‘7 Dedication - We give our best effort every day and
6. ® seekwaysto contribute to achieving LCA's goals.

-®- Positivity - We face challenges with optimism and
foster trust, teamwork, and collaboration.

can bel!

N\ =g
Q Excellence - We strive to make LCA the best utility it




Operational Excellence

To proactively ensure safe and reliable service
delivery, regulatory compliance, and resilient
operations through streamlined processes, best
practices, and data-driven decision-making

Strategy 1: Establish and implement plans to meet or exceed all regulatory requirements.

Examples of what we are already doing:

Responding to the Lead and Copper Rule

Participate in the Partnership for Safe Drinking Water - (exceed DEP requirements)
Update and implement existing master plans

Continue to update SCADA systems (4-year project)

NEW Activities Beginning in 2022:
e Address small system challenges that result in violations / boil advisories
e Conduct root cause analysis and identify targeted improvements to mitigate permit
exceedances

Strategy 2: Participate in the legislative and regulatory review process to prepare for new
regulations and ensure LCA’s interests are considered

Examples of what we are already doing:
e Responding to the Lead and Copper Rule
o Monitor via committees, associations
e Participate by providing comments on proposed legislation

NEW Activities Beginning in 2022:
e Increase staff / leadership team awareness and participation in regulatory review /
legislative processes
e Proactively address upcoming regulations (e.g., PFAS, internal targets, etc.)

Strategy 3: Develop strategies to enhance organizational resiliency, especially in the areas of
cyber security, emergency preparedness, system redundancy, and climate change.

Examples of what we are already doing:
e Constant monitoring of DHS ISAC (cyber-threats)
e Develop/Update and implement appropriate master plans
e Develop and implement recovery plans/succession plans by departments
e Update standard operating procedures

NEW Activities Beginning in 2022:
e Improve emergency communications protocols for cyber event / other events
e Implement large diameter valve maintenance program
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Regional Collaboration and Leadership

To help our region to thrive by growing community
confidence in LCA, advancing collaborative efforts,
and demonstrating operational excellence

Strategy 1: Collaborate with municipalities, stakeholders, regulators, and community groups to
increase our understanding of the region's goals and strengthen the role LCA plays in supporting
them.

Examples of what we are already doing:
e Manage complex intermunicipal service agreements
e Regulatory outreach

NEW Activities Beginning in 2022:
e Monitor meeting agendas and attend municipal meetings to address topics where LCA could
add value.
e Develop an engagement strategy for municipalities

Strategy 2: Advance LCA’s position in the region as the leading resource on water and
wastewater-related issues.

Examples of what we are already doing:
e Active involvement in industry organizations
e Municipal meeting facilitation

NEW Activities Beginning in 2022:
e Increase visibility of LCA team member’s industry participation

Strategy 3: Support environmental sustainability and water equity initiatives through
partnerships, education, and policy.

Examples of what we are already doing:
e Project-specific energy efficiencies
o  Water equity network participation

NEW Activities Beginning in 2022:

e Expand LCA’s watershed monitoring program (include more stakeholders & publish data and
results)

o Identify LCA-specific environmental sustainability goals (energy efficiency, waste reduction,
others) and policies

o Develop relationships with organizations that address equity and environmental
sustainability issues.

o Create employee volunteer network to participate in community / environmental events (ex.,
stream cleanups, tree plantings)
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Financial Stewardship

To cost-effectively serve our community, now
and in the future, by managing funds effectively
and responsibly to support debt commitments,
operational needs, and asset management

Strategy 1: Sustainably support LCA's water and wastewater systems through responsible
financial management.

Examples of what we are already doing:
e Financial reporting
e 5-year capital plan

NEW Activities Beginning in 2022:
e Enhance financial forecasting from quarterly to rolling monthly
e Departmental level financial reporting
e Begin analyzing and reporting on the cost of internal processes and activities
e Simplify payroll process / time reporting

Strategy 2: Develop decision-making criteria for evaluating growth opportunities.

Examples of what we are already doing:
o When an opportunity arises, identify the quality of the assets, determine cash flow impact,
and identify operational viability of the system before deciding on LCA's involvement

NEW Activities Beginning in 2022:
e Determine LCA's desired role in acquiring small systems
e Create menu of options / capabilities list for contract operations, lease options, acquisition,
etc.

Strategy 3: Establish rates that balance affordability with achieving required revenue targets that
support the financial needs of LCA.

Examples of what we are already doing:
e Evaluate future of LCA’s customer assistance program & support through payment plans and
other options
e Annual rate adjustment
e Regular rate studies

NEW Activities Beginning in 2022:
e Pursue alternative funding sources (e.g., Pennvest, WIFIA, grants)
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Customer Engagement and Support

To create an exceptional customer
experience and build trust and understanding
of LCA’s essential services

Strategy 1: Enhance customer engagement and experience through process improvements and
adoption of new technology.

Examples of what we are already doing:
e Improve customer service processes (from process improvement list) including evaluation of
phone system, IVR updates, and other technology solutions

NEW Activities Beginning in 2022:
e Enhance customer self-service tools
e Standardize complaint tracking & handling protocols (including scripting)
e Define customer service excellence & metrics to track performance

Strategy 2: Improve our responsiveness to customers’ needs.

Examples of what we are already doing:
e Improve customer service processes (from process improvement list) including evaluation of
phone system, IVR updates, and other technology solutions

NEW Activities Beginning in 2022:

Improved delinquency termination process

Create after hours customer service staffing plan for emergency response.
After-hours service enhancement

Develop customer service SOPs

Strategy 3: Grow customer awareness and support for LCA’s goals and direction.

Examples of what we are already doing:
o Newsletter
e Social media
e Public education / events

NEW Activities Beginning in 2022:
e Communication / customer education about risk prevention
o Website enhancements
e Private side sewer system customer education
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System Capacity and Reliability

To dependably meet current and future community
needs and achieve optimal levels of service by
effectively managing assets and implementing
projects to ensure sufficient system capacity

Strategy 1: Increase our systems’ capacity to address economic development needs in our
region.

Examples of what we are already doing:
e DEP-mandated regional sewer planning
e DEP-issued Consent Orders, corrective action plan activities

NEW Activities Beginning in 2022:
o Assess water supply resiliency (Suburban focus)
e Develop and implement master plan for pre-treatment plant
e Develop concepts and information around regional service approaches

Strategy 2: Define and establish plans to meet LCA’s targeted levels of service

Examples of what we are already doing:
e Data collection on system performance (linear and vertical assets)

NEW Activities Beginning in 2022:

e Begin a level of service (LoS) assessment, Including stakeholder/regulatory review, current
performance assessment, definition of LCA's LoS goals, and facility-specific considerations /
constraints

e Research approaches and LCA's needs for a develop a data analytics program

Strategy 3: Standardize and implement a comprehensive asset management program to ensure
infrastructure reliability, guide investment, and support data-driven decision-making.

Examples of what we are already doing:
e Master plan updates for existing plans
e Annual water main replacement prioritization
e Flow metering activities/Western Lehigh

NEW Activities Beginning in 2022:
e Identify master planning needs for all systems.

e Figure out where Asset Management sits within the LCA organization (create clear ownership &
responsibility of AM functions)
e Standardize master planning approach, frequency & data collection
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Employee Engagement and Safety

To build a safe, cohesive, and engaging
workplace in which employees feel personally
connected to their work, each other, and
LCA’'s commitment to excellence

Strategy 1: Ensure a safe working environment for all employees.

Examples of what we are already doing:

Safety training

Bi-monthly safety meetings

Accident/injury investigation to correct action
Driving safety program

NEW Activities Beginning in 2022:
e |dentify and prioritize safety policies for review and update.
e Develop a more comprehensive training program
e |mprove root cause analysis process
e Standardize / define safety training requirements for new hires

Strategy 2: Standardize and enhance our approaches to succession planning, knowledge
management, and performance management.

Examples of what we are already doing:
Documenting work processes (SOPs)
Workforce analysis, retirement risk profile
Annual performance evaluations
Disciplinary program

NEW Activities Beginning in 2022:
o Identify job specific performance measures and training plans
e Standardize new employee onboarding program

Strategy 3: Expand opportunities for employee and leadership development, technical training,
and certification.

Examples of what we are already doing:

Access to certification training

Tuition program (improve on promotion)

Leadership development programs

Skill-based / certification-based job advancement (selected operational roles)
Education policy w/ tuition reimbursement option

NEW Activities Beginning in 2022:
e Expand Lunch & Learn program
e Standardize supervisory onboarding / training
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Strategy 4: Openly explore the diversity, equity, and inclusion issues that are important to LCA
and our employees.

NEW Activities Beginning in 2022:
e Bullying/sensitivity training
e Provide DEI training for LCA leadership

Strategy 5: Engage employees in LCA’s work through collaboration, communication, and
cooperation.

Examples of what we are already doing:

Company-wide meetings

Regular top-down communication on major LCA issues
Quarterly managers’ meetings

Strategic planning process

SharePoint site

NEW Activities Beginning in 2022:
e Standardize / increase use of exit and stay interviews
e Evaluate flexible work arrangements / policies
o New employee check in program (after onboarding)
e Develop a mentoring program
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How will we stay focused?

It’s a big plan with a lot of important goals and
activities!

1. Metrics to illustrate progress

v' Reporting on 2022 Milestones
e Asset management program development
e Water & sewer capacity projects
e Process efficiency improvements

v' Reduction of reportable employee safety incidents
v Capital program management (on time / on budget)
v" Planned vs. unplanned maintenance

v' Other metrics:

Monthly financial reporting
Regulatory compliance
Customer responsiveness
Employee turnover

2. Communication
* Board of Directors
» Stakeholders
* Municipalities
* Customers

3. Teamwork!
* LCA Strategy Teams
* Department Goals

* Employee Town Hall Meetings n‘

Lehigh County Authority
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LEHIGH COUNTY AUTHORITY

ALLENTOWN, PENNSYLVANIA

ACQUISITIONS/LEASES/OPERATING CONTRACTS

Acquisition Purchase Original Current

Date Development Municipality Price Customers Customers
Water Systems:
April 14, 1976 Fairways at Brookside Lower Macungie Twp. $ 180,000 92 596
June 1, 1976 Millbrook Farms Lower Macungie Twp. 92,339 2 367
July 1, 1976 Pine Grove Park Lower Macungie Twp. 25,000 166 187
January 1, 1979 Shepherd Hills Lower Macungie Twp. 325,000 453 675
June 28, 1979 Mark Terrace Upper Macungie Twp. 8,250 25 27
January 1, 1980 Ancient Oak Lower Macungie Twp. 1,350,000 1,055 1,143
May 20, 1980 Upper Macungie Upper Macungie Twp. 200,000 (5) 479 7,968
October 1, 1981 Country Downs Lower Macungie Twp. 12,000 36 131
March 14, 1984 Clearview Manor Lower Macungie Twp. 150,000 (1) 191 592
May 31, 1989 Penn Hills North Whitehall Twp. 78,500 94 114
August 16, 1991 Slatedale/Emerald Washington Twp. - 360 406
September 30, 1991 Schnecksville North North Whitehall Twp. 210,000 (2) 238 349
October 1, 1991 Crestwood North Whitehall Twp. 105,000 (3) 210 264
January 24, 1992 Green Hills Upper Macungie Twp. 357,700 (4) 307 726
December 14, 1993 Country Home Acres Lower Macungie & 32,000 56 60

Salisbury Twps.
February 2, 1998 Mink Estates/Farview Farms Upper Milford Twp. - 41 71
February 22, 2002 Pine Lakes of Lynn Lynn Township - 59 60
June 26, 2002 Heidelberg Heights Heidelberg Twp. 267,481 189 190
June 12, 2003 Arcadia West IP Weisenberg Twp. 400,000 5 20
December 30, 2004 Sand Spring North Whitehall Twp. 35,350 257 260
February 22, 2005 Mill Creek Washington Twp. - 35 35
March 30, 2005 Beverly Hills Lower Milford Twp 29,800 43 44
May 31, 2006 Clearview Farms Estates Moore Twp, Northampton Co. - 66 67
March 16, 2007 Emmaus Out-of-Borough Lower Macungie & Upper 131,000 415 421
Milford Twps.

April 4, 2007 Buss Acres Upper Milford Twp. 205,450 100 100
July 8, 2010 Lynn Water Company Lynn Township 233,637 116 116
Wastewater Systems:
September 23, 1998 Heidelberg Heights Heidelberg Twp. - 145 145
June 12, 2003 Arcadia West IP Weisenberg Twp. - 5 20
July 11, 2003 Wynnewood Terrace North Whitehall Twp. 547,184 216 220
December 30, 2004 Sand Spring North Whitehall Twp. 126,000 257 259
May 16, 2006 Lehigh County Wastewater Treatment Plant Upper Macungie Twp. - Not Applicable
April 1, 2009 Washington Township Sewer System Washington Twp. - 613 628
February 29, 2012 Lynn Township Sewer System Lynn Township - 424 431
June 8, 2016 Lowhill Township Sewer System Lowhill Township - 43 43
City Division System:
Augist 7, 2013 City of Allentown City of Allentown 246,205,824 (6) 46,643 48,212

(1) Purchase price represents the initial upfront payment. Additional payments of $680 per connection are made as
new homes are served. A total of $396,160 has been paid through 12/31/12.

Purchase price represents the initial upfront payment. Additional payments of $375 per apartment and $750 per
single family or twin connection are made as new units are served. The Authority has an additional exposure of
$17,550 for new commercial connections to the system. A total of $251,250 has been paid through 12/31/12.
Purchase price represents an initial upfront payment. Additional payments of $500 per connection are made as
new homes are served. A total of $118,500 has been paid through 12/31/12.

Purchase price represents an initial upfront payment. Additional payments of $1,100 or $1,250 per connection,

(2

-

@3

N

4

=

dependent upon location, are made as new homes are served. A total of $817,750 has been paid through 12/31/12.

(5) Excludes Mark Terrace and Green Hills customers which are listed separately.
(6) Purchase price represents the 1) upfront payment, less fair value of conveyed capital assets, Il) the discounted future
annual payments, amd lll) the discounted future Capex Fund funding requirements.

Note: Current customers represents residential and commercial units served as of 12/31/23, not
customer connections, for those systems acquired before 12/31/23.
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Lehigh County Authority

P.0. Box 3348, 1053 Spruce Road
Allentown, PA 18106-0348

610.398.2503 - FAX 610.398.8413

www.lehighcountyauthority.org }
service@lehighcountyauthority.org & —
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